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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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Review

China Property Markets Make Sharp Turnaround in 2009
After a dismal 2008, China’s property market staged a sharp
turnaround. China’s real GDP growth increased by 8.7%
in 2009, exceeding the government’s 8% target. Growth
accelerated in the 4th quarter to 10.7% year on year.
The growth has been driven by an aggressive government
stimulus package to counter the effects of the global financial
crisis-primarily infrastructure-oriented and government-
led investments; and policies to encourage domestic
consumption.

A key part of the stimulus package was a variety of incentives
to promote China’s real estate market: encouragement of
banks to lend to the industry; reduction in the down payment
for houses; lower interest rates on property loans; reduction
in sales tax; among others. As a result, the volume of
transactions in the property market increased sharply, with
residential property primary transactions rising about 90%
compared to 2008. Nationally, residential property prices have
risen about 20% from the trough in early 2009.

Recovery provides significant boost to the value of HKC’s
properties

The Group has clearly benefitted from the recovery in
China’s property market. The value of the Group’s Shanghai
properties increased particularly strongly. In September 2009,
two land plots, along the Huangpu River, in Lujiazui, sold
for RMB33,826 and RMB36,481 per sg.m. respectively. In
February 2010, a plot of land on the South Bund, sold for
RMB34,148 per sq.m., while another plot on Nanjing Road
sold for RMB51,824 per sq.m..

As a result, HKC recorded a substantial HK$1.5 billion
profit in 2009

Given the improvement in the property market, the Group
recorded substantial revaluation gains on investment
properties, and also writebacks of previous impairment losses,
incurred in 2008.

In addition, HKC recorded profit from an increase in rental
income as a result of higher occupancy rates and increase
in average monthly rentals; the disposal of some non-core
properties; and the disposal of a 10% effective equity interest
in the project company holding Danjinghe wind farm project.
In total, the Group recorded a HK$1.5 billion profit, a sharp
reversal from the loss recorded in 2008.
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HKC’s long held belief in sustainable development is
coming to fruition

HKC has long believed in sustainable technology development.
It is our belief that what is good for the environment can also
be good for the Group’s bottom line. That is why, in addition
to property, HKC has put some of its resources on alternative
energy.

That belief is now coming to fruition. The Group completed
and put into commission the first phase of its Danjinghe wind
farm in March 2009. This wind farm has been performing
above expectations, with electricity dispatch to the grid well
above plan. Based on the current data, the Group is expecting
IRRs for the project to be significantly higher than initial
projections.
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Moreover, not only was Phase 2 construction completed on
time at the end of 2009, Phase 3 was also completed at the
same time, about one year faster than initial plan. In addition,
construction at Changma, Gansu Province; and Luanaobao,
Hebei Province; are on or ahead of schedule.

Sustainable development is a principal strategy for the
Group, and also applies to our property developments

In the second half of 2010, HKC will launch its South Honggi
Road residential development in Tianjin. This project is
targeting LEED (Leadership in Energy and Environmental
Design) certification.

The master layouts are designed with natural lighting and
ventilation provisions. In addition, a number of sustainable
technologies and ideas will be used, such as: solar panels
to heat water; heat pump technology to heat and cool the
buildings; solar powered street lights; landscaping to create a
healthy environment, but which also utilizes natural rainwater
as much as possible; and superior insulation and window
seals.

8 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2009
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We believe these features will not only benefit the
environment, it will also improve profitability of the project.
We are targeting upper middle class buyers who are looking
for something unique and sustainable. These features, we
believe, are environmentally friendly and will create a “wow”
factor that will enable us to charge premium pricing.

The Government is providing increasingly strong policy
support for sustainable development

Historically, the Chinese government has focused on rapid
growth, resulting in rapid economic development, but also
resulting in pollution and contributing to global warming. Over
the last couple of years, the government has shifted its stance,
and now recognizes that China’s growth must be sustainable.

The government has implemented a number of policies to
encourage sustainable development. For example, at the
Copenhagen climate summit in 2009, China unilaterally
pledged to cuts its carbon intensity, or carbon dioxide output
per unit of gross domestic product, by as much as 45%
by 2020. More recently, at the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference, China’s top political advisory body,
it was announced that China will raise the development of a
low-carbon economy to the national strategic level, and will be
incorporated into the 12th five-year plan. Windpower will be
a key part of this plan, with the government setting a goal of
150,000 MW of wind power by 2020.

In addition to producing low carbon energy, the government
is placing strong emphasis on conserving energy. According
to Jia Qinglin, the Chairman of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference “China should ...promote energy
savings and reduce emissions, as well as build a circular and
low-carbon economy to deal with climate change”. Reflecting
the importance of energy efficiency, Tianjin is planning to start
China’s first city-wide carbon cap-and-trade system, imposing
a mandatory limit on energy used to heat buildings. Property
managers who are able to reduce energy use to below the
limit could earn credits they can then sell.

Tianjin Honggi South Road Project
RIFBAMERKIEE

AEEREUERBTEBMNRIRE - TABREMIR
Bz&MES - AEBRERBR AL RAHEER
ZHPEEBERRBBEEF - AKERE - LWERRFRREY
BikEX EE IRE  APREER -

BRATHERREMBABRERE

BE - PEBRFEINSRER  HHEELEER
28 TERSR R ERECERE - BEBEF - ]
EEBHEZREY  REPEERAKEERZER
Mo

BNCERZARE  HBAKERR - fliR —F
ZNFIFARRARES £ PRETHAGRR -F
“TERHERREREEMRALEREL —R(L
MR EB MR Z EAS% - B MERSBUAHE
AETEARBURHEGHE M - T EE/HERER
RERTERZBRED - YHAAS T _ELF
g - RERRIFEZZOEY - BAFER TERER
T TFRBERI50,000K FLE S EKF o

BRAEEEIKEEIRIN - BUF IR DB ERKIGEIR o IE40
PREARBAWEEZ T FEEMM T+ BEEHEESD
BERBE - BRERGE MR E AR RIRE ] -
ARMEENS BB  REHIHERERES
BEEMRRZEL > FANEFTERZERETRS
REE - MEEBEEABGRERERERRERNIRE
7 PR RE L AT BRI

BEBERER)BRARN-ZZAFFHR 9



If implemented, our Tianjin Honggi South Road project will
benefit greatly as it will be one of the most energy efficient
estates in the city. During the groundbreaking ceremony,
the government highly praised our efforts, designating the
development as one of Nankai District’s most important
projects.

For 2010, we are looking to inject our alternative energy
assets into HKE, enabling HKC’s investors to see the true
value of the alternative energy assets

With the latest earnings results, the company’s book value
per share rises to HK$1.43 per share, significantly higher
than the current trading price of HK$0.69 per share. Of this
book value, HK$0.27 per share is in cash and HK$0.33
per share is in already completed and cash generating
investment properties. Combined, the cash component and
the investment properties are valued at HK$0.60 per share,
compared to the current share price of HK$0.69 per share.

This suggests that the market assigns little value to the Group’s
development properties, which have a book value of HK$0.79
per share and includes properties in prime areas of Shanghai,
Shenyang, and Tianjin; and little or no value to the windfarm
business which has a book value of HK$0.10 per share.

In reality, public market valuations are significantly higher
than the invested cost of wind farms. HKC invested (debt and
equity) USD1.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$8.5
million) per MW for Phase 1 of Danjinghe wind farm. Currently,
based on various research reports, the enterprise value (debt
and equity) for the major listed wind farms operators are
around USD2.2 million (equivalent to approximately HK$17.0
million) per MW.
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Book Value Book Value/Share

BREE SREEE

HK$’ Million HK$

BEBT BIT

Cash HE 2,519.00 0.27

Completed Investment Properties' ERIREYFE 3,056.20 0.33

Properties Under Development? BRI 7,430.10 0.79

Alternative Energy BEReER 994.60 0.10
Others Hity (596.00) (0.06)

Total equity ERBEE 13,403.90 1.43
(1) Peninsula Beijing Hotel, Shenzhen Jingguang Centre, Shenzhen (1) EREFESEE  RYREFL  FIEEES - BMNPE
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Ocean Centre, Hong Kong East Ocean Centre, Nanxun Complex
and No. 23 Qianmen, Beijing

(2) Shanghai North Bund, Shanghai Sichuan North Road, Tianjin
Honggi Nan Road, Tianjin Tuanbo Lake, Shenyang Ningbo
Road, Shenyang Nanjing Road and Jiangmen

10 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2009

PI235%

(2)  biEdeshE - BEm)IHesk - RBAERE - XREEDRH &
FREIRER - B RmEE TP



Part of the reason for this unreasonable valuation is that we
believe the markets are having a difficult time valuing property
and alternative energy in the same listed vehicle. Investors
looking to invest in windpower are really investing in a property
company; while those investors focused on property have a
difficult time valuing windpower.

Therefore, for 2010, we are exploring plans and the feasibility
of injecting our alternative energy assets into Hong Kong
Energy (Holdings) Limited (“HKE”), a subsidiary company
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, our alternative energy listed vehicle. Through this
corporate restructuring, we believe the market will be better
able to separately value the windpower assets, and investors
in HKC will therefore be able to see the true value of these
assets.

Some concerns over recent tightening measures, bhut are
confident that the property market will hold up well in
2010

While 2009 has been a strong year, there is some concern
that 2010’s growth may be less robust. The government
has expressed concerns that property prices have risen too
quickly, and that ordinary people may be priced out of the
market. As a result, in late 2009, the government has reversed
some of the measures that were implemented in late 2008
to support the property market. Also, the Government has
announced that Stated Owned Enterprises (the “SOEs”) will
be restricted from buying land.

Our view is that while the government will implement
measures to discourage excessive speculation, it remains
supportive of this sector. The property industry is key to
supporting domestic demand, a desire that the government
recognizes is important; and is also an important source of
funds for government expenditures. Moreover, most of the
restrictions are aimed at preventing exorbitant price increases
for the residential market, not for the commercial market. And,
exit of the SOEs will make it easier for the Group to purchase
landbank at reasonable prices.
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Balance sheet remains strong

Even if the government over tightens, the Group is particularly
well positioned because, unlike many of its major competitors,
we enjoy a low gearing ratio of only 9.4%, excluding loans
from minority shareholders. Moreover, there are no major
debts that are coming due. Only HK$828.3 million is due in
2010, HK$399.7 million is due in 2011, HK$2,546.2 million
is due in 2012 and thereafter. Given the current cash is at
HK$2,519.0 million, HKC'’s balance sheet remains financially
healthy.

This puts us in an ideal position to grasp the many
opportunities at the right time. While we intend to be
cautiously picking projects that have significant merit, our
cash on hand is sufficient to support our requirements for
working capital, as well as to cover the initial development
costs of a number of projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

Financial review

During the twelve months under review, turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2009 amounted to HK$378.0 million,
an increase of 28.3% over turnover of HK$294.7 million
for 2008. Meanwhile, gross profit for the year of HK$139.7
million also represented an increase over gross profit of
HK$52.1 million the previous year. Net profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company amounted to HK$1,456.7
million for the year under review, whereas net loss in 2008
was HK$2,646.0 million. The turnaround in results for 2009
arose from the upturn in the property market in the Mainland
China. Basic profit per share amounted to HK15.9 cents,
compared with basic loss per share in 2008 of HK29.6 cents.
HKC'’s book value per share rises to HK$1.43 per share. Of
this amount, cash and completed investment properties is
HK$0.60 per share. This compares to HKC’s current share
price of HK$0.69 per share.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s total borrowings
(excluded loans from minority shareholders) amounted to
HK$3,774.2 million, representing a rise of 17.5% when
compared with the equivalent figure of HK$3,211.0 million as
at 31 December 2008. Total borrowings as at 31 December
2009 included Hong Kong Dollar borrowings of HK$418.8
million (2008: HK$59.8 million) and Renminbi borrowings
equivalent to HK$3,355.4 million (2008: HK$3,151.2 million).

The maturity dates for most of the Group’s outstanding
borrowings are spread over the next five years, with HK$828.3
million repayable within one year or on demand, HK$1,244.9
million repayable within two to five years, and HK$1,701.0
million repayable after five years.

All of the Group’s outstanding borrowings take the form of
interest-bearing loans, with interest rates fixed at market
prices.

As at 31 December 2009, the Group had restricted deposits of
HK$309.0 million (2008: HK$674.9 million) and unrestricted
cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$2,210.0 million
(2008: HK$1,836.9 million).

The Group did not use financial instruments for financial
hedging purposes during the year under review.

The Group will continue its efforts to create an optimum
financial structure that best reflects the long-term interests
of its shareholders, and will actively consider a variety of
alternative sources of funding to finance future investments.

14 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2009
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Details of charges in group assets

During the year under review, the Group and certain of its
subsidiaries had charged certain properties worth HK$2,537.0
million (2008: HK$2,339.6 million) as security for bank and
other loans.

Gearing ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio as at 31 December 2009 was
9.4%, compared with approximately 6% as at 31 December
2008. This ratio represents total borrowings (excluding loans
from minority shareholders) less cash and cash equivalents
(including restricted cash) divided by total equity.

Contingent liahilities

The Group had contingent liabilities in respect of a housing
facility fund for a property held in the PRC. Details are set out
in Note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business review

Property investment, development and management

The Group holds a property investment portfolio made up
of premium commercial and residential developments in
Shenzhen, Guangzhou and Beijing. These continue to provide
the Group with a steady stream of rental revenue across the
year.

The Group disposed of some of its non-core investment
properties in 2009, such as offices in Shun Hing Square in
Shenzhen and its equity interest in Yangpu Jinggang Real
Estate Company Limited.

Shanghai

Shanghai continues to benefit from strong government
support. According to a document issued by the State Council
on 29 April 2009, the central government plans to establish
Shanghai as an international financial centre and shipping hub
by 2020. Meanwhile, Shanghai’s industrial and service sectors
continue to grow. For example, in 2009, the government
approved China’s first Disneyland to be built in Shanghai. The
government have also announced that Shanghai will be the
assembling and manufacturing centre of China’s homegrown
ARJ21 regional civil jet and C919 large civil jet.

In the first half of 2009, Shanghai suffered from weak
demand, with high office vacancy rates. Since then, given an
improved economy, vacancy rates have dropped and rents
have stabilized. Given the improved outlook for the Shanghai
economy, prices for land increased sharply. In 2009, HKC
commenced piling work on its North Bund property, and is
currently doing work on the diaphragm walls. We have also
modified the design to increase the office area by 14% while
decreasing the hotel area by 46%.
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Meanwhile, for the Sichuan North Road development, we
are discussing with the Shanghai government to increase
the height limit on our project. This new plan would provide
better views, increase efficiency and enhance the value of the
development. We have committed to begin construction of
this project in 2010.

Tianjin

The Tianjin residential market improved significantly in 2009,
benefitting in particular from the completion of the high speed
railroad connecting Tianjin with Beijing. Overall, prices for
all residential properties in the Nankai District, where HKC’s
property is located, increased about 60% from the trough.
Prices for low-rise buildings increased even more sharply, with
low-rise buildings now selling around RMB35,000 per sg.m..

In December 2009, the Group held a ground-breaking
ceremony for its South Honggi Road project, Tianjin. Located
at a premium site surrounded by Water Park, Tianjin Olympic
Centre as well as Nancuiping Park, the Project has a planned
above-ground GFA of 150,000 sq.m., of which 75%, or
112,500 sq.m. is attributable to the Group. We estimate that
we will launch sales in the second half of 2010.

Prices for suburban Tianjin villas have also recovered, and are
now at historical highs. This bodes well for our Tianjin Tuanbo
Lake project. We target to begin construction in 2011.

Nanxun

The Group has completed the construction of its centralized
site for suppliers of furniture and building materials in Huzhou
City. The complex stands on a 207,628 sg.m. site in the
Nanxun Economic Development District in Huzhou City,
Zhejiang Province.
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We are coordinating our launch of sales with an expected
order from the government to close down a nearby old trading
center. Once the market understands that this competing
government market will be closed down, demand for our
complex will increase substantially. We anticipate that our
formal sales launch will begin in May 2010.

Jiangmen

The Group is developing a site in Jiangmen. This site is in
close proximity to a newly developed light rail station, and
is situated within walking distance to Jiangmen’s main
ferry terminal to Hong Kong, and is directly along the river
bank — as such many of the apartments to be developed
will have excellent water views. Moreover, tolls have been
eliminated on a bridge that connects the opposite river
bank to our site. Given property prices on the other side are
higher than on HKC's site, HKC should benefit. The Group is
actively preparing to commence the project which includes
low-rise villas and high-rise buildings. The total GFA will be
approximately 189,110 sg.m..
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Shenyang &G
The Shenyang residential market has also staged a sharp  ZEEF=EmETLIREBIRE  FTHERKH - SEN\E+—
turnaround, with average prices rising from the trough in BrsErET - HBRHAER SN KREEEEEAS

December 2008. This trend will benefit the Group’s residential F o REEEH AR —E—SERBEAEREEEERTT
project in Ningbo Road. The Group anticipates construction to M o

begin in 2010 for both its residential and commercial projects.

Shenyang Ningbo Road Project
IS ERIKIER

Shenzhen =Y

The Shenzhen property market has made a major turnaround ~ AINMET ISR _Z—TFKIBFE - TEHI5EREZE
in 2010, with the residential market showing a major increase o

in price.

Rental income in our Shenzhen properties increased by 34%  AINEZHESWARZZTZTNFIEIN34% - WA RKE
in 2009. The increase in rental income was a result of higher ~ HAX L - FHM S EARREBKOERIERSME LA -
occupancy rates, an increase in the average rental rate, and

an improved macroeconomic environment.

Alternative energy BRER

Siziwang Qi Phase 1 & 2 ¥ EE5E - =5
Mtributable capacity: - [E(E7EE: -

99MW kR
Ownership: BEE: pr—— -
HKC; HKE BhRG BEE jiang 47

Attrributable  fEf57ERE :

farinialy
Changma Phase | EEE-H igpzegéegd ;%Tg\ehon :E”ﬁwfﬁm _ capacity: ELULH
Attrributable capacity: E{GEE : ! s 51IMW HHRE:
80MW 80JKEL Ownership: ~ &BRER
Ownership: HEE: HKC; Jixi Jixi Power
HKC; CECIC BERA  HR Power  BEH
Expected completion FEHA%T : Xinjiang In operation
completed BRI
Lunaobao 2HE
Attrributable FEfREERE
Cinghai capacity: 30KE
f 30MW EaE:
Ex Shaarme Hanan diangsu Ownersmp: %‘,%%ﬁ‘ﬁ/’? ;
' A | HKE; CECIC g
S'muancmn.;q-ng Hupsi A et Expected completion: FAEFAT :
i Zhejiang | 2010 —3-%%
Total Committed AERGRER [ { o Danjinghe L)
Capacity: Guizhou Fujian Attributable MRS :
Gross: 660MW 4% : 660k E Kunming capacity: 80kE
Attributable: 341MW FEff : 341K K Guangi  Guangdong Taiwan 80MW AR
: Ownership: EARR  BAMR
Maao"a Kong HKC; HKE; CECIC 5%
Expected completion: FEEHAT :
Hainan Completed BRI

18 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2009



The Group has channelled new investment in the alternative
energy businesses through Hong Kong Energy (Holdings)
Limited (“HKE"), a subsidiary company listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
making HKE the principal vehicle for wind power projects.
This strategic move will help secure long-term funding for
expanding and developing high-potential projects.

The Group’s Danjinghe wind farm in Hebei Province is
performing significantly better than expected, generating 85
million kwh of electricity in 2009, about 10 million kwh more
than initially projected. Phase 2 was completed on schedule,
while Phase 3 was completed 12 months ahead of schedule.
The entire project was completed within budget, and clearly
demonstrates our execution abilities.

Meanwhile, in Gansu Province, all 134 wind turbines of the
Group’s 201 MW wind farm in Changma have been installed
by September 2009, 6 months ahead of schedule. With
the success of grid-interconnection, commissioning of the
entire wind farm has been commenced and full commercial
operation is expected in the third quarter of 2010, a full year
ahead of the original plan.

Both wind farms in Danjinghe and Changma are joint ventures
between HKC and China Energy Conservation Investment
Corporation (“CECIC"), a leading stated-owned enterprise
focused in energy conservation and environmental protection.

Another 50 MW wind power project wholly-owned by the
Group was under construction in Siziwang Qi area of Inner
Mongolia in the PRC.

Completed in 2008, the wind power plant in Mudanjiang,
Heilongjiang Province was in full operation and has been
generating steady revenue.

Another alternative energy project under the wing of HKC is
the Group’s waste-to-energy plant, a joint venture with CECIC.
Located in Shandong, China, the 25 MW capacity plant has
begun operation and is generating revenue. The Group owns
a 40% share, and CECIC owns the remaining 60%. Besides
earning revenue from the generation of electricity, the plant
is also earning revenue from fees for garbage treatment
from the Linyi municipal government, trading within the
Clean Development Mechanism, and the sale of ash-based
materials.
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BRERNEBHERE TRERERBBEHINNT

Alternative energy projects under HKC and HKE are listed out
below:

Capacity (MW) Ownership
E#CKER) BERE
Target Construction
Wind farm projects Total Attributable ~ Completion date Entity % ownership JV partner Location
BERETRE
B H%EE aF FEfh BIAM B BEEESL AEBH 1t 2
Danjinghe — Phase I, II, Il 200.0 60.0 Q1 09/Q4 09/ HKC 30% CECIC Hebei
BEEI—F— = -=H Q4 09 BBER Y Ak
ThEE—ZF/
ThEENZE/
THESNE
Changma Phase | 201.0 80.4 2010 HKC 40% CECIC Gansu
ESE—H —T-TF BBER Y HE®
Mudanjiang Phase | 29.8 25.6 In operation HKC 86% Jixi Power Heilongjiang
HATE—H] =B BBER EEL
Mudanjiang Phase Il 29.8 258 In operation HKC 87% Jixi Power Heilongjiang
HAHTE 8 =B BBER EEL
Siziwang Qi Phase | 495 49.5 Q4 2009/ HKC 100% n.a. Inner Mongolia
MFFiEE— 5 Q1 2010 BRRER TER e
“TTNFERT/
T -LFEF
Siziwang Qi Phase Il 495 49.5 2010 HKE 100% n.a. Inner Mongolia
MFFHEE =5 —T-TF BBEIR TER e
Lunaobao 100.5 30.2 2010 HKE 30% CECIC Hebei
) —E-TF BBEIR Y Ak
Danjinghe — Phase I, II, Il 200.0 20.0 Q1 09/Q4 09/Q4 09 HKE 10% CECIC Hebei
B —F— = =8 TNEE—F/ BENER Y Ak
ThEENZE/
ENFENF
TOTAL 341.0
ast
Infrastructure 2z

Located in the Yangpu Economic Development Zone in
Hainan, the Group’s water supply plant continued to generate
good returns. The plant is the sole supplier of raw water for
industrial use in the area, so remains in an excellent position
for achieving recurring long-term revenues.

The Group’s Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”) toll road project
in Guilin, linking up with China’s Western Expressway, has
been in full operation in 2009. The traffic flow has been
steadily increasing this year, particularly as the government
has been supportive in diverting drivers to use the highway.
As the economy rebounds, and as travelers become more
accustomed to the new highway, traffic volumes on the toll
road are expected to rise.
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Construction

The Group is carrying out drainage improvements in the Tuen
Mun and Sham Tseng areas of Hong Kong, under a contract
from the Drainage Services Department of the HKSAR
government worth approximately HK$68.3 million. The
contract is to complete in 2010.

Outlook

Property investment, development and management

For 2010, the Group intends to focus its efforts on completing
its range of existing projects. Land acquisition will be a lower
priority. However, the Group’s strong financial position means
that it can remain open to acquiring properties at good prices,
should such opportunities arise. At the same time, the Group
may sell some of its non core properties if a high sales price
can be achieved.

For 2010, the Group is looking to launch sales in Nanxun, after
the government announces the closure of a nearby trading
complex. The Group will also launch presales of our Tianjin
Honggi Road and Jiangmen projects. The Tianjin project will
consist of villas ranging in size from 250 sg.m. to 290 sg.m. and
apartment blocks ranging in size from 170 sg.m. to 270 sg.m.
The Group will also launch construction of its Shanghai Sichuan
North Road and Shenyang Ningbo Road project in 2010.

Alternative energy

Phases 2 and 3 of the Danjinghe wind farm are scheduled to
begin commercial operation in the second quarter of 2010,
with Phase 3 almost a year ahead of schedule. The 80 MW
Phase 2 consists of one hundred 800 kW wind turbines while
the 79.5 MW Phase 3 portion consists of fifty-three 1.5 MW
turbines. The high quality of the wind, as reflected in the
Phase 1 data, suggests that Phases 2 and 3 would also be
successful.

Phase 1 of the Siziwanggi wind farm in Inner Mongolia is also
scheduled to begin commercial cooperation in mid 2010; and
the Changma wind farm is scheduled to go into operation in
mid 2010.

In addition, the Group, via HKE has a considerable pipeline of
wind farm projects. HKC and HKE anticipates having a gross
capacity of over 1,600 MW by 2014. For 2010, the Group
will explore plans and their feasibilities to transfer alternative
energy assets into HKE. Through this injection, we believe the
market may be better able to separately value the windpower
assets and investors in HKC may therefore be able to see the
true value of these assets.

Employees

As at the end of December 2009, the Group’s operations
in Hong Kong and the Mainland China employed a total of
approximately 760 employees. All employees are remunerated
according to the nature of their jobs, their individual
performances, the Group’s overall performance, and prevailing
marketing conditions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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Corporate governance practices

The Company is committed to good corporate governance
principles and practices and its board of directors (the
“Directors” or the “Board”) recognizes that it is essential
to safeguard the interests of shareholders, customers and
employees and uphold accountability, transparency and
responsibility of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
the code provisions and certain recommended best practices
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during the year ended
31 December 2009, save for the deviations with considered
reasons stated in the following relevant paragraphs.

Board of directors

Board composition

The Company has at all time during the year ended 31
December 2009 maintained a balanced board with strong
independent element. The Board currently comprises thirteen
Directors with three Executive Directors, six Non-executive
Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors (of
whom Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip was re-designated by the
board as Independent Non-executive Director on 1 March
2010). Each Director possesses expertise and experience
and provides checks and balances for safeguarding the
interests of the Group and the shareholders as a whole.
Biographical details of the Directors and their relationships,
where applicable, are set out in pages 34 to 39 of this Annual
Report.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one
Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors was assessed in accordance with
the applicable Listing Rules. Each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors has provided to the Company an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of them to be
independent.
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Board of directors (continued)

Chairman and chief executive officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company were exercised by two different individuals. Mr.
OEl Tjie Goan is the Chairman and Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is
the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") of the Company. Their
responsibilities had been clearly set out and approved by
the Board. The Board considers that this arrangement
facilitates the execution of the Group’s business strategies
and maximizes effectiveness of its operation. The Board
shall nevertheless review its structure from time to time and
it will consider the appropriate move to take should suitable
circumstance arise.

Responsibilities of directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Group by directing and supervising the Group'’s
affairs and formulating business strategies with a view to
maximizing its financial performance and shareholders’ value.

All newly appointed Directors are given comprehensive
documentations of the business operations of the Group and
regulatory and statutory requirements as director together
with briefing meetings with senior executives of the Group.
Directors are provided with continuous updates on the latest
changes in the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other relevant laws and regulations and are encouraged
to participate in continuous professional development
seminars to update their knowledge for discharging directors’
responsibilities.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on
an annual basis.

Delegation by the hoard

The management, consisting of the Executive Directors of the
Company along with other senior executives, is delegated with
responsibilities for implementing the strategy and direction as
adopted by the Board from time to time, and conducting the
day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors and
senior executives meet regularly to review the performance
of the businesses of various business units of the Group as
a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial
and operation decision. The Board also gives clear directions
as to their powers of management including circumstances
where management should report back, and will review the
delegation arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that
they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

BEE g

TERITBER
RARERERITHRAR S RIEMAATET  EEREED
EARABESE - MEMIZLARETARRBITHRAR ([1THE
) MELBECEWMATTESESESHE  E52R
B BT AEITAER  EH R R BERLZEN
BE o AT EF LB ITRRNZER  UTHESEESEBR
HIRRHEL EE EH) -

EERT

EXCRAREREEAKE  BREEREEAKEER
R HIEXBRBEBNMBRALEREE  KRAEHESHA
SEERKY

AR T ESHERBERARBEBEEZEmMXT
MMEREZRZRENEERTE  TEAKERRITRASE
THHREZ BEFEFERFEAHELMRA - BXEBER
ST RIA R EARRBDED MR D 2 R E B EFHER - ARF]
NEBRELESEEXERMTE  UEMREHETE
EBE 2 -

ARBERHEEEERR  ABEAREEEACEED
EEZEE - ARTEFREAIRREE -

ExaciE

EEE(REAATNNTER) BRRMERTRAR - EE
R BT E R 2 R RS T ARE A %
275 - JITEFRERTRARTHEE  ERENAEE
EEBE 2 EHERT - DEEEDFRARIELE R E Y
RE - RERTRERENIREENIES - BIFEREEE
HIER 2 ER - R N B AR S R AR
EEEL -

BEBERER)BRARN-ZTAFFH 23



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRE

Board of directors (continued)

Nomination, appointment and re-election of directors

All new appointment of Directors and nomination of Directors
proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting are first
considered by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria
such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be
put to the Board for decision. Details of the role and function as
well as a summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee are set out under the heading of “Nomination
Committee” below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, the nearest one-
third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation but are
eligible for re-election by shareholders at the annual general
meeting provided that every Director is subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. New appointments
to the Board are also subject to re-election by shareholders at
the next following annual general meeting.

All Non-executive Directors of the Company were appointed
with no specific term, but are subject to aforesaid rotation
requirement in the Bye-laws. The rotating Directors who are
subject to retirement and re-election at the 2010 annual
general meeting are set out on page 43.

Meetings of the board and hoard committees

The Directors meet from time to time to discuss and exchange
ideas on the affairs of the Company. The Board has set up
various Board Committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee for
overseeing particular aspects of the Group’s affairs.
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Board of directors (continued)

Meetings of the hoard and board committees (continued)
During the year, the following meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were held and the attendance of the individual
Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:

EEgw

EESREEZEER
FA EFE -
Ty

BEZRE®

EJ0))

CRAZBELRFHEREGRE

& BEERNZ ggéa%ﬁfla/ﬁ{%zﬁé"l’%-

Number of meetings attended/held

BHE BTEEHA
Remuneration Nomination
Board Audit Committee  Committee Committee
EEg BEREEE FMEES REEZE®
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric =REA 4/4 2/2 (Note fff3E)  2/2 (Note BitzE)  2/2 (Note Pff3E)
Mr. WAN Man Yee }]ﬁl\Xfiflﬁi 2/2 N/A i@ N/A i N/A A~ F
(appointed on 4 September 2009) (R=ZTZNF
NATNBEZRT)
Mr. TANG Sau Wai, Tom BrEEE 4/4 N/A i@ N/A i@ N/A 7~ F
Mr. TSANG Sai Chung, Kirk WA 2/2 N/A i@ N/A i@ N/A i A
(resigned on 4 September 2009) (RZZEZTNhF
NAMBFT)
Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph [f%l%tf‘ﬁi 2/2 1/1 (Note FfizE)  N/A TEH N/A T
(resigned on 4 September 2009) (RZETNEF
NAMBET)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. OFI Tjie Goan BEREE 0/4 N/A TEF N/A TE A N/A TEF
Mr. LI Xueming FERLE 0/4 N/A NE A N/A NE A N/A T
Mr. XU Zheng fRAEE & 0/4 N/A TEF N/A TE A N/A TEF
Ms. YEN Teresa [ 2/4 N/A TNEF N/A TNEFA N/A @A
Mr. WAN Ming Sun FHILEE 2/4 N/A TEF N/A TNE A N/A TE
Mr. LIU Guolin FIBIMEE 1/4 N/A TEF N/A TE A N/A TE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BYkHITES
Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip BEBLE 3/4 1/2 1/2 1/2
(re-designated as independent (RZZT—ZF=A
non-executive director on —HREB
1 March 2010) FHRITES)
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico ERELE 0/4 0/2 0/2 0/2
Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo AL 4/4 212 212 212
Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior BEHELE 3/4 212 212 212
Note: The Executive Directors attended the relevant meetings as et ITEBURBBAGHIEEEBRSE -

invitees.
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Board of directors (continued)

Meetings of the hoard and board committees (continued)
Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular
board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular
meeting. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given. The agenda and accompanying
board papers are dispatched to the Directors or committee
members at least three days before the meetings to ensure
that they have sufficient time to review the papers and be
adequately prepared for the meetings. When directors or
committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they
are advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the Chairman prior
to the meeting.

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings
are recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by
the Board and the committees and the decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the
Directors for comments within a reasonable time after the date
on which the meeting is held. All Directors have access to the
company secretary who is responsible for ensuring that the
board procedures are complied with and advising the Board
on compliance matters.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent
professional advice in performing their duties at the Company’s
expense and are encouraged to access and to consult with
the Company’s senior management independently.

Model code for securities transactions by directors
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2009.

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the
Company’s securities by relevant employees, who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
in relation to the securities of the Group, on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code.
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Remuneration committee

The Company had established a Remuneration Committee
with written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee,
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises
four members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr.
CHENG Yuk Wo, Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior and
Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for Directors and senior
management, and reviewing their remuneration packages.
In arriving at its recommendations, the Remuneration
Committee will consult with the Chairman and/or the CEO
whenever it thinks fit and take into consideration factors such
as the remuneration paid by comparable companies, skill,
knowledge, time commitment and responsibilities of Directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings and reviewed, inter alia, the remuneration policy
and structure of the Company, the Directors’ fee and the
remuneration of the newly appointed Director. No Director was
involved in deciding his own remuneration at the meetings of
the Committee. The attendance records of each member are
set out on page 25. Details of the Directors’ remuneration for
the year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Nomination committee

The Company had established a Nomination Committee
with written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee,
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director, comprises
four members namely Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr.
CHENG Yuk Wo, Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior and
Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip, all of whom are independent. The
Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year, the
attendance details of each member are set out on page 25.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
suitable candidates for directorship, assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors,
and making recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed appointment or re-appointment.
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Nomination committee (continued)
During the year, the work performed by the Nomination
Committee includes the following:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

e assessing the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors;

e assessing the qualification and experience of new
candidate for directorship and making recommendation
to the Board on matters relating to the appointment of
director.

Audit committee

The Company had established an Audit Committee with
written terms of reference which have been updated from
time to time to align with the code provisions set out in the
CG code. The Audit Committee, chaired by an Independent
Non-executive Director, comprises four members namely
Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico, Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo, Mr. Albert
Thomas DA ROSA, Junior and Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip, all of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to,
inter alia, review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management procedures, as
well as oversee the adequacy of the accounting and financial
reporting resources.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings
together with senior management and external auditors,
the attendance details of each member are set out on page
25. The major work performed by the Audit Committee
during the year included reviewing the interim and annual
financial statements, the continuing connected transactions,
the internal audit reports on the internal controls and risk
management matters, as well as reviewing and recommending
the re-appointment of external auditor.

Auditor’s remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by
the auditor amounted to approximately HK$4.8 million and
HK$2.3 million respectively. The non-audit services mainly
related to tax advisory services and corporate exercises.
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Internal controls A BRES

Internal control environment A EZPELIRIR IR

The Group has had in place an integrated framework of  ZR&E 2 537 B Committee of Sponsoring Organisations of the
internal controls which is consistent with the Committee of ~ Treadway Commission([ COSOJ)28# —% v NERELI4R A 28
Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission’s  # o BIE3%Z234 - SEETEB TR THERESAIPE
(“COSQ”) framework. Under the framework, the management BTE MESeNEEREZESlagEETIEEZTH
is primarily responsible for the design, implementation and N EESRE G N BEPR KIS 7 BN o s% 2868 N P ERERFE 5k BR 4N
maintenance of internal controls while the Board and its T~

audit committee oversee the actions of the management and

monitor the effectiveness of the controls that have been put

in place. The framework and activities taken are illustrated

below:
Framework area Activities taken
REEE FRERER R HE
Control Environment o Management takes a hands-on approach and is fully committed to set the controls
ELprIRis environment ensuring that individuals are controls conscious
ERERDEGRL2E Fi - BBV ETRE - BREAYAGBEEEH
e  The Board has set up relevant committees to ensure regulations are complied
with and internal controls are carried out properly
EXSERUMEBZES  UWHERSEROIGIAEST  MAREEEAZER
17
e A code of conduct exists to guide individuals’ integrity and ethic in daily operations
WIFERFER] - ERATEB B EEFR 2 HE REERST - {EHESI
e Management closely monitors the organization structure and the responsibilities
of individuals granting appropriate authorities for them to handle assigned tasks
ERETYERAREEREASE  FHEERE  UEEEEER TE
o Performance evaluations and recruitment procedures are available to ensure
individuals are competent
RERBEN G MABERF - UHERER A TRIREE
Risk Assessment o Management has established clear strategic direction and business objectives
[\ B & iy ERERABBMRIEIES REBER
e  Formal risk assessment involving the Board and the top management has been
conducted to identify and analyse key risks associated with achieving the Group’s
objectives which forms the basis for determining key control activities
EFEERaREEE2HE ARG  URHERSNEERAEERZEH
ZEERR - MERRTEEEEIEE 2 £
Control Activities ° Policies/procedures on key control activities are established to ensure
ELTiE T management directives are carried out

HEBREZETEREZER B - LBRERE ZIETREUHT

° Ranges of activities including approvals, authorization, verifications,
recommendations, performance reviews, asset security and segregation of duties
are identified and implemented
BRAIRET—RIER  EREE  BE BE %EB g3 REdI% &
ERENBREE D
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Internal controls (continued)

Internal control environment (continued)

Framework area

HiEggns
Information and Communication

BB A

A 2B EE I ()
AFPEIRIRIE ()

Activities taken
FrERERIE e

Pertinent information is identified, captured, processed and reported

Al - BEEN - BRIE R E AR E R

Access to internal and external general information is available

AIEEER AR R AR — AR E

Management maintains an open-door policy to allow communication taking place
both across and vertically through the Group

B AR - LA RSB RETAR RER 288

Monitoring
B

Management closely monitors daily operations and the related controls
ERERYERAEEER MR

Internal audit function, the Internal Control and Risk Management (“ICRM”)
Department, with adequate resources and well qualified staff conducts annual
internal controls review on major operating units and projects
BEmrrERNEFE T 2 NEREE AR EEHPI(T AR IERAE
BB ATEENTELEENRIER cAHMERER

External audit function ensures financial reporting and the related controls are
proper and effective

SN BEZ BB BRI IGE R M AEAEIEBIRE AN

External tax advisor is engaged to ensure proper tax treatment and compliance on
tax regulations

ZESNETEER - ARRTEEERIEZE MEFHRERA

External legal advisor and internal company secretary and in-house legal counsel
function ensures the compliance of regulations, standards and listing rules

SNIEEREER AR AR E M ARAEBERARRETHEBRL - EAI R E
MRl

Risk assessment and management AR EREE

The Group conducted an annual update on the risk NEBEBFERFRAMET L - RIBECOSOZRHE - BEEBKIH A

assessment. Under the COSO framework, management
identified difference in the objectives of the Group from
last year assessment exercise and defined the related risk
categories impacting those objectives. Four risk categories
were considered: business, operational, financial and
compliance. A systematic “top-down” approach was adopted
to identify, source and evaluate individual risks and the
interrelationships between risks in the key areas under those
four categories, to which high priorities and resources were
given. Mitigation strategies and plans with respect to each
key risk identified were planned and put into action, which
included establishing or enhancing internal controls and
procedures.
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Internal controls (continued)

Control processes

The Board establishes and maintains a sound internal control
system through the following major processes:

(i)  Systems and procedures are in place to identify and
measure risks on an ongoing basis. Senior management
reviews and defines the annual risk assessment process
and monitor the progress of risk mitigation plans.

(i) An organization structure with defined lines of
responsibility and delegation of authority is devised.

(iii) The Board reviews its strategic plans and objectives on
an annual basis.

(iv) Financial performance is analysed against budget with
variances being accounted for and appropriate actions
are taken to rectify deficiencies.

(v) Having been aware of the fact that all systems of internal
control can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance, the ICRM department is required to evaluate
the adequacy and effectiveness of major controls over
principal operations of the Group independently. Full
access to the all data and every operation of the Group is
granted to the ICRM department. A risk-based approach
is adopted which concentrates on areas of significant
risks or where significant changes have occurred. Major
findings and recommendations, if any, are reported to
the Board and the audit committee after each review.

Annual internal control assessment

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. The ICRM
department conducts reviews of the effectiveness of the
Group’s system of internal controls, including those of its
subsidiaries. The Board and the Audit Committee reviews the
findings and recommendations of the ICRM department in the
effectiveness after such reviews.

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Board considered the internal controls system effective and
adequate.
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Internal controls (continued)

Price-sensitive information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of price-sensitive information, the
Group has performed the following actions:

(i)  Management and relevant personnel are made aware of
the Group’s obligations under the Listing Rules and the
overriding principle that information which is expected to
be price-sensitive and/or the subject of a major decision
should be announced immediately.

(i) Management and relevant personnel are required to
conduct the Group’s affairs with close regard to the
“Guide on Disclosure of Price-sensitive Information”
issued by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in 2002.

(iii)  Members of the Group’s top management are identified
and authorised to act as the Group’s spokespersons and
respond to external enquiries.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2009 which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the
Company and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash
flows. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors
have adopted generally accepted accounting standards in
Hong Kong and suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on
the going concern basis.

The statement of the Company’s auditors about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 65 to
66.
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Communication with shareholders

The Board believes regular and timely communication
with shareholders forms part of the Group’s effort to help
our shareholders understand our business better. Copies
of the annual reports and interim reports of the Company
are distributed to its shareholders and warrant holders in
accordance with statutory and regulatory requirements and
also to interested parties recorded in the Company’s mailing
lists. The publications of the Company, including financial
reports, circulars and announcements, are also available on
the Company’s website at www.hkcholdings.com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with the shareholders. At the general
meeting, each substantially separate issue will be considered
by a separate resolution, including the election of individual
directors, and the poll procedures will be clearly explained.
The CEO attended the annual general meeting in the absence
of the Chairman of the Board. Other members of the Board
and the Chairman of the relevant Board Committees are
available to attend the annual general meeting to inter-face
with, and answer questions from the shareholders.
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MR. OEI TJIE GOAN

(Chairman and Non-executive Director)

A director of the Group since April 2004, is 65 years old.
Mr. Oei was a graduate of the Mathematics & Dynamics
Department of Beijing University where he majored in
Computational Mathematics. Involved in Asia’s pulp and
paper, finance, banking, property and agricultural industries
since 1974, Mr. Oei sits on the board of two listed companies
in Indonesia: PT. Indah Kiat Pulp & Paper Tbk. and PT.
Pabrik Kertas Tjiwi Kimia Tbk. Mr. QOei is the father of Mr.
OEl Kang, Eric, an executive director and the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company.

MR. LI XUEMING

(Deputy Chairman and Non-executive Director)

A director of the Group since March 1999, is 62 years old.
Mr. Li holds a Bachelor's Degree in Industrial Automation
from Tsinghua University. Mr. Li was formerly the Vice-
president of China Aerospace International Holdings Ltd.
Mr. Li is also currently an executive director and Deputy
General Manager of China Everbright Group Limited and
China Everbright Holdings Company Limited. Mr. Li is the
Chairman of Shanghai Everbright Convention and Exhibition
Center Co., Ltd., Vice-chairman of China Everbright Industry
Group Limited and China Everbright Investment Management
Corporation. Mr. Li is also an executive director and Vice-
chairman of China Everbright International Limited, a publicly
listed company in Hong Kong.

MR. XU ZHENG

(Deputy Chairman and Non-executive Director)

A director of the Group since April 2004, is 49 years old.
Mr. Xu holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration.
A Senior Engineer (Professor Grade) in China, Mr. Xu was
formerly the Assistant Manager and Deputy Manager of
Shanghai No. 2 Construction Co., Ltd. He has also served as
Assistant to the General Manager, Deputy Chief Engineer and
Deputy General Manager of Shanghai Construction (Group)
General Corporation, and as General Manager of Shanghai
Construction Co., Ltd. Mr. Xu is currently an executive director
and General Manager of Shanghai Construction (Group)
General Corporation and Chairman of Shanghai Construction
Co., Ltd.
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MR. OEI KANG, ERIC

(Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer)

A director of the Group since April 2004, is 39 years old.
Mr. Oei also holds several directorships in other members
of the Group. Mr. Oei was educated in the USA and
obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics (with a minor in
Electrical Engineering), and a Master's Degree in Business
Administration. Earlier in his career, Mr. Oei worked with
Peregrine Securities Ltd. and PCCW in Hong Kong, the LG
Group in Seoul and McKinsey & Co. in Los Angeles, USA. Mr.
Oei was appointed as the Chairman of the Steering Committee
of the Group since February 2008. Mr. QOei is a son of Mr.
OEl Tjie Goan, the Chairman of the Group. Mr. QOei is also a
director and a shareholder of Creator Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company. Mr. Qei currently
is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Hong Kong
Energy (Holdings) Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

MR. WAN MAN YEE

(Executive Director and Managing Director)

A director of the Group since September 2009, is 59 years old.
Mr. Wan also serves as a director of several other members
of the Group. Mr. Wan, BBS, JP, is a registered professional
surveyor (GP) and has accumulated 40 years’ experience in
property development, construction and project management.
Mr. Wan is a fellow member of both The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors (RICS) and The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors (HKIS). He commenced his career in the civil
service in 1969 and subsequently worked for a listed real estate
group prior to starting his own practice as a property and
development consultant in 1997. He has been involved in the
development of over a hundred major real estate projects in
Hong Kong. Most recently, he was the project director for the
development of one of Hong Kong’'s most prominent landmark
buildings. In addition to his professional responsibilities, Mr.
Wan has been involved in numerous community projects in
Hong Kong.
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MR. TANG SAU WAI, TOM

(Executive Director)

A director of the Group since April 2004, is 52 years old.
Mr. Tang also sits on the boards of several other members
of the Group. A graduate of the University of Saskatchewan,
Saskatoon, Canada, Mr. Tang holds a B.Sc. (Civil Engineering)
and is both a Chartered Engineer and a Registered
Professional Engineer (Civil, Geotechnical). His other
qualifications include memberships of The Institution of Civil
Engineers (MICE) and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
(MHKIE). He joined the Group in August 2000 and was
appointed as the Chief Technical Officer of the Group since
February 2008. Before joining the Group, Mr. Tang worked
with the Hip Hing Construction Group for 20 years. During his
time with the Hip Hing Construction Group, he served as a
Consulting Geotechnical Engineer of Paul Tong & Associates
from 1980 to 1988 and as a director of Vibro (H.K.) Ltd., a
civil engineering contractor specialising in foundations, from
1988 to 2000.

MS. TERESA YEN

(Non-executive Director)

A director of the Group since October 2007, is 40 years
old. Ms. Yen is a Senior Advisor to Cerberus Asia Capital
Management, LLC. (“Cerberus”), a substantial shareholder
of the Company. In her capacity as Senior Advisor, Ms. Yen
is responsible for advising the Cerberus group on all of its
investments in the Greater China region, including the PRC,
Hong Kong and Taiwan. Moreover, Ms. Yen brings particular
expertise to real estate and real estate related transactions.
Prior to joining Cerberus, she was part of the KPMG real estate
consulting practice where she managed real estate consulting
engagements involving United States, Japan, Korea and
Taiwan, and worked extensively in the distressed debt market
in Japan between 1999 and 2001. She also has corporate and
real estate banking background from her earlier career with
Sumitomo Bank, Long-Term Credit Bank of Japan and Heller
Financial. Ms. Yen received her undergraduate degree from
University of California at Berkeley and her master degree in
business administration from University of Southern California,
Marshall School of Business.

MR. WAN MING SUN

(Non-executive Director)

A director of the Group since February 2008, is 36 years old.
Mr. Wan holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from
[llinois Wesleyan University in U.S.A. Mr. Wan is a Senior
Equity Analyst for Penta Investment Advisers Ltd. (“Penta”),
a substantial shareholder of the Company. He has over 10
years’ investment experience. Prior to joining Penta, Mr. Wan
worked for UBS AG, Hong Kong as a Director of Sales Trading
and was responsible for trading Asian equities and generating
investment ideas for clients. Asiamoney’s annual poll named
Mr. Wan The Best Regional Sales Trader in 2003. Mr. Wan’s
knowledge of the real estate sector is extensive.
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MR. LIU GUOLIN

(Non-executive Director)

A director of the Group since July 2001, is 59 years old.
Mr. Liu is a graduate of Shanghai University of Finance &
Economics where he majored in Infrastructure Financing. A
Senior Accountant, Mr. Liu currently serves as a director and
General Accountant of Shanghai Construction (Group) General
Corporation and is also the Vice President of Shanghai
Construction Co., Ltd. His career to date includes extensive
experience in finance and corporate matters.

MR. FAN YAN HOK, PHILIP

(Independent Non-executive Director)

A non-executive director of the Group since November 1999
and re-designated as an independent non-executive director
on 1 March 2010, is 60 years old. Mr. Fan holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Industrial Engineering, a Master’s Degree in
Operations Research from Stanford University and a Master’s
Degree in Management Science from Massachusetts Institute
of Technology. Mr. Fan is presently the non-executive director
of China Everbright International Limited and an independent
non-executive director of Hysan Development Company
Limited, the shares of these two companies are listed on the
Stock Exchange.

MR. CHUNG CHO YEE, MICO

(Independent Non-executive Director)

A director of the Group since April 2004, is 49 years old. Mr.
Chung graduated from the University College, University of
London, England with a Law Degree in 1983. After qualifying
as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1986, Mr. Chung spent 2 years
working with the commercial department of a local law firm.
He subsequently joined the corporate finance department of
Standard Chartered Asia Ltd., the investment banking arm
of Standard Chartered Bank, in 1988. In 1990, Mr. Chung
became a director and General Manager of Bond Corporation
International Ltd., leaving to join China Strategic Holdings Ltd
in 1992.

In March 1999, he joined the Pacific Century Group as
executive director with responsibility for the group’s merger
and acquisition activities. Mr. Chung is currently an executive
director of PCCW Limited and the non-executive chairman of
CSI Properties Limited (formerly known as Capital Strategic
Investment Limited), both companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chung was a director of E2-Capital (Holdings)
Limited (now known as CIAM Group Limited) and Pacific
Century Insurance Holdings Limited (a company formerly
listed on the Stock Exchange).
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MR. CHENG YUK WO

(Independent Non-executive Director)

A director of the Group since July 2004, is 49 years old.
Mr. Cheng holds a Master of Science Degree in Economics,
Accounting and Finance and a Bachelor of Arts (Hons.)
Degree in Accounting. He is a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ontario. His
career includes more than 20 years’ accounting and corporate
advisory services expertise in several listed companies in Hong
Kong. The co-founder of a Hong Kong merchant banking firm,
Mr. Cheng is the proprietor of a certified public accountancy
practice in Hong Kong.

Mr. Cheng is currently an independent non-executive
director of CSI Properties Limited (formerly known as Capital
Strategic Investment Limited), South China Land Limited, 21
Holdings Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, Chia Tai
Enterprises International Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited
and CPMC Holdings Limited, all being Hong Kong companies
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheng was a non-executive
director of Henry Group Holdings Limited and an independent
non-executive director of Jessica Publications Limited (now
known as Honbridge Holdings Limited).

MR. ALBERT THOMAS DA ROSA, JUNIOR

(Independent Non-executive Director)

A director of the Group since September 2004, is 56 years
old. Mr. da Rosa holds both Bachelor’s and Master’s Law
Degrees from the University of Hong Kong. He was qualified
as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1980. He currently is a
practicing solicitor and a partner of Messrs. Cheung, Tong &
Rosa, Solicitors, Hong Kong. Mr. da Rosa is a fellow of the
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors, a member of the Hong Kong Securities Institute
and the Society of Registered Financial Planners, and also an
Accredited Mediator of Centre for Effective Dispute (CEDR).
He is a non-executive director (formerly independent non-
executive director, redesignated on 30 September 2004) of
TCL Multimedia Technology Holdings Limited (formerly known
as TCL International Holdings Limited before 25 February
2005) and the company secretary of Y.T. Realty Group
Limited and Yugang International Limited, all of which are
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. da Rosa serves
as Chairman of the Appeal Tribunal (Buildings) Panel, Deputy
Convenor and member of the Solicitors Disciplinary Tribunal
Panel, and member of the Panel of the Board of Review
(Inland Revenue) respectively. He also served as member of
the Academic and Accreditation Advisory Committee of the
Securities and Futures Commission from February 2003 to
March 2009.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EXEWSEE

The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board”)
have pleasure in presenting to shareholders their report
together with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2009.

Principal activities and geographical analysis of
operations

The principal activities of the Group are property development
and investment, alternative energy investment and
management, infrastructure and construction. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities are set out in pages 179 to 188 of the consolidated
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2009 by operating segments is set out in note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2009 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 67.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 2008.

The Board proposes to make a bonus issue of new shares
of HK$0.01 each to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company a date which is
tentatively set to be on 12 May 2010 (the “Record Date”) on
the basis of 1 bonus share for every 10 ordinary shares to be
held. The bonus shares will be issued and credited as fully
paid upon issue and will rank pari passu in all respects with
the existing shares with effect from the date of issue. The
bonus issue will be funded by way of capitalisation of certain
amount standing to the credit of the Company’s contributed
surplus account and is conditional upon the approval of the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company
to be convened, and the granting by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) of the listing
of, and permission to deal in, the new shares to be issued
pursuant thereto.
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Results and appropriations (continued)

The Board also proposes to make a bonus issue of warrants
to its shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on the Record Date on the basis
of 1 bonus warrant for every 10 ordinary shares to be held.
The subscription price of HK$0.50 is determined based on a
discount of approximately 27% to the average closing price of
the ordinary shares of the Company for 5 consecutive trading
days immediately prior to the announcement dated 22 March
2010.

Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited (“HKE”), a non-wholly
subsidiary of the Company, proposes to issue new bonus
shares (“HKE bonus shares”) and new bonus warrants (“HKE
bonus warrants”), subject to certain conditions. The Company
proposes to reduce certain amount in its share premium
account and transfer the reduced amount to the credit of its
contributed surplus account for distribution to its shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on the Record Date on the basis of one HKE bonus
share and one HKE bonus warrant for every approximately
165 shares to be held and one existing HKE share for every
approximately 144 shares to be held. The proposed reduction
of certain amount in its share premium account and the
proposed distributions will be subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company to
be convened.

For details, please refer to the respective announcements
of the Company and HKE both dated 22 March 2010 which
were separately published on the websites of the Company,
HKE and the Stock Exchange.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Principal properties
Details of the principal properties held for development,
investment and sale purposes are set out on pages 190 to 192.

Share capital and warrants

Details of movements in the share capital and warrants of
the Company during the year are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-
laws of the Company (“Bye-Laws”) and there is no restriction
against such rights under the law of Bermuda.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHREE

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves

At 31 December 2009, the distributable reserve of the
Company available for distribution was HK$90.4 million (2008:
Nil), representing the credit amount of contributed surplus
account arising from the reduction of share premium account
approved by a special resolution on 10 June 2009.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
189.

Donations
During the year, the Group made no charitable and other
donations. (2008: HK$5.0 million).

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

*  OEl Tjie Goan (Chairman)

* LI Xueming (Deputy Chairman)

* XU Zheng (Deputy Chairman)

#  OEl Kang, Eric (Chief Executive Officer)

#  WAN Man Yee (Managing Director)
(appointed on 4 September 2009)

#  TANG Sau Wai, Tom

#  TSANG Sai Chung, Kirk
(resigned on 4 September 2009)

#  CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph
(resigned on 4 September 2009)

*  YEN Teresa

*  WAN Ming Sun

* LIU Guolin

@ FAN Yan Hok, Philip (re-designated as Independent
Non-executive Director on 1 March 2010)

@ CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico

@ CHENG Yuk Wo

@ Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior

# Executive Director
* Non-executive Director
@ Independent Non-executive Director
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with Bye-law 85 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, Mr. TANG Sau Wai, Tom, Ms. Teresa
YEN and Mr. WAN Ming Sun will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election as Directors of the Company.
Mr. WAN Man Yee who was newly appointed by the Board on
4 September 2009, will also retire from office in accordance
with Bye-law 84 and will offer himself for re-election as
Director of the Company.

Further, Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip who was re-designated
by the Board as Independent Non-executive Director on 1
March 2010, will also retire from office and offer himself for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Prior
to his re-designation, Mr. Fan did not have any executive
or management role or functions in the Group nor had he
throughout such period been under the employment of any
member of the Group. Notwithstanding his relationship with
the Group as a non-executive director of the Company prior
to his re-designation, the Board considers that Mr. Fan is
independent and satisfies the independence criteria in Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

The Company has also received from each of the other
Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that all of them to be
independent.

Directors’ service contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Share option schemes

Share options of the Company

The Company’s existing share option scheme (the “HKC
Option Scheme”) was adopted on 16 June 2006. Particulars
of the HKC Option Scheme are set out below:

(a) Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high
caliber Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds an
equity interest (“Invested Entity”) or Invested Entities,
to recognise the significant contributions of the Eligible
Persons to the growth of the Group or Invested Entities
by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain ownership
interest in the Company and to further motivate and
give incentives to these Eligible Persons to continue to
contribute to the long term success and prosperity of the
Group or Invested Entities.

(b) Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the Group or any Invested Entity who, in
the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group
or any Invested Entity.

(c) Maximum number of shares available for issue
The total number of shares of the Company which may
be issued upon exercise of all options granted or to be
granted under the HKC Option Scheme is 821,279,383
shares which represent approximately 8.74% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
Annual Report.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person
The total number of shares of the Company issued and
to be issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised
or outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue;

(ii) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company must not exceed
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and not
exceed HK$5 million in aggregate value.
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Share option schemes (continued)
Share options of the Company (continued)

(e)

(f)

)

(h)

Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the
date on which it is granted or such shorter period as the
Board may specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held

At the time of the grant of an option, the Board must
specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the
date of offer and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid
upon acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option

The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;
(i) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.
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Share option schemes (continued) BEREE @
Share options of the Company (continued) ERAR ZERE @
(i) Remaining life (i) BRT A
The HKC Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will RIEEERREAEET 2 26K - BRIEBITRILE - B
expire on 16 June 2016 unless otherwise terminated in EREREIRETEFEATE  WER T —7RF N
accordance with the terms of the HKC Option Scheme. B+/<Bf@m
Movements of share options during the year are as FREIRESE BT ¢
follows:
Number of share options
BREHE
Adjustment Exercise
made during price per
Nature of  Outstanding at Cancelled/  the year Outstanding at 31 share (HKS)
Name interest 1 January 2009  Granted  Exercised Lapsed  (Note 1) December2009 Date of grant Exercise period (Note 1)
Bk
RZBENE 4
R=ZENE B/ Fnfz t-A=1-8 (B7)
#e REME -A-RATE BRE  BAE BAY BE(ME) A RLAS s (k1)
Directors
gz
OEl Kang, Eric Personal 562,500 - - - 56,250 618,750 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.291
ZHl A “EFRET-ATRE 14 December 2016
“TTLE+-ATEAZE
- ETZATREA
937,500 - - - 93,750 1,031,250 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.291
Z255E+ZATHA 14 December 2016
“TZ\E+-AtEAZE
- ETZATREA
300,000 - - - 30,000 330,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1505
“ZZ)\E-h-H 31 January 2018
“ZENE-A-AZE
ZE-\E-A=1-H
450,000 - - - 45,000 495,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1505
“ZZ)\5-h-H 31 January 2018
“Z-3%_f-RA%
ZE-\E-A=1-H
750,000 - - - 75,000 825,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1505
“ZZ)\5-h-H 31 January 2018
“2—%-f-A%
ZE-\E-A=1-H
Family 562,500 - - - 56,250 618,750 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.291
Rik “TENETZATHER 14 December 2016

“ER+E+-A1EAZ
“E-NET-ATEA
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Share options of the Company (continued) NN Iod 4 )
Number of share options
BREHA
Adjustment
made during
Nature of  Outstanding at Cancelled/  the year Outstanding at 31
Name interest 1 January 2009  Granted  Exercised Lapsed  (Note 1) December 2009 Date of grant
R=2ENEF
R=ZENE B/ Emfre t=A=1-8
#e BEME -f-RATE BRE 2R BRY AR AT RLAH
937,500 - - - 93750 1,031,250 15 December 2006
ZZTRETZATHA
300,000 - - - 30,000 330,000 1 February 2008
—ZZ\E-A-H
450,000 - - - 45000 495,000 1 February 2008
—ZZ\EZA-H
750,000 - - - 75000 825,000 1 February 2008
“ZZ\EZA-H
TANG Sau Wai, ~ Personal 3,600,000 - - - 360,000 3,960,000 15 December 2006
Tom {EIN “ZERETZATHA
il
5,900,000 - - - 590,000 6,490,000 15 December 2006
ZEEETZATEA
1,500,000 - - - 150,000 1,650,000 15 December 2006
ZEEETZATEA
800,000 - - - 80,000 880,000 1 February 2008

22/ -A-8

Exercise
price per
share (HKS)
Exercise period (Note 1)
=1
iR
(B7)
s (Hf3t1)
15 December 2008 to 1.291
14 December 2016
ZZE\ETZATHAZE
“EREt-ATRR
1 February 2009 to 1.505
31 January 2018
“EENE-A-HZ
ZE-\E-A=1-H
1 February 2010 to 1505
31 January 2018
—T-TE-f-AZ
ZE-\E-A=1-H
1 February 2011 to 1505
31 January 2018
“5—%-f-A%
ZE-\E-A=1-H
15 December 2007 to 1.291
14 December 2016
“TRLE+-ATERE
“E-EFTZATHEA
15 December 2008 to 1.291
14 December 2016
“TI\E+-AtERZE
“EFtZATEA
15 December 2009 to 1.291
14 December 2016
“ITNE+-ATERZE
“EFtZATHEA
1 February 2009 to 1.505
31 January 2018
“EENE-A-HZ
5 \E-A=1-H
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Name

i3

FAN Yan Hok,
Philip
B

CHUNG Cho
Yee, Mico
Rz

Share option schemes (continued) BEREE @
Share options of the Company (continued) ERAR ZERE @
Number of share options
BREHA
Adjustment
made during
Nature of  Outstanding at Cancelled/ the year Outstanding at 31
interest 1 January 2009  Granted  Exercised Lapsed  (Note 1) December 2009 Date of grant
R=ZB0E
RZZENE B/ Emfte t=A=1-8
BEME -f-RATE BRE 2R BAY BEMWE1) A BB
1,200,000 - - - 120000 1,320,000 1 February 2008
“ZZ\EZA-H
2,000,000 - - - 200,000 2,200,000 1 February 2008
“ZZ\EZA-H
Personal 600,000 - - - 60,000 660,000 1 February 2008
fEA “ZZ\E-A-H
900,000 - - - 90,000 990,000 1 February 2008
“ZZ\E-A-H
1,500,000 - - - 150,000 1,650,000 1 February 2008
“Z5)\#ZF-H
Personal 600,000 - - - 60,000 660,000 1 February 2008
fEA “ZZ\EZA-H
900,000 - - - 90,000 990,000 1 February 2008
“Z5)\#ZF-H
1,500,000 - - - 150,00 1,650,000 1 February 2008
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“FIN\F-H-H

Exercise period

i

1 February 2010 to
31 January 2018
“T-TFCR-HE
5 \E-A=1-H
1 February 2011 to
31 January 2018
“5—%-f-A%
5 \E-A=1-H

1 February 2009 to

31 January 2018
“ZENE_A-HAZE

“E-\E-A=t-H
1 February 2010 to

31 January 2018
“Z-25-f-A%

“E-\E-A=t-H
1 February 2011 to

31 January 2018
“F——F-R-HE

5 \E-A=1-H

1 February 2009 to

31 January 2018
“ZENF-A-HZE

ZE-\E-A=1-H
1 February 2010to

31 January 2018
“E-FA-RE

5 \E-A=1-H
1 February 2011 to

31 January 2018
“2——5-f-A%

F-\§-A=1-H

Exercise
price per
share (HKS)
(Note 1)
sl
TR
(B7)
(Hf3E1)

1.505

1.505

1.505

1.505

1.505

1.505

1.505

1.505



Share option schemes (continued) BEREE @

Share options of the Company (continued) ARARZERE @
Number of share options
BREHA
Adjustment Exercise
made during price per
Nature of  Outstanding at Cancelled/ the year Outstanding at 31 share (HK$)
Name interest 1 January 2009  Granted  Exercised Lapsed  (Note 1) December 2009 Date of grant Exercise period (Note 1)
sl
R=ZB0E e
RZZENE Bi#/ Emfrte t=A=1-8 (B7)
#e BEME -f-RATE BRE 2R BRY AR A RELASH s (1)
CHENG YukWo  Personal 600,000 - - - 60,000 660,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1505
ggn {EIN “ZE\F-F-H 31 January 2018
“ZENE-A-AZE
—Z-\§-A=1-H
900,000 - - - 90,000 990,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1505
“ZZ\EZf-A 31 January 2018
—“Z-ZF-R-HZ
- \f-A=1-H
1,500,000 - - - 150,000 1,650,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.505
—ZZ\E-A-H 31 January 2018
“2——5_f-H%
—2-\E-A=1+-H
Albert Thomas ~ Personal 600,000 - - - 60,000 660,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1505
DAROSA, fHA “ZE/\f-R-H 31 January 2018
Junior “ERNF-A-HE
B —F-\§-A=1-H
900,000 - - - 90,000 990,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2010t 1.505
“ZZ\E-A-H 31 January 2018
“2-ZF-R-HZ
—2-\E-A=1-H
1,500,000 - - - 150,000 1,650,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.505
“ZE\fZh-H 31 January 2018
“5—%-f-A%
—Z-\§-A=1-H
Sub-total 75zt 33,000,000 - - - 3,300,000 36,300,000
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Share option schemes (continued) BEREE @
Share options of the Company (continued) ERAR ZERE @
Number of share options
BREHA
Adjustment Exercise
made during price per
Nature of  Outstanding at Cancelled/  the year Outstanding at 31 share (HK$)
Name interest 1 January 2009  Granted  Exercised Lapsed  (Note 1) December 2009 Date of grant Exercise period (Note 1)
sl
R=ZB0E e
RZZENE B/ Fhftz T-A=t-A (B7)
#E BRME -B-RkGFE BRE B BRYM HE(ME) AMTE REAH (i3] (Hf3E1)
Employees and 23,300,000 - - (11,600,000) 1,170,000 12,870,000 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.291
other ZEERETZATEA 14 December 2016
participants “E5ET-ATRRAE
(Note 2) “E-~E+ZATEA
EEREM 42,450,000 - - (19,200,000) 2325000 25,575,000 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.291
SHAT ZEENETZATREA 14 December 2016
(FirzE2) “F3/\t-FfRRE
ZT-ETZATRA
33,250,000 - - (14,500,000) 1875000 20,625,000 15 December 2006 15 December 2009 to 1.291
“ZENE+T-FTREA 14 December 2016
“EENET-RTRRE
ZEETZATRA
5,000,000 - - - 500,000 5,500,000 3 July 2007 15 December 2007 to 2091
“TZ+ELA=A 2 July 2017
“E5ET-ATRRAE
“E-tErAzH
2,500,000 - - - 250,000 2,750,000 3 July 2007 15 December 2008 to 2091
g 2 July 2017
“25\ET-ATRRAZ
“E-tErAZH
2,500,000 - - - 250,000 2,750,000 3 July 2007 15 December 2009 to 2091
“TZ+ELA=A 2 July 2017
“EENET-RTRAE
“E-tEvAzH
35,780,000 - - (12,240000) 2354000  25894,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.505
“ZZ\EZf-A 31 January 2018
“EENE-A-BZ
“F-\§-A=1+-A
53,670,000 - - (18,360,000) 3,531,000  38841,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2010t 1.505
“ZZ\EZf-H 31 January 2018
“%-%%-f-R%
“F-\§-A=1+-A
89,450,000 - - (30,600,000) 5885000 64,735,000 1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.505
“ZZ\E-f-H 31 January 2018
“F——£-f-HZ
“F-N\§-A=1-R
Sub-total /\gF 287,900,000 - - (106,500,000) 18,140,000 199,540,000
Total 5t 320,900,000 - - (106,500,000) 21,440,000 235,840,000
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Share option schemes (continued)

Share options of the Company (continued)
Notes:

1.

In accordance with the HKC Option Scheme, the exercise price
of the share options was adjusted from HK$1.420 per share,
HK$2.300 per share and HK$1.656 per share to HK$1.291
per share, HK$2.091 per share and HK$1.505 per share
respectively, and the total number of shares to be issued upon
exercise of the outstanding share options was also adjusted
correspondingly on 30 October 2009, as a result of the bonus
issue of shares by the Company in October 2009.

Mr. TSANG Sai Chung, Kirk and Mr. CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph
resigned as Executive Directors of the Company with effect from
4 September 2009. Details of the outstanding share options
held by them during the year ended 31 December 2009 were
accounted and described under the heading “Employees and
other participants”. Such details were previously accounted and
described under the name of the respective Directors in the
Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2008
and interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2009.

Share options of the Company’s subsidiary

Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited (“HKE”), a subsidiary
of the Company, adopted a share option scheme (the “HKE
Option Scheme”) on 27 May 2008. Particulars of the HKE
Option Scheme are set out below:—

(a)

(b)

(c)

Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high
caliber Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract
human resources that are valuable to the HKE Group
or any entity in which any member of the HKE Group
holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested
Entities”), to recognise the significant contributions of
the Eligible Persons to the growth of the HKE Group or
Invested Entities by rewarding them with opportunities to
obtain ownership interest in HKE and to further motivate
and give incentives to these Eligible Persons to continue
to contribute to the long term success and prosperity of
the HKE Group or Invested Entities.

Eligible persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the HKE Group or any Invested Entity who,
in the sole discretion of the board of directors of HKE,
have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the HKE Group or any Invested Entity.

Maximum number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares of HKE available for issue
under the HKE Option Scheme is 76,353,475 shares
which represent approximately 9.87% of the issued
share capital of HKE as at the date of this Annual Report.
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Share option schemes (continued)

Share options of the Company’s subsidiary (continued)

(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible person
The total number of shares of HKE issued and to be
issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the
shares of HKE in issue;

(ii) a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of HKE must not exceed 0.1% of
the shares of HKE in issue and not exceed HK$5
million in aggregate value.

(e) Period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option
An option must be exercised within 10 years from the
date on which it is granted or such shorter period as
the board of directors of HKE may specify at the time of
grant.

(f)  Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held
At the time of the grant of an option, the board of
directors of HKE must specify the minimum period(s), if
any, for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised.

(g) Period open for acceptance of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the
date of offer and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid
upon acceptance.

(h) Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option
The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;
(i) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

(i) Remaining life
The HKE Option Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 27 May 2018 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the HKE Option Scheme.

No option has been granted by HKE under the HKE Option

Scheme since inception up to the year ended 31 December
2009.
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Directors’ interests in securities

At 31 December 2009, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the
Company were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company:

Name of Director

BEEng EmME
OEl Kang, Eric Personal
=l ELA
Corporate
NC]|
Joint
[
Family
ENI
TANG Sau Wai, Tom Personal
BL<p(E fEA
Family
Kk
FAN Yan Hok, Philip Personal
BIEE [EUN
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico Personal
ERE fEA
CHENG Yuk Wo Personal
ERGRAN fEA
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior Personal
Z9E fEA

Nature of interest

EENEF 2ER

RZBTZAF+-_A=1t—0 BEZRARFETETHRA
BRARAHEEMEBZEZE(EEREFRBEED([E
MGG ) BXVERZ Bt - RO REFTHEEE
AR M E RGIF3521E R EFEM B 2w Mok
B RRBARERM 2 EHRAME A EHEITAR
SETESRXZNFRETRI([FETRA DR ERANE A AT]
NP2 B RORRINTE

() RERAROGREBROZFR :

Approximate
percentage of the
existing issued
share capital of the

Number of Shares Company
HAARRE

2 BITRA

RGEAR BHABEDE
20,567,310! 0.219%
3,734,927,7432 39.752%
105,548,5653 1.123%
3,300,0004 0.035%
16,639,6215 0.177%
196,2425 0.002%
3,300,0007 0.035%
3,300,0008 0.035%
3,300,000° 0.035%
3,300,00010 0.035%
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Directors’ interests in securities (continued)
(ii) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
of associated corporation of the Company:

Name of associated corporation

oL R

Hong Kong Energy (Holdings)
Limited (“HKE")

BEFRER ()
BRAT([EEFEEIR])

Notes:

Name of
Director

EEHR

OEl Kang, Eric
=M

TANG Sau Wai, Tom
B=p(E

1. The personal interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents

EENESF2ER@®

(i) REQXREBEZERGREABRDZHFR

Nature of
interest Number of Shares
ERME gk =]

Corporate ‘A 7] 666,883,510

Personal & A 1,190,84812

Joint [ 14,783,616!3

Personal & A 80214

Family K& 1,12715
BEE -

Approximate
percentage of the
existing issued
share capital

of the associated
corporation

A EEREE
BATIRA

BABE DL

86.318%
0.154%
1.914%
0.001%

0.001%

1. ERRAEZEAESENARRMETRAREEERZ

an interest in 17,267,310 underlying shares in respect
of warrants issued by the Company and an interest in
3,300,000 underlying shares in respect of options granted
by the Company as detailed in “Share Option Schemes”
section above.

The corporate interest of Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric represents an
interest in 3,388,248,209 shares of the Company and an
interest in 114,875,094 underlying shares in respect of
warrants issued by the Company held by Creator Holdings
Limited (“Creator”) and an interest in 231,804,440 shares
of the Company held by Genesis Capital Group Limited
(“Genesis”). Both Creator and Genesis are owned as to
50% by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and as to the remaining 50%
by his wife, Mrs. OEIl Valonia Lau.

The joint interest of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric represents an
interest in 82,905,135 shares of the Company and an
interest in 22,643,430 underlying shares in respect of
warrants issued by the Company jointly held with his wife,
Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau.
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Directors’ interests in securities (continued)
Notes: (continued)

10.

11.

The family interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an
interest in 3,300,000 underlying shares in respect of
options granted by the Company to Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau.

The personal interest of Mr. TANG Sau Wai, Tom
represents an interest in 127,986 shares of the Company,
an interest in 11,635 underlying shares in respect of
warrants issued by the Company and an interest in
16,500,000 underlying shares in respect of options
granted by the Company as detailed in “Share Option
Schemes” section above.

The family interest of Mr. TANG Sau Wai, Tom represents
an interest in 179,889 shares in the Company and an
interest in 16,353 underlying shares in respect of warrants
issued by the Company held by his wife.

The personal interest of Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip
represents an interest in 3,300,000 underlying shares in
respect of options granted by the Company as detailed in
“Share Option Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico
represents an interest in 3,300,000 underlying shares in
respect of options granted by the Company as detailed in
“Share Option Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. CHENG Yuk Wo represents
an interest in 3,300,000 underlying shares in respect of
options granted by the Company as detailed in “Share
Option Schemes” section above.

The personal interest of Mr. Albert Thomas DA ROSA,
Junior represents an interest in 3,300,000 underlying
shares in respect of options granted by the Company as
detailed in “Share Option Schemes” section above.

The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents
(i) an interest in 20,031,979 underlying shares in respect
of warrants issued by HKE held by Creator, (ii) an interest
in 1,321,199 underlying shares in respect of warrants
issued by HKE held by Genesis, and (iii) an interest
in 572,598,298 shares in HKE held by the Company,
and (iv) an interest in a zero coupon convertible note
issued by HKE to the Company with a principal amount
of RMB73,500,000 carrying rights to convert into
72,932,034 shares in HKE at a conversion price of
HK$1.1388 per share (subject to adjustment). Since the
Company is held as to approximately 36.06% by Creator,
which is owned as to 50% by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and as
to the remaining 50% by his wife, Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau,
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is deemed to be interested in the same
parcel of shares in which the Company is taken to be
interested in HKE.

EENES2ER@

Eﬂ

BiEE - (88

10.

11.

=M SEAE 2 RIEESIERARRR T RIS L 2 BiE
5 482 3,300,000 FE AR ) fE 2

SPE A 2 A AR IERN 127,986 R A A AR ) < #E
- EBARBIPTEITRER AR 2 11,6358/ M
*&m LA R B b X[ B i st 8 | — SR PRt AN R R PR
BB A% 75 82 16,500,000/ HE B AR fn 1 25

E\\ —fI.‘
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16,353 AR D ©
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25 o

%5‘&&2 B A MRS FE B 3 B RR M T &) | — &R Pt
N B BT B % 48 75 188 2 3,300,000 A% 48 B8 A% 17 4

E)
o

e EZ EAR SRR DX AR 8 | — &R
all 7 2% B P % i R 5 B <2 3,300,000 5 48 8 A 1) 4

Ny
ZS o
m

FEIAELE 2N EE’EJ:XW%I&*%E.#*U —#h
LA X B PR H B s 4 A B 72 3,300,000 3 4R B A

o

)5#
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1T B B2 20,031,979/ HEBAAR D #E %5 ¢ (i) EE &l

PSR BB R 1TRREE B2 1,321,199/%
RER RS ¢ (DA R R FTH5 572,598,298 & 8 #
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Directors’ interests in securities (continued)
Notes: (continued)

12.  The personal interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents
an interest in 1,190,848 underlying shares in respect of
warrants issued by HKE.

13.  The joint interest of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric represents an
interest in 1,586,000 shares of HKE and an interest in
13,197,616 underlying shares in respect of warrants
issued by HKE jointly held with his wife, Mrs. OEI Valonia
Lau.

14. The personal interest of Mr. TANG Sau Wai, Tom
represents an interest in 802 underlying shares in respect
of warrants issued by HKE.

15.  The family interest of Mr. TANG Sau Wai, Tom represents
an interestin 1,127 underlying shares in respect of
warrants issued by HKE held by his wife.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules.

Directors’ right to acquire shares or debentures

Save as disclosed under section headed “Directors’ interests
in securities” above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
that enabled the Directors of the Company or any of their
spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ interests in contracts of significance
Apart from those disclosed in item (ii) under section headed
“Connected transactions” below and set out in notes 42(c)
and (d) to the consolidated financial statements, no contract
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ interests in competing businesses

Mr. OEI Tjie Goan is the chairman and a director of PT.
Sinar Mas, a company together with its subsidiaries,
associates, including Asia Pulp & Paper Company, Ltd.,
and its holding companies (if any) (the “Sinar Mas Group”)
are engaged in, among other things, general trading and,
property development and investment. One of the business
activities of the Sinar Mas Group is property development and
investment in the PRC. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, a member of the
Oei family and a son of Mr. OEIl Tjie Goan, does not have any
directorship in the Sinar Mas Group.

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is an executive director of HKE whose
principal business activities include alternative energy
business.

Mr. LI Xueming is a director of China Everbright Group
Limited, China Everbright Holdings Company Limited and
China Everbright International Limited, together with their
subsidiaries, associates, and holding companies (the “China
Everbright Group”) and Mr. FAN Yan Hok, Philip is a non-
executive director of China Everbright International Limited,
a member of the China Everbright Group. Part of its business
activities include (i) environmental protection business; (ii)
infrastructure; and (iii) property investment.

Mr. LIU Guolin and Mr. XU Zheng are directors and senior
management in Shanghai Construction (Group) General
Corporation (together with its subsidiaries, associates and
holding companies (if any), the “Shanghai Construction
Group”) which is a former substantial shareholder (as defined
in Part XV of the SFO) as well as a sub-contractor and a joint
venture partner for certain construction projects of the Group.
One of its business activities is construction business in the
PRC.

Having considered that the Company itself has its own
management supervising the daily operation and making
financial and business decisions, the Company can operate
its business independently of, and at arm’s length from the
businesses of the Sinar Mas Group, China Everbright Group
and the Shanghai Construction Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested
in any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
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Substantial shareholders’ interests in securities

At 31 December 2009, the following persons (other than a
director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company as recorded in the register required to be kept

under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company

Name of Shareholder

BRRGEE, £

OEl Valonia Lau
2=

Creator Holdings Limited
RIEEBEERAR

Stephen A. FEINBERG

Cerberus Institutional Associates, L.L.C.
Promontoria Europe Investments XII LDC
Promontoria Holding Cooperatie U.A.
Promontoria Holding XXI B.V.

Penta Investment Advisers Limited

John ZWAANSTRA

Mercurius GP LLC

Penta Asia Fund, Ltd.

Todd ZWAANSTRA
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Nature of interest

EEME

Personal

EA

Corporate

e

Joint

A

Family

ENS

Beneficial owner
ERHEAA
Corporate

NC]

Corporate

NG]

Corporate

NI

Corporate

NC]

Corporate

NG]

Investment manager
REKE
Corporate

NG]

Founder of a discretionary trust
ERETESEINA
Corporate

NC]

Trustee

EFEA

FERRNES 2 ER
RZEZAF+-_A=+—8 UTAT(BFHAQFE
ZITBRABBRINRAR R ZRG RABEKRMDPHEEZELER
EH LHEEOIE336EREFENE LM ERmXE

RAEQXTRRG RAERD 2FR

Number of shares

R EE

3,300,000!

3,734,927,7432

105,548,565°

20,567,310

3,503,123,303°

1,572,414,800

1,572,414,8008

1,572,414,800

1,572,414,800

1,572,414,800

1,448,355,3537

1,448,355,353

561,005,431

561,005,431

561,005,431

Approximate

percentage of existing
issued share capital

of the Company
ERDRRE
EBRITRAE
BROADL

0.035%
39.752%
1.123%

0.219%

37.284%

16.736%

16.736%

16.736%

16.736%

16.736%

15.415%

15.415%

5.971%

5.971%

5.971%



Substantial shareholders’ interests in securities
(continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company (continued)

Notes:

1.  The personal interest of Mrs. OEIl Valonia Lau represents an
interest in 3,300,000 underlying shares in respect of options
granted by the Company to her.

2. The corporate interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents
an interest in 3,388,248,209 shares and an interest in
114,875,094 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by
the Company held by Creator Holdings Limited (“Creator”), an
interest in 231,804,440 shares held by Genesis Capital Group
Limited (“Genesis”). Both Creator and Genesis are owned as to
50% by Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau and as to the remaining 50% by
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric.

3. The joint interest of Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau represents an interest
in 82,905,135 shares and an interest in 22,643,430 underlying
shares in respect of warrants issued by the Company jointly held
with Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric.

4. The family interest of Mrs. OEIl Valonia Lau represents an
interest in 17,267,310 shares and an interest in 3,300,000
underlying shares in respect of options granted by the Company
to Mr. OEI Kang, Eric.

5. The beneficial interest of Creator includes an interest in
3,388,248,209 shares and an interest in 114,875,094
underlying shares in respect of warrants issued by the
Company. Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau are the
directors of Creator.

6.  The beneficial interest of Cerberus Institutional Associates, L.L.C.
includes an interest in 1,426,829,000 shares and an interest in
145,585,800 underlying shares in respect of warrants issued
by the Company held by certain funds of Cerberus which are
managed by Penta on a discretionary basis.

7. The investment manager interest of Penta Investment Advisers
Limited includes an interest in 1,320,148,301 shares and an
interest in 128,207,052 underlying shares in respect of warrants
issued by the Company held by certain funds of Cerberus which
are managed by Penta on a discretionary basis.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2009, the
Company had not been notified by any person, other than
directors and chief executive of the Company, who had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which are required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of Part XV
of the SFO.
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Connected transactions

Details of the connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions entered into by the Group during the
year are set out below:

(i)  On 12 January 2009, Yangpu Water Supply Company
Limited (held as to 65% indirectly by the Company)
entered into a supplemental agreement with Jinhai
Paper Pulping Industrial Company Limited (“Jinhai”)
for, among others, extending the term of the water
supply agreement dated 13 January 2004 (which was
amended and supplemented on 23 November 2005
and 25 April 2006 respectively) for a further period
from 1 January 2009 to 31 December 2011. Jinhai is
an associate of a connected person of the Company by
virtue of being indirectly controlled by the Oei family (the
family members of Mr. OEl Tjie Goan (the Chairman of
the Company), including Mr. OEl Kang, Eric (the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company), which is in turn a
connected person of the Company. The provision of
water supply services contemplated under the water
supply agreement and the supplemental agreement
constitute a non-exempt continuing connected
transaction under the Listing Rules and is subject to the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.35 of the Listing
Rules. For the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Group received an annual revenue of HK$24.1 million
for provision of the water supply services to Jinhai.

(i) On 2 March 2009, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a consultancy services agreement
with M 'Y Wan and Associates Limited (“MYW Limited”)
in respect of the provision of certain consultancy services
to the Group for a consultancy fee of HK$7.2 million per
annum. As MYW Limited is solely and beneficially owned
by Mr. Wan Man Yee, it becomes a connected person of
the Company upon Mr. Wan’s appointment as a Director
on 4 September 2009. The provision of services by
MYW Limited under the consultancy services agreement
constitutes continuing connected transaction for the
Company under Rule 14A.14 of the Listing Rules, and is
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Connected transactions (continued)

(iii) On 21 May 2009, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company entered into an agreement to dispose of
its 55% shareholding interest in Hong Kong Biomass
Energy (BVI) Co., Limited (the “JV Co") to the other 45%
shareholder, GeneHarbor (Hong Kong) Technologies
Limited (“GeneHarbor”), at a cash consideration of
HK$23.1 million. As 45% shareholding interest in the
JV Co is held by GeneHarbor and the JV Co is a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, GeneHarbor
is a connected person of the Company and the disposal
constituted a connected transaction for the Company
under Rule 14A.13(1)(a) of the Listing Rules, and is
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(iv) On 7 September 2009, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into a framework agreement to dispose
of its entire equity interest in, and shareholder’s loan
owing by, Yangpu Jingang Real Estate Company Limited
(the “Property Co”) to Jinhai Paper Pulping Industrial
Company Limited (“Jinhai”), at a cash consideration of
RMB28.3 million (equivalent to approximately HK$32.1
million). The consideration was determined after
arm’s length negotiations between the parties mainly
with reference to the market value of the land, being
the sole underlying asset of the Property Co. Jinhai is
indirectly controlled by the Oei family and is accordingly
a connected person of the Company. The disposal
constituted a connected transaction for the Company
under Rule 14A.13(1)(a) of the Listing Rules, and is
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Opinion from the independent non-executive directors on
the continuing connected transactions

In accordance with rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed and approved the continuing connected transactions
described in (i) and (ii) above (“Continuing Connected
Transactions”) and confirmed that the Continuing Connected
Transactions were carried out in accordance with the following
principles:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms no less favourable than
terms available to (or from) independent third parties;
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Connected transactions (continued)

Opinion from the independent non-executive directors on

the continuing connected transactions (continued)

(c) in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing the Continuing Connected Transactions; and

(d) on a fair and reasonable basis and in the interest of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Report from the auditor on the continuing connected
transactions

In accordance with rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, has
performed certain agreed upon procedures in respect of the
Continuing Connected Transactions and reported that the
transactions entered into:

(a) were approved by the Board of the Company;

(b) have been conducted in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group, if applicable;

(c) have been carried out in accordance with the terms
of the relevant agreements governing the Continuing
Connected Transactions; and

(d) have not exceeded the relevant annual caps.

Financial assistance and guarantee to affiliated
companies

The Group had provided financial assistance to, and
guarantee for, affiliated companies in the aggregate amount of
HK$1,717.2 million, which represented approximately 8.57%
of the Group’s total assets value as at 31 December 2009.
In accordance with the requirement under Rule 13.22 of the
Listing Rules, the pro forma combined balance sheet of those
affiliated companies and the Group’s attributable interests
in those affiliated companies based on their latest financial
statements available are presented below:

FERERS (#)
BUFHTESHREBERZ Z2ER (8

) REBEREFEWEISZBBmRIEK - &

DIE

(d) BATFEEELEANEARTNERRERMES

E\

K

FRFERERS 2R RE
RIE EMARANFE14A38M5 - AR BIZEREDE SRUKE G RTED

EBMCARBHERZNTETHERF  XHRERSTY
RUATERETAL

(a) BKARREBFEHE -

(b) RAKEFEERRAETAER)

() REBEEEFHEMERSZEBHRER X

(d) WEBHABFELR -
) Bk 1 RIIR A B R BY R B4R

AEEEMBBE A RIRHARLEE A1,717,200,0007% T2 8
BEMRER (hAEER -T2 HFE+-_A=+—HB2%&
EHBENSS7% - BIE ETRANFE 13222 T @ 2 S
B AR MAEE AT BEREMES - ZEHBE QR
ZEEAHEEABREASERZEHE NG 2 EHERS
PN

Combined balance Group’s attributable

sheet interests

EHEEEER AEBEEEERS

HK$ Million HK$ Million

A&BT A&BT

Non-current assets IETENEE 14,538.4 45119
Current assets RENEE 2,105.9 866.1
Current liabilities ViEI=R (4,456.2) (1,679.4)
Non-current liabilities IERFBEE (2,799.8) (1,012.4)
9,388.3 2,686.2
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Management contract

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers were less than 30% of the total value of the
Group’s purchases.

The percentage of the Group’s sales for the year attributable
to its major customers is as follows:

Sales SHER
The largest customer BARF
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREFPEE

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or shareholders
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers noted above.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s
listed securities

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the Company
repurchased its ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as
follows:

AEE | “/J

RABRFEAN T LR R ABBEARA R 2k ETE
ABOEKZEBERITHRAEL -
FEEFRHER
AEESGATEZHEN EEEELHASEREREIR
30% -
FEXPRENEREEHEERE LB HLLIT ¢
14.2%
35.8%

%
AR ETRAEE
B -

WEEMBEALIARBARR(BEEAAEE R
5%E ) EEN D AREE A ART P %

BE - HEFEEARQAF LHES

REBEE-ZTNF+_A=Z+T—HLFE ARABRER
PrEE 2 E@pan T

Total number of Price paid per Aggregate

ordinary shares ordinary share Consideration

Date of repurchase repurchased Highest Lowest paid

=4 1E BREBERZEMAER

F&[E B EBEREH 31 BRI 2 ERE

HK$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT

1 December 2009 4,115,000 0.630 0.620 2,5689,950.00

—Z22hF+-A—H

17 December 2009 1,000,000 0.590 0.590 590,000.00
ZEENFT+ZA++EH

5,115,000 3,179,950.00

The repurchased shares were cancelled during the year and
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the
nominal value thereof.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities during the year.

BOROHENFAZH  MARRDETRANTRMEZE
Mtz EER D °

BEXEEEN  ARAHEEFAMBERRMERFARE
B - WESBEOAR BRI LHES
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Corporate governance
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 22 to 33.

Model code for securities transactions by directors
The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Group are also subject to
compliance with guidelines on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code. A Code for Securities Dealings by Employees has
also been adopted in this regard.

Retirement henefits schemes
Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is set
out in note 11a to the consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

Review of the audited financial statements by audit
committee

The audit committee of the Company comprises four
independent non-executive directors with written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules, and reports to the Board. The audit committee has
reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2009.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the
reappointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board
OEl Kang, Eric

Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2010
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B A EE R

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

K B E St B A AT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HKC (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to 188, which
comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets
as at 31 December 2009, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibhility for the financial statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers B KEGSMER
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building s
Central, Hong Kong KFRE -+ M

Telephone: (852) 2289 8888
Facsimile: (852) 2810 9888

HEEH (852) 2289 8888
fH £ (852) 2810 9888

B ZHMBRE
BERER(ZR)BRATKRR
(REFEF AT FRAA])

AT RED (AT RTBI 2 ) B BRI B E67 5 188H B4
(R ERAR((RAR ) RAKBAR (U TAR&
S8 ) OGARBRE  IEANERESER-_SEAS
+o A=t BHBARATEERERARER A LFE
MEARRE  GARARRE  GARREDRNGAR

DMER  UARFESHBRMERE M TRE -

ESHMBBRRARENSE
BERAREFARARBE LSS MASRHENE BN HRE
R RIZBEBC ARG BEBERERRLEEM AT
FIZELRAMBRE - EEERERE - Bit kE#ER
HLEEMA IR RRBEOREIES] - LT
BRI FERNREFR AR MG BB A RRA : FIEFM
EREENGEEK » RRBER TMELEEMNGHERT -

RN EE
BPNECERBERMANEZHZEFSEEAMBERRELE
R WIRRAFE NN\ —FRRNE)FEOREREEBR
WE - R ZIAREFEEME R - ROITEHRARED
ARMEFAIEMA L E FSAREREE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BRI

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2009 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

,-lq/_\ | = N
:én‘/-.l_\I:l (=Nink

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-TTNF+- A=+ BLFE

2009 2008
—ETNEFE —ZTNF
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
P 5E BEBIT BEBIT

Revenue 1} = 5 378.0 294.7
Cost of sales THER AR (238.3) (242.6)
Gross profit EF 139.7 b2.1
Other income EH bz A 6 143.8 900.1
Fair value adjustments on WEYENTERARE

investment properties 16 1,085.4 (473.0)
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment BERAEREBZERD,

losses on assets (848) 7 403.0 (2,335.0)
Selling and distribution costs SHE KD AR (4.9) (10.1)
Administrative expenses THRER (281.3) (454.2)
Other and general expenses Hi M —RER (132.2) (260.5)
Operating profit/(loss) EZRN(FE) 8 1,353.5 (2,580.6)
Finance income BRI A 9 11.1 63.2
Finance costs BhE k2R 9 (183.5) (237.2)
Finance costs — net BB KA FRE 9 (7249 (1740
Share of profits less losses of FE(RE & N Ea AR E 1B

associated companies 22 44.2 (85.5)
Share of profits less losses of JE(RE &R a R RE R

jointly controlled entities 23 810.9 (81.1)
Profit/(loss) before income tax FRSMAIRT,(&i8) 2,036.2 (2,921.2)
Income tax (expense)/credit FrSR(ZH), % 12 (334.0) 1115
Profit/(loss) for the year EEERT(E5E) 1,702.2 (2,809.7)
Attributable to: BUFRES -
Equity holders of the Company AARIREETHEEA 13 1,456.7 (2,646.0)
Minority interest DB R 245.5 (163.7)

1,702.2 (2,809.7)

Earnings/(loss) per share for profit/(loss) ELFIRRESSE AR

attributable to equity holders of the Company, &% (E5i8)ZSEERF

expressed in HK cents per share (18) ' ISR EWYT 14
Basic HAR 15.9 (29.6)
Diluted e 15.6 (29.6)
Dividend 8. 15 - 121.6
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AN (=R
= éﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-TTAFT-A=+BALFE

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income
Fair value gains/(losses) on available-for-sale
financial assets
Currency translation differences
—the Company and subsidiaries
— associated companies and jointly controlled entities

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interest
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FEERT(BR)

Htt2mEUA

AL ESHEERATEKS
(E18)

ERBREER
—ARRAERE AR

~HEATRABAT
FEEEMRERA - MBRE
FEEEYALH
BT RSS2 A 488 :

ARBIBRESFEA
DERR

2009 2008
—ETNE —TT)\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEET BEET
17022 (28097)

3.7 (8.7)

(7.7) 513.2

- 72.0

___________ @40  5/65
1,698.2 (2,233.2)
1,452.4 (2,091.9)

245.8 (141.3)

1,698.2 (2,233.2)




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

™ A& =
GeEEEBER
As at 31 December 2009
RZZFFAFT-A=1T—H

2009 2008
—TTHREFE T )\F
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
BaE AEATT EE-:v
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets JEMENEE
Investment properties B 16 6,944.3 2,827.4
Prepaid land lease payments B T H I ER 17 3,403.3 5,969.7
Property, plant and equipment VI - IR AR AR
— Other property, plant and equipment —H b - HRNERE 18 861.3 937.1
— Construction in progress —EETE 18 482.3 160.3
Intangible assets WA E 19 1,191.6 1,217.2
Properties under development ERAME 20 271.0 624.3
Interests in associated companies REEE N 2 R 22 1,520.9 1,233.1
Interests in jointly controlled entities REERRZ R 23 1,854.8 1,024.0
Derivative financial instrument TTESmTE 24 5.0 5.0
Available-for-sale financial assets AL ESREE 25 27.2 23.8
Total non-current assets ERBEERT 16,561.7 14,021.9
Current assets mENEE
Inventories FE 27 12.9 43.2
Properties held for sale ESHE R 2 E 28 491.4 9.1
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEEERRYE
profit or loss ZERMEE 29 75.2 391.4
Trade and other receivables JE UG AR T % E b FR U R 30 382.4 443.8
Restricted cash ZRHRE 32 309.0 674.9
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEY 33 2,210.0 1,836.9
Total current assets np=E=EReE 3,4809 3,399.3
Total assets BEWSE 20,042.6 17,421.2
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEERER

As at 31 December 2009

R-FEAF+=A=+—A

2009 2008
—TEHE TN\ F
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
B 5T BEET BEATT
EQUITY S
Capital and reserves attributable to ELFIRRESFEA
equity holders of the Company B E R R
Share capital & 34 93.9 82.5
Reserves i 35 12,335.6 10,756.4
Equity attributable to equity holders EATIRRERBEA
of the Company E{LER 12,429.5 10,838.9
Minority interest DEEERER 974.4 7429
Total equity gaesm 13,403.9 11,5818
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FERBDER
Borrowings = 37 3,330.1 3,197.1
Other non-current payables HipIEmE RN R 39 325.7 299.3
Deferred income tax liabilities FEREFTER B E 38 1,110.2 776.9
Total non-current liabilities FRBDAaEEE 4,766.0 14,2733
Current liabilities g A=K
Trade and other payables FESTBR IR N E fth FE SRR 39 1,033.7 1,154.6
Borrowings B 37 466.2 399.0
Amount due to a shareholder e — 2R FIA 36 362.1 -
Current income tax liabilities BIERFTS R B & 10.7 12.5
Total current liahilities mENARRE 1,872.7 11,566.1
Total liabilities Agke® 66387 5,839.4
Total equity and liabilities BaRaEwsE 20,042.6 17,421.2
Net current assets mEEE R 1,608.2 1,833.2
Total assets less current liabilities FEAHERTBAR 18,169.9 15,855.1
OEI Kang, Eric =R
WAN Man Yee B E
Directors 2=
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BALANCE SHEET
BERER

As at 31 December 2009
R=FEAF+-A=+—H

ASSETS
Non-current asset
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

Current liabilities

Other payables

Amount due to a shareholder
Amount due to a subsidiary

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

OEIl Kang, Eric
WAN Man Yee
Directors

"E
FREEE
KB ARZIRE

mENEE
FE LB B X A1 3RIR

BAHEERRaRIIR

ZEMEE
LA & YUK
REMRSEFEY

EN R E R

HEMRR

o

FAFIRREZI[TEA

BB LR
G

Haen
mENRR

HA 55K
e — R BER TR

e — &M B A B 3K0R

Rt ]
HaRARER
=R

X
5%

Note
5T

21

21

29
30
33

34
35

39
36
21

2009 2008
“TEBNFE —TT)N\F
HK$ Million  HKS Million

BEBT BEBT
164.1 18.4
10,576.4 9,451.2
62.5 63.5

0.5 -

8.5 131.1

,,,,,, 106479 96458
10,812.0 9,664.2
93.9 82.5
10,293.5 9,411.2
10,387.4 9,493.7

62.5 74.1

362.1 -

- 96.4

,,,,,,,,, gedey  1/05
10,812.0 9,664.2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
LeEDEER

For the year ended 31 December 2009
HE-TTNF+- A=+ BLFE

Attributable
to equity
holders of the Minority Total
Company interest equity
ZAN/NS =
BBEAEN LERREER EiaR
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BaE BEET AEET BEBT
Balance at 1 January 2008 R-SENE
—R—H#&R 13,395.0 (9.6) 13,3854
Loss for the year AFE 8 (2,646.0) (163.7) (2,809.7)
Other comprehensive income: Htt2EWA :
Fair value losses on AMRHESREE
available-for-sale financial assets X F{EE518 35 (8.7) - (8.7)
Currency translation differences [ i & =58 35 562.8 22.4 585.2
Total comprehensive income TEEZEITAEE
for the year (2,091.9) (141.3) (2,233.2)
Employee share option benefits 2 ERBAXERET 35 69.0 - 69.0
Issue of scrip dividends ARG EETE 34 1.4 - 1.4
Share premium arising from issue  Z£7TLARR L BRARID E 4
of scrip dividend 2B mE 35 50.1 = 50.1
Exercise of bonus warrants ITE AT R R R A 75 35 0.6 - 0.6
Exercise of share options 1T{EREAS 35 6.4 = 6.4
Repurchase of shares BRI 34,35 (186.4) = (186.4)
Contribution from minority B AR LERETE
shareholders in subsidiaries - 375.7 375.7
2007 final dividend —EELFRAKRE (283.7) - (283.7)
2008 interim dividend —ETN\FHHRE 15 (121.6) - (121.6)
Dividends paid to minority B DEHRRRR S
shareholders - (2.9) (2.9)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B A A = 519.1 519.1
Repayment of amounts due to BEEMNVHBAREKIE
minority shareholders - 19 19
42 8938 4296
Balance at 31 December 2008 R_EEN\EF
+-RA=1+—B#&ek 10,838.9 742.9 11,581.8

72 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2009



Balance at 1 January 2009

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Fair value gains on
available-for-sale financial assets

Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Employee share option benefits
Exercise of bonus warrants
Repurchase of shares
Release of reserves upon disposal
and liquidation of subsidiaries
Release of reserve upon disposal
of available-for-sale
financial assets
Increase in minority interest upon

R-BBAF
—R— Bk

NEFESmF
HttZEKA :
AHHESHEE
N ERE
EHBRE=RE

FEEREBRARE

e B AR

TTIEATFISR A A S

BRI

HERBRIMB AR
By R PR (o

HEAHEESRERE
W R IR

RAFZ EHHE QA

exercise of bonus warrants issued P B 1TAT M) R & HE 5

by the listed subsidiary
of the Company

Gain on deemed disposal of
equity interest in an
associated company

Dividends paid to minority
shareholders

Repayment of amounts due to
minority shareholders

Balance at 31 December 2009

EITEERDBRIR
R IE N
BIEHE — 2 QA
Pt o ek

BN DR

EEREN D BIRR IR

R-BEHhE
+=-R=1+—H#&ek

Attributable

to equity
holders of the Minority Total
Company interest equity

NN R = T
BBEAEL  LERFER e
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BaE BEET AEET BEBT
10,838.9 742.9 11,581.8
1,456.7 2455 1,702.2
35 3.7 - 3.7
35 (8.0) 0.3 (7.7)
1,452.4 245.8 1,698.2
35 28.1 - 28.1
34,35 117.1 - 117.1
34,35 (3.2) - (3.2)
35 (3.9 (12.7) (16.6)
35 0.1 - 0.1
- 5.3 5.3
= (5.7) (5.7)
= (3.4) (3.4)
- 2.2 2.2
,,,,,,,,,,, 1382 (43 1239
12,429.5 974.4 13,403.9
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2009
BE-ZTZAF+_A=1+—HI=FE

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash (used in)/generated from operations
Income tax paid, net

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Dividend received
Construction costs paid for investment
properties under development
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds from the disposal of
— Property, plant and equipment
— Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
— Available-for-sale financial assets
— Subsidiaries
Advance for the proposed disposal of
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Payments for the acquisition of interests/

additional interests in associated companies

Decrease in net advances to
associated companies

Increase in net advances to jointly
controlled entities

Purchase of subsidiaries (net of cash and
cash equivalent acquired)

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of share warrants
and options
Payment for repurchase of ordinary shares
Repayment of bank and other loans
Decrease in restricted cash
Increase in new bank and other loans
Increase in amount due to a shareholder
Contribution from minority shareholders
in subsidiaries
Dividends paid to Company’s shareholders
(Net of the impact of scrip dividends)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders
Interest paid

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing
activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
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General information

HKC (Holdings) Limited (the “Company” or “HKC") is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the business of
property development and investment, alternative
energy investment and management, infrastructure and
construction. The investments of the Group are mainly
located in the Mainland China.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in million of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ Million),
unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22 March 2010.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of HKC
(Holdings) Limited have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of investment properties, available-
for-sale financial assets, financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
and derivative financial instrument.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group
The Group has adopted the following new and
amended HKFRSs as of 1 January 2009:

e HKFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments —
Disclosures’ (amendment) — effective
1 January 2009. The amendment
requires enhanced disclosures about fair
value measurement and liquidity risk.
In particular, the amendment requires
disclosure of fair value measurements
by level of a fair value measurement
hierarchy. As the change in accounting
policy only results in additional
disclosures, there is no impact on
earnings per share.

e HKAS 1 (revised), ‘Presentation of
financial statements’ — effective 1
January 2009. The revised standard
prohibits the presentation of items of
income and expenses (that is, ‘non-owner
changes in equity’) in the statement
of changes in equity, requiring ‘non-
owner changes in equity’ to be presented
separately from owner changes in equity
in a statement of comprehensive income.
As a result the Group presents in the
consolidated statement of changes
in equity all owner changes in equity,
whereas all non-owner changes in
equity are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
Comparative information has been re-
presented so that it also is in conformity
with the revised standard. Since the
change in accounting policy only impacts
presentation aspects, there is no impact
on earnings per share.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

HKFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’ —
effective 1 January 2009. HKFRS
8 replaces HKAS 14, ‘Segment
reporting’. The new standard requires a
‘management approach’, under which
segment information is presented
on the same basis as that used for
internal reporting purposes. This has
resulted in an increase in the number
of reportable segments presented. In
addition, the segments are reported in a
manner that is more consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (the “CODM").
The CODM makes strategic decisions.
Comparative figures for 2008 have been
restated.

‘Improvements to HKFRSs’ (issued
in October 2008). The improvements
include 35 amendments across 20
different standards that largely clarify the
required accounting treatment where
previous practice had varied, and have
resulted in a number of changes in the
Group’s accounting policies. The only
amendment included in ‘Improvements
to HKFRSs’ that has had a significant
impact on the Group’s accounting
policies is the amendment to HKAS 40,
‘Investment property’ (and consequential
amendments to HKAS 16, ‘Property,
plant and equipment’).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)
As a result of the adoption of the HKAS 40
Amendment during the year, the portfolio
of properties accounted for as investment
properties has been expanded to include
investment properties being developed.
Previously, only completed investment
properties were accounted for as investment
properties.

The effects of the changes following the
adoption of HKAS 40 Amendment on the

consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2009 are as follows:

Increase/(decrease) in profit for the year

Fair value adjustments on investment properties
Share of profits less losses of jointly
controlled entities

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interest

Earnings per share (HK cents)
Basic

Diluted

78 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2009

2 FESHBERMEwm@m)

2.1 RBEEE @)
EITHEREECEE (E)

(a)

AR BB 2 # ] RIS AT 2R ()

HRFRARATE G EANEL0MRERTA
ARIER BRI DEEAEBAZERR
BRTPREYE - BERACDERREDE
IVERBMER -

BB B HER BRI AR H R E =
TENF+- A=+ BLFERAENE
BB PENT

HK$ Million
BEBTT
REFE A, O
HEYERNTFEHE 985.6
JE(hE &R A afREE
802.6
FriS iR A 1,788.2
iR = (246.4)
AEE @A 1,541.8
AT pE(L -
RARIREESHEA 1,260.3
LHAT R R 281.5
1,541.8
FREAEFCEIL)
HK 13.8
g 13.5



2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a)

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

The effects of the changes following the
adoption of HKAS 40 Amendment on the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2009 are as follows:

Increase/(decrease)

Prepaid land lease payments
Investment properties

Properties under development
Interests in jointly controlled entities

Total assets

Reserves
Minority interest

Total equity

Deferred income tax liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Other new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations, which are
mandatory for the first time for the financial
year beginning 1 January 2009, are not
relevant for the Group or do not have material
impact on the Group in the year ended 31
December 2009.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

2 FEEHEEBEm)
2.1 REEE(m)

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group

The following standards and amendments to
existing standards have been published and
are mandatory for the Group’s accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
or later periods, but the Group has not early

EIHERREECEE (#)

(b) HAREMAAEETERFRAER - &
REERZ B MarkE

UTRERGAEVAE_ZT—FTF—HA—H
FARFEIG 2 AR Bt HA B IL HE R
R - MEANEE I IR R RN 2 2R N
REERZERT

adopted them:

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

BAMBREERFE 1R (KERT)

HKFRS 1 Amendment

BARMBHREEFEIRHERTA)

HKFRS 2 Amendment

BRMBREERFE2HR(ERTA)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

BB REERFEI(KERT)

HKFRS 9

BB wEER B

HKAS 24 (Revised)

BAGETERE 245 (185T)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

BAGETERE275 (1I85T)

HKAS 32 Amendment

BAEGETEREI25R (BEFTA)

HKAS 39 Amendment

BAGETEREI9R (BETA)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14

HEA(BBRIMBRERELZES)
—RIRE 145

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17

HEA(BBRITBRERELZES)
—RBE17H

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18

HEA(BBRIMBRERELZES)
— R85

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19

HEA (BRI BRERELZES)
—RRE195

Annual Improvements Project

FENUCGEIRE
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Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RTHABRRZ
#HRZETHBEN
First-time Adoption of HKFRS 1 July 2009
BN E B TS %R —EENFEA—HR
Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters 1 January 2010
BIRERNE 2 BN R —E-TH—-HA—H
Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment 1 January 2010
Transactions —E—ZTF—H—H
SEReEERNDETRZ S
Business Combinations 1 July 2009
¥BE0t —EEhFEA—HR
Financial Instruments 1 January 2013
THTAE —E—=%—HA—H
Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011
B A TR —E——%—HA—H
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 1 July 2009
RE MBS IR —EENFEA—R
Classification of Rights Issues 1 February 2010
oA —ZT—FTF-A—H
Eligible Hedged Items 1 July 2009
BEBEDHRIER —EENFEA—AR
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement 1 January 2011
BIRESHTE 2B —E——%—HA—H
Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners 1 July 2009
M#EBADIKFEREEE —EENFEA—H
Transfers of Assets from Customers 1 July 2009
RERFPCAEEE —EENFEA—HR
Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity 1 July 2010
Instruments B il =

DT EREeRmAaE
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
ZEENFEEBM B ImELER 2 e

1 January 2010
e S



2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

2.2

(b)

Standards, amendments and interpretations
to existing standards that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)

The Group do not early adopted the new
standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations, which have been issued
but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2009. The Group has
commenced an assessment of the related
impact but is not yet in a position to state
whether any substantial changes to the
Group’s accounting policies and presentation
of the financial information will result.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying
a shareholding of more than one half of
the voting rights. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEGHBESE@m
(continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2 ZEEEm)
(a) B1EZLE](#E)

The purchase method of accounting is used
to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries
by the Group. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange,
plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in the income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary in the consolidated
financial statements to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEGHBESEm
(continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b) Transactions and minority interests

2.2 ZEEEm)
(b) BHLERFEZXLE

(c)

The Group applies a policy of treating
transactions with minority interests as
transactions with parties external to the Group.
Disposals to minority interests result in gains
and losses for the Group and are recorded in
the consolidated income statement. Purchases
from minority interests result in goodwill, being
the difference between the consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary.

Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over
which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associated
companies are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost. The Group’s investment
in associated companies includes goodwill
(net of any accumulated impairment loss)
identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associated companies’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in the consolidated income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements
in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associated company equals or exceeds
its interest in the associated company,
including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associated
company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(c)

(d)

Associated companies (continued)
Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associated companies are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associated companies. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associated companies have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the
investments in associated companies are
stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associated companies
are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a contractual
arrangement whereby the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity which
is subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over
the economic activity.

Investments in jointly controlled entities
are accounted for by the equity method
of accounting. The consolidated income
statement includes the Group’s share of the
results of jointly controlled entities for the
year, and the consolidated balance sheet
includes the Group’s share of the net assets
of the jointly controlled entities and goodwill
(net of any accumulated impairment loss) on
acquisition.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in jointly controlled entities are
stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivables.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the steering
committee that makes strategic decisions.

24

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency
ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). With effect from
December 2008, the Company’s functional
currency is Renminbi and the Group’s
presentation currency is Hong Kong dollars to
facilitate analysis of the financial information of
the Group, which is listed in Hong Kong.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are
remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency
classified as available-for-sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the security,
and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences related to
changes in the amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESTBEME@m
(continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

24 HNEBREE)
(b) ﬁ(\gﬁnnﬁ/ﬁ( E)

(c)

Translation differences on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Translation difference on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available for sale are included in
the available-for-sale investments reserve in
equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each
consolidated income statement are
translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that
were recorded in equity are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss
on sale.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies (continued)
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Properties are interests in buildings other than
investment properties and are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Water utility plant and equipment, electric utility
plant and equipment, other plant and equipment,
comprising plant and machineries, motor vehicles
and furniture and fixtures are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

No depreciation is provided on properties under
development.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line basis, to write
off their cost over their estimated useful lives or
remaining useful lives for those second-hand assets
and the estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 50 years
Water utility plant and equipment 15 years
Electric utility plant and equipment 20 years
Other plant and equipment 3to 15 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

All direct and indirect costs relating to the
construction of property, plant and equipment,
including borrowing costs during the construction
period are capitalised as the costs of the assets,
which are classified as construction in progress.
No depreciation is provided on construction in
progress.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

25

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Subsequent costs are included in the carrying
amount of the asset or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated will flow to
the Group and the cost of item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part
is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.12).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within other income or other
and general expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising
leasehold land and office buildings, is held for long-
term rental yields and is not occupied by the Group.
Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property when the
rest of the definition of investment property is met.
In such case, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases.

Property that is being constructed or developed as
investment property is carried at fair value. Where
fair value is not determinable, such investment
property under construction is measured at
cost until either its fair value becomes reliably
determinable or construction is completed
(whichever is earlier).

Investment property is measured initially at its
cost, including related transaction costs. After
initial recognition at cost, investment property are
carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined at each reporting date by external
valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If the information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices
on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. These valuations are reviewed annually
by Knight Frank Petty Limited (“Knight Frank”), an
independent professional valuer.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)
2.6 Investment properties (continued)

2.7

The fair value of investment property reflects,
among other things, rental income from current
leases and assumptions about rental income
from future leases in the light of current market
conditions.

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property. Some of those outflows are recognised
as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in
respect of land classified as investment property,
others, including contingent rent payments, are not
recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequently expenditure is included in the
asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the
asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments are stated at cost and
subsequently are amortised in the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease or when there is impairment,
the impairment is expensed in the consolidated
income statement. During the course of the
properties development, the amortisation charged is
included as part of the costs of the properties under
development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.8

2.9

Completed properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are initially measured at
the carrying amount of the property at the date of
reclassification from properties under development.
Properties remaining unsold at the end of the year
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost comprises development costs attributable to
the unsold properties.

Net realisable value represents the management’s
estimated selling price based on prevailing market
conditions less costs to be incurred in selling the

property.

The Company transfers a property from investment
property to inventories/properties held for sale when
and only when there is a change in use, evidenced
by commencement of development with a view to
sale. The deemed cost of the properties held for
sale transferred from investment property is the fair
value of the property at the date of change in use.

Properties under development

Properties under development including the
properties developed for self use or resale purposes
comprises development cost of properties and the
costs paid to acquire land use rights which are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Development cost of properties comprises
construction costs, borrowing costs and professional
fees incurred during the development period. Upon
obtaining the land use right certificates, the costs
paid for land use rights are transferred to prepaid
land lease payments. On completion, the properties
under development are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.10 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost
of an acquisition over the fair value of the
Group’s share of net identifiable assets of the
acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Separately
recognised goodwill is tested for impairment
at every reporting balance sheet date based
on the higher of value in use and fair value
less costs to sell and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
losses on goodwill are not reversed. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the
entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that
are expected to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill arose.

Concession rights

The costs incurred for the construction or
upgrade work or the acquisition of the toll road
under the service concession arrangements of
the Group with relevant local governments are
accounted for an intangible asset if the Group
receives a right to charge users of the toll road.

These expenditures are amortised on an
units-of-usage basis, making reference to the
proportion of actual traffic volume achieved
for a particular period over the total projected
traffic volume throughout the periods within
which the Group is granted the rights to
operate the toll road. The total projected
volume of the respective concession right
is reviewed regularly with reference to both
internal and external sources of information
and appropriate adjustments are made should
there be a material change.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHBESEm
(continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (continued) 2.10EEEE (#)

(b) Concession rights (continued)
Land use rights acquired in conjunction with
the service concession arrangement which the
Group has no discretion or latitude to deploy
for other services other than the use in the
service concession are treated as intangible
assets.

(c) Biomass technology

Separately acquired biomass technology is
shown at historical cost. Biomass technology
has a finite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment and
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of 5 years.

(d) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Other intangible assets have
a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment and amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5
years.

2.11 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,

associated companies, jointly controlled
entities and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not
yet available for use are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
which are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEGHBESEm
(continued)

2.12 Impairment of property, plant and equipment 2,12 % - KBEREUREREAFHERLE

and finite life intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent, if any, of the impairment loss. Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, not to exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset or
cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.

2.13 Construction contracts

Contract costs are recognised as an expense in the
period when they are incurred. When the outcome
of a construction contract cannot be estimated
reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to the
extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable. When the outcome of a construction
contract can be estimated reliably and it is probable
that the contract will be profitable, contract revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract.
When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHBESEm
(continued)

2.13 Construction contracts (continued) 2.13ZESH )

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included in contract revenue
to the extent that may have been agreed with
the customer and are capable of being reliably
measured.

The Group uses the “percentage of completion
method” to determine the appropriate amount to
recognise in a given period. The stage of completion
is measured by reference to contract costs incurred
up to the balance sheet date as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract. Costs
incurred in the year in connection with future
activity on a contract are excluded from contract
costs in determining the stage of completion. They
are presented as inventories, prepayments or other
assets, depending on their nature.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount
due from customers for contract work for all
contracts in progress for which costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses) exceed
progress billings. Progress billings not yet paid by
customers and retention are included within trade
and other receivables.

The Group presents as a liability the gross amount
due to customers for contract work for all contracts
in progress for which progress billings exceed costs
incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses).
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.14 Financial assets

The

Group classifies its financial assets in the

following categories: financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss, loans and receivable and

available-for-sale. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determine the classification

of its

(a)

(b)

financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months
after the balance sheet date. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade
and other receivables”, “cash and cash
equivalents” and “restricted cash” in the
balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHBESEm
(continued)

2.14 Financial assets (continued) 214EBMEE (@)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to dispose
of the investment within 12 months of the
balance sheet date.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss” category are presented in the consolidated
income statement within other income or other
and general expenses, in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEGHBESEm
(continued)

2.14 Financial assets (continued)

214ERMEE (m)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in a foreign currency and classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. The translation
differences on monetary securities are recognised
in the consolidation income statement; translation
differences on non-monetary securities are
recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value of
monetary and non-monetary securities classified as
available for sale are recognised in equity.

When securities classified as available for sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the consolidated income statement as other income
or other and general expenses.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of
other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income which
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

For the purposes of assessing the fair value of
unlisted securities, the Group established fair value
by using valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference
to other instruments that are substantially the same,
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models, making maximum use of market inputs
and relying as little as possible on entity-specific
inputs.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FESHBESEm
(continued)

2.14 Financial assets (continued) 214EBMEE (@)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. In
the case of equity securities classified as available
for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of the security below its cost is considered
as an indicator that the securities are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised in
the consolidated income statement — is removed
from equity and recognised in the consolidated
income statement. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated income statement on equity
instruments are not reversed through the
consolidated income statement.

2.15 Derivative financial instrument

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently re-measured at their fair value
at each balance sheet date. The change in the fair
value is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2.16 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of
finished goods comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity).
It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEGHBESEm
(continued)

2.17 Trade and other receivables 2.17FEU BR 7R I EL 4t FE UL R

Trade and other receivables, including deposit paid
for a property development project, are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the
provision is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The amount of the provision is
recognised in the consolidated income statement.
When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against provision for impairment losses on assets
in the consolidated income statement. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to other income in the consolidated income
statement.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is
deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent
there is no evidence that it is probable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.18 Borrowings (continued)
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the balance sheet date.

2.19 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are
expensed.

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities on the balance sheet.

2.21 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

222 Trade payables
Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.23 Financial liahility at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial liability at fair value through profit or loss is
financial liability held for trading. A financial liability
is classified in this category as designated by the
Group upon initial recognition.

Gain or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial liability at fair value through profit
or loss” category are presented in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they arise.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEGHBESEm
(continued)

2.24 Current and deferred income tax

2. 24BN Hi RIETE FT B8

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the
consolidated income statement, except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised directly in equity.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Group’s subsidiaries and associated
companies and jointly controlled entities operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associated companies and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEGHBESE@m
(continued)

2.25 Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

2.25EEEF
(a) 1EEREEZREF

(b)

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a mandatory provident
fund scheme (“MPF"”) and employee pension
schemes established by municipal government
in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) for
the eligible employees in Hong Kong and the
PRC respectively.

The Group’s and the employees’ contributions
to the MPF comply with to the related statutory
requirements. The Group has no further
payments obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The Group’s contributions to
the MPF are expensed as incurred and are not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave MPF prior to vesting fully
in the contributions. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available. The assets of MPF are
held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

The Group’s contribution to the employee
pension schemes in the PRC is at a percentage
in compliance with the requirements of
respective municipal governments.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
2.25 Employee benefits (continued)
(c) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan in which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments of the
Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, excluding the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets).
Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. At
each balance sheet date, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are
expected to become exercisable. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in the consolidated income statement,
and a corresponding adjustment to equity over
the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.

2.26 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration and the
resurfacing and maintenance cost are recognised
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Where the Group expects a provision to
be reimbursed, for example under an insurance
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEGHBESE@m

(continued)

2.26 Provisions (continued) 2.263% 18 (&)

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.27 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods, properties and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown
net of business tax and after eliminating sales within
the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group’s activities as described below. The
amount of revenue is not considered to be reliably
measurable until all contingencies relating to
the sale have been resolved. The Group bases
its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Revenues from infrastructure and alternative
energy are generated from water supply,
electricity supply and the toll road. They are
recognised based on the following:

(@) Revenue arising from water supply is
recognised based on water supplied as
recorded by meters read during the year.

(b) Revenue arising from electricity supply is
recognised when electricity is supplied to
the provincial grid companies.

(c) Revenue arising from toll road is
recognised when services are rendered.

Rental income from investment properties is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the respective leases.

Revenue from individual construction
contracts is recognised under the percentage
of completion method.

Sales of food and beverages are recognised
in the income statement at the point of sale to
customer.

Revenue from sales of properties held for sale
is recognised upon completion of the sale
and purchase agreements or the issue of an
occupation permit, by the relevant government
authorities, whichever is the later. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold
prior to the date of revenue recognition are
included in the balance sheet under “trade
and other payables”.

Revenue from provision of software
development services is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Dividend income is recognised when the right
to receive payment is established.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

2.27 Revenue recognition (continued)

(viii)

(ix)

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Property management fee income is
recognised when the services are rendered.

Consultancy fee income is recognised when
the services are rendered.

2.28 Leases
(a) Finance leases

(b)

Leases that substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership
of assets are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the finance balance outstanding.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of
finance charges, are included in liabilities. The
finance charges are charged to the income
statement over the lease periods so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease.
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies 2 FEGHBESEm
(continued)

2.29 Contingent liabilities 229 REE

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved.

Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk, price risk, commaodity price risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, cash and bank balances,
derivative financial instrument, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale
financial assets, trade and other payables and bank
loans. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes.

It is the policy of the Group not to enter into
derivative transactions for speculative purposes.
The derivatives held are not for speculative purpose
and cannot be traded in the market. They are part
of an embedded investment rights to investment
assets and are not exposed to market risk (including
commodity price risk) since the gains and losses on
the derivatives are offset by the losses and gains on
the underlying assets.
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Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

The Group’s Board of Directors focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Board of Directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong
and Mainland China. Entities within the
Group are exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial
transactions and monetary assets and
liabilities that are denominated in a
currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency.

The Group currently does not have any
foreign currency hedging activities.
However, the management of the Group
monitors the foreign exchange exposure
closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise

If Renminbi had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against the Hong Kong dollars
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s profit before income tax would
have been HK$32.5 million lower/higher
(2008: the Group’s loss before income
tax would have been HK$45.2 million
higher/lower).

(ii)  Price risk
The Group is exposed to price risk
in relation to its investment in a
fund classified by the Group on the
consolidated balance sheet as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2009, if the price of
the investment fund held by the Group
had increased/decreased by 5%, the
Group’s profit before income tax would
have increased/decreased by US$0.4
million (equivalent to approximately
HK$3.1 million) (2008: the Group’s loss
before income tax would have decreased/
increased by US$0.4 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$3.2 million)).
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3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii)

(iv)

Commaodity price risk

The Group’s exposure to commodity price
risk relates primarily to price and cost
of raw materials which are influenced
by supply and demand conditions. The
Group historically has not entered into
any commodity derivative instruments to
hedge the exposure. Management will
monitor such risk and consider hedging
significant commodity price risk exposure
should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest-rate risk arises from
bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk due to fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate. The
Group’s income and operating cash flows
are dependent of changes in market
interest rates.

The Group does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to
interest rate risk. However, management
will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposures should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2009, if the interest
rate had increased/decreased 100
basis points with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s profit before
income tax would have decreased/
increased by HK$29.3 million (2008:
HK$26.0 million).
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3 BIBRREEm
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 MEEEE@®E
(b) Credit risk (b) EEER

The Group is exposed to credit risk in its
restricted cash, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables and deposits paid
for a property development project.

The carrying amount of restricted cash, cash
and cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables, represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

To manage the credit risk associated with
restricted cash and cash and cash equivalents,
most of the deposits are mainly placed with
certain state-owned banks in the PRC which
are high-credit quality financial institutions and
banks with high credit rankings in Hong Kong.

To manage the credit risk associated with
trade and other receivables and deposits
paid for a property development project, the
Group adopts risk control to assess the credit
quality of the customers and debtors, taking
into account their financial positions and past
experience.

There is no concentration of credit risk with
respect to trade receivables from third party
customers as the customer bases are widely
dispersed in different sectors and industries.

In addition, the Group and the Company
monitor the exposure to credit risk in respect
of the financial assistance provided to
subsidiaries, associated companies and jointly
controlled entities through exercising control
and significant influence over their financial
and operating policy decisions and reviewing
their financial positions on a regular basis.
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3.1 MBEREE@®
(c) mEEZEE

3 Financial risk management (continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is
unable to meet its current obligations when
they fall due. The Group measures and
monitors its liquidity through the maintenance
of prudent ratios regarding the liquidity
structure of the overall assets, liabilities, loans
and commitments of the Group. The Group
also maintains a conservative level of liquid
assets to ensure the availability of sufficient
cash flows to meet any unexpected and
material cash requirements in the course of
ordinary business.

The table below analyses the Group’s and
the Company’s contractual maturity for their
financial liabilities. The amounts disclosed in
the table have been drawn up with reference
to the undiscounted cash flows of the financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group and the Company can be required
to pay.

mBETEARSANEEARGEETEE R
BEEzAR - AEENBREE  BF H
REAE 2 RBE SRR  BBEFERL
FAERERARDES - ARETERR
HEENREKT - NERABTHEREDR
ERMAEERBHEMREREN2EARE

Bk e

TERAMAEBERARBRBFABZ AT
HIH - TREB KRB ERKERAR
RIANRZ &P AR BRBEZARAMERERE
MBS

Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and Over
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
—FR —EME “ERE RFENUE Ry
HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEEST BA8Er Bs%r a8aiit asgsrc
Group REE
At 31 December 2009 R-SSHE
T=ESr=1!
Bank borrowings and RITEFREMER
other loans 636.6 545.1 1,172.3 2,395.9 4,749.9
Finance lease liabilities MEHEERE 10.0 103 32.7 793 1323
Amount due to a shareholder — JEff —&IREFIE 374.8 - - - 374.8
Trade and other payables R EA
3R 1,033.7 - - - 1,033.7
Other non-current payables  EtIEmBhEN TR - - 266.3 59.4 325.7
At 31 December 2008 R-BENE
+=ZA=t+-AH
Bank borrowings and RITEFREMER
other loans 606.4 486.0 1,440.0 2,208.8 47412
Finance lease liabilities MEHERE 9.7 10.0 31.7 90.3 141.7
Trade and other payables BRI R EAb
JETR 1,154.6 = - - 1,154.6
Other non-current payables HiIEREEN T - = 2379 61.4 299.3
Company NG
At 31 December 2009 R-ZENF
T=ESr=E
Amount due to a shareholder — FEff —&IRE B 3748 n = = 374.8
Other payables Hip R 62.5 - = = 625
At 31 December 2008 R-BENE
T=A=t+-H
Other payables Hip e 74.1 - - = 74.1
Amount due to a subsidiary & —FRM B A RIFIE 96.4 - - = %.4
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B 7% BB B )
3.2 EXERERE

3 Financial risk management (continued) 3
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, raise new debt financing, issue
new shares, share option and warrant or conduct
share buy-backs.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing
its gearing ratio and cash flow requirements, taking
into account its future financial obligations and
commitments for this purpose. The Group defines
gearing ratio as net debt divided by total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total borrowings less loans
from minority shareholders (including current and
non-current borrowings shown in the consolidated
financial statements) less cash and cash equivalents
and restricted cash. Total equity is as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2009 and 2008
were as follows:

AEBEEEEAZRE RREASEFELLER
B2t BRABRREHRL KL SHE Mgz
BAE SR - WHRRENEARRBIEMRLD

RRFBAFBEARE  AREHSHARRARR
N2l BEER  SERMEBRE - BITHR -
B MR R AR S T T BB A

AEEEBRNEEERBLERREREFTL
ERAEBARE RN SZSEEARARUBKELE
FfE - AREREERBLL R AT RERFE
BRAERARRE - B FRIREREER L BRER
ER(BEGFEMBRRATRE KERBER)
WRENRESEFEBMARKTRBBRTH - #Ex
RENREEERBRIIR

R-IBZNFR-_ZZNF+-_A=+—BZE&
ERELERNT

Group

REE
2009 2008
—TTNF _—TTN\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEATT BEBIT
Current borrowings mENE 466.2 399.0
Non-current borrowings IEMBNEK 2,945.9 2,812.0
Amount due to a shareholder FEN—ZREE 1A 362.1 -

Total borrowings (excluding loans Bz (TeE L 8IREER)

from minority shareholders) 3,774.2 3,211.0
Less: Cash and cash equivalents IR NIReEEY (2,519.0) (2,511.8)
Net debt position B FRBEANR 1,255.2 699.2
Total equity R ARER 13,403.9 11,581.8
Gearing ratio BEAEBHR 9.4% 6.0%
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation
Effective 1 January 2009, the Group adopted the
amendment to HKFRS 7 for financial instruments
that are measured in the balance sheet at fair value;
this requires disclosure of fair value measurements
by level of the following fair value measurement
hierarchy:

—  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

— Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

— Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,

unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets that
are measured at fair value at 31 December 2009.

Assets BE

Available-for-sale financial assets ~ AJ{tHESREE
Financial assets at fair value BAFERERRYER

through profit or loss ZERMEE

Total assets BEMERE

3

B R b B )

3.3

AL
BE-SFENF-A—AE  AKERRAIFER
BEABRAEZSRIARMNEBMBREE
AIET75R 2 18R] - RIFERIRERILIA T AFER
EEOKFREATERE

- BAUBEMNEEXEBENERMISZHRE
OREETHEE) (F14)

— RBIRFTAZREAINATERZ (ANEBER)
HEE(ANERERELE ) BREERAE
FRSIRAIRR (F2/) -

—  WIHRREBEMSHE(BILIFBREMERA
BB ZEESXABRAER (F34) -

TREIAKER-TBAET-A=+— AR
AFEHEZAE -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F14 E2M FE3E 4z

HK$ Million  HKS$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT BEBT BEET

- 5.0 22.2 27.2
0.1 62.4 12.7 75.2
0.1 67.4 34.9 102.4

BBERER)BRARN-ZZAFFR
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PSR REE )
3.3 AR EMF @

3 Financial risk management (continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded
as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm'’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1 comprise
primarily equity investments classified as trading
securities under financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where
it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required
to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3.
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3

Financial risk management (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

e  Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

e The fair value of interest rate swaps is
calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows based on
observable yield curves.

e  The fair value of forward foreign exchange
contracts is determined using forward
exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with
the resulting value discounted back to present
value.

° Other techniques, such as discounted cash
flow analysis, are used to determine fair value
for the remaining financial instruments.

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2009.

Opening balance EERES S
Transfer into level 3 #AEIR

Gain recognised in equity AiEmER WS
Closing balance HAR 464

BiEREREE
3.3 AFEMF @
AremT AtrREEZFEHERMEIE

RAELTAZ TSHEIZSHHRE -

o MEEWHMEL 2 N ERE R BSEUa X
R REFTARRBR R RERENE -

o SESRANZATEEEERZARER
B AL BESREEE -

o EHpEA - GIMIrRB2REDN - AUAE
EHTERIAZ AFE -

TEHIRE—EEhE+— A=+ —RA L EE
CEIPTEES) o

Financial assets

at fair value
Available-  through profit or
for-sale financial loss
assets RAFET

AfHE BRERIIERZ Total

HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBT BEBT BEET

18.7 12.7 314

35 - 35

22.2 12.7 349
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4 Critical accounting estimates and judgements 4 EARXEEHAE R M E

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Valuation of investment properties/recoverahle

amount of prepaid land lease payments

The fair value of each investment property and, the
recoverable amount of prepaid land lease payments
for which there are impairment indicators, are
individually determined at each balance sheet
date by an independent valuer based on a market
value assessment. Knight Frank was engaged to
carry out the independent valuation of the Group’s
investment property and prepaid land lease
payments portfolio as at 31 December 2009. This
valuation was carried out in accordance with the
Valuation Standards on Properties of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors which defines market value
as “the estimated amount for which a property
should exchange on the date of valuation between a
willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s-length
transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently
and without compulsion”.

Knight Frank has derived the valuation of the
Group’s property portfolio by capitalising the
rental income derived from existing tenancies with
due provision for reversionary income potential
and where appropriate, by reference to market
comparable transactions. The assumptions are
based on market conditions existing at the balance
sheet date.
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4  Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(continued)

(a) Valuation of investment properties/recoverahle

amount of prepaid land lease payments
(continued)
For the prepaid land lease payments, management
determined the recoverable amount based on the
valuation report prepared by Knight Frank. Knight
Frank has adopted a direct comparison approach
whenever market comparable transactions are
available and assumed sale of the interests with the
benefit of vacant possession.

Management has reviewed the Knight Frank
valuation and compared it with its own assumptions,
with reference to comparable sales transaction
data where such information is available, and has
concluded that the Knight Frank valuation of the
Group’s investment portfolio and prepaid land lease
payments is reasonable.

If the valuation of the investment properties and
recoverable amount of the prepaid land lease
payments had been 10% higher or lower than
the value stated on the valuation report, the fair
value adjustments and reversal of provision for
impairment losses for the year arising from the
Group’s investment properties and prepaid land
lease payments, in aggregate, would have been
increased by HK$855.7 million (2008: HK$ 811.0
million) or decreased by HK$987.2 million (2008:
HK$811.0 million).

(b) Estimated impairment of concession right —
toll road
The Group tests whether intangible assets have
suffered any impairment in accordance with the
accounting policy. The calculations use pre-tax
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management.

The unit prices used for the analysis are determined
by management by reference to the agreements
approved by the government authorities. The
weighted average growth rates used are consistent
with the forecasts expected in the industry. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the relevant segments.
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4  Critical accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Estimated impairment of concession right —
toll road (continued)

If the discount rate used in the value-in-use
calculation had been 10% higher or lower than
management’s estimates at 31 December 2009,
the profit for the year for the Group’s concession
right (toll road) would have been decreased by
HK$119.8 million or increased by HK$207.4 million
(2008: loss for the year for the Group’s concession
right (toll road) would have been increased by
HK$154.2 million or decreased by HK$186.1
million).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill is
subject to any impairment losses, in accordance
with the accounting policy. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units with goodwill
being allocated have been determined based on the
higher of fair value less cost to sell and value-in-use
calculations.

If the recoverable amount of these cash-generating
business units had been 10% higher or lower than
management’s estimates, the profit for the year
for the Group’s goodwill would remain unchanged
(2008: loss for the year for the Group’s goodwill
would have been decreased by HK$65.6 million or
remained unchanged).

Estimated impairment of plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are reviewed by management
for impairment losses whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount is
the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value
in use of the plant and equipment. Management
makes judgements on whether such events or
changes in circumstances have occurred, and
makes estimates in determining the recoverable
amount. In the situation where the value in use
of plant and equipment cannot be assessed due
to the uncertainties of the operation model in the
future, management has assessed the respective
recoverable amount solely based on the fair value
less costs to sell. Provision is made when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amounts may not be recovered.

If the recoverable amount of the plant and
equipment had been 10% higher or lower than
management’s estimates, the profit for the year
for the Group’s plant and equipment would have
been increased by HK$64.4 million or remained
unchanged (2008: loss for the year for the Group’s
plant and equipment would have been decreased
by HK$35.2 million or increased by HK$45.8
million).
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4  Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(continued)

(e)

()

(2

(h)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the
Mainland China. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determined is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for potential tax exposures
based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will affect the
income tax and deferred tax provision in the period
in which such determination is made.

Fair value of derivatives, financial assets/
liahilities at fair value through profit or loss and
other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement
to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at each balance sheet date. The Group uses
discounted cash flow analysis for various available-
for-sale financial assets that were not traded in
active markets.

Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion
method in accounting for its fixed-price contracts
to deliver construction services. The use of the
percentage-of-completion method requires the
Group to estimate the services performed to date as
a proportion of the total services to be performed.

Determination of fair value of share-bhased
compensation

The Group uses the Binomial Model to determine
the fair value of share options issued during the
year. Under this model, the value of the share
options is subject to a number of assumptions such
as the risk-free interest rate, the expected life of the
options and historical volatility based on annualised
volatility of the closing price of the share. Therefore
the value may be subjective and would change
should any of the assumptions change.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

4 EXRGFHEE R E @

4  Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(continued)

(i) Allowances for bad and doubtful debts
The policy for allowance for bad and doubtful
debts of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of receivables and
management’s judgement. A considerable amount
of judgement is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including the
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer.

Segment information

Segment information disclosed in the annual report
has been prepared in a manner consistent with the
information used by the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments. In this regard, the Group is organised into
the following segments: Properties under development
(for sale or lease upon completion of construction
work), Property investment and leasing, Infrastructure,
Alternative energy, Construction, Hotel and catering
services and Other operations.

The Group’s most senior executive management assesses
the performance of the operating segments based on
operating profit/(loss) after interest income and expenses,
taxation and share of profits/(losses) of associated
companies and jointly controlled entities. Corporate
expenses mainly include the employee expenses of
the head office, interest income and expenses arising
from the holding companies and other administrative
expenses of the head office.

The Group’s segment assets exclude financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale
financial assets as well as derivative financial instrument
which are managed on a central basis. These are part of
the reconciliation to total balance sheet assets. Corporate
assets mainly include the cash at bank, property, plant
and equipment and other receivables held by the head
office. The assets of each reportable segment comprise
the inter-segment receivables.
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Segment information (continued)

Sales between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions. The revenue from external parties reported
to management is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated income statement.

The segment information for the reportable segments
for the year ended 31 December 2009 and 2008 is as

2 EPE R ()

D EBAEE THIRE A TR ZH#E A 2 HEIGTGETT © [
EEERE 2 REINAE P 2 W TR & W 3k AT
RAE—HZHAGE

RE-FENFR-FEN\FT-A=+-ALEET
SHHHW 2R WERIT -

follows:

Properties under development

ERMIE
Property Hotel and Total
Shanghai and investment Alternative catering Other  reportable
Zhejiang  Shenyang Tianjin ~ Otherarea and leasing ~ Infrastructure energy  Construction services  operations  segments
NERE BER Tzﬁ
HERMT &5 X HfE REg B OERER BE  RRRE  EhEk  SpeE
HK$ Millon ~ HKS Million  HKS Million  HK$ Millon  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HK$ Million ~ HKS$ Million - HKS Million
BEET BEBT RERT AEET  EBEERT BEET BEBT  BEBT ABEAT  BEET  BEER
Year ended 31 December 2009 HE-EBEhE
TZR=t-ALEE
Revenue from external customers REMREE 2z - - - - 1712 539 536 325 35.1 251 318.0
Inter-segment revenue P EEkE - - - - 0.7 - - 85.5 - - 86.2
Total revenue hz8E - - - - 171.9 53.9 536 118.0 35.1 2.1 4642
Operating profit(loss) BEEN/ (B8) 97137 98.0 2658 253 214 38 19 41 (215) (64.1) 15184
Finance income SBHA 15 17 15 - 09 08 0.1 - 0.1 04 70
Finance costs HERA (6.0) = = = (49.0) (132) (30.2) = (10.1) (11.5) (180.0)
Share of profits less losses of TR EARRRREE
associated companies - - - - 484 - (3.9) - - (0.3) 42
Share of profits less losses of R E AR RN AR
fointly controlled entities 801.5 - - - - - - - - 94 810.9
Profit/(loss) hefore income tax FERAER /(58 1,770.7 99.7 261.3 253 217 (68.6) (26.1) 41 (31.5) (66.1)  2,2005
Income tax (expense)/credit FER () /B (234.6) (11.8) (723 - (15.8) - - - - 05 (334.0)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERR/ (B8) 1,536.1 819 195.0 253 2159 (68.6) (26.1) 41 (31.5) (65.6)  1,866.5
Depreciation it (1.9) (1.7) 0.7 = (1.1) (209 (30.7) 21 (18 (26) (70.1)
Amortisation 3 - (13.1) (42.9) (28) - (1.0) (29 - - (2.1) (70.8)
Fair value adjustments on investment K EWEATFERZ
properties 938.4 412 - - 9.8 - - - - - 1,085.4
Reversal of/(provision for) BEBERE/ (BE)
impairment losses 59.7 733 3163 16.0 0.8) 0.2) - (9.5 (5.7 (46.1) 403.0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRMEE

5 Segment information (continued) 5 ZEER@

Properties under development

ERONE
Property Hotel and Total
Shanghai and investment Alternative catering QOther  reportable
Ihejiang  Shenyang Tianjin ~ Otherarea  and leasing ~ Infrastructure energy  Construction services  operations  segments
MERE BER 2R
i Xz EftiE 2B BRER BE RRRE tEw  HHEE

7 V2N 4
HK$ Millon  HK$ Millon ~ HK$ Million  HKS Millon ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Millon~ HK$ Millon ~ HK$ Million  HKS Million ~ HKS$ Million
BEST EEAT BEET  BEST  BEAR AEkT  BEBT BEkT BEAT BEET  BEER

Year ended 31 December 2008 HE-ZINE

+ZR=t-ALEE
Revenue from external customers REMRRE 2 Wz - - - - 86.6 480 624 367 205 405 2947
Inter-segment revenue AHEkRE - - - - 15 - - 2309 - - 224
Total revenue B&AE - - - - 881 480 624 2676 205 405 5211
Operating profit/(loss) BERR/(HB) (8753)  (2919) 2563 (30.2) (3L7) (446.2) (94.6) (34) (533) (7739 (2344))
Finance income BHERA 34 39 22 - 70 28 10 - - 33 236
Finance costs BERA - - - - (101.3) (71.4) (348) - (5.7) 87 (2219
Share of profits less losses of ElRBenm R
associated companies - - - - (75.3) - (10.2) - - - (85.5)
Share of profits less losses of EhagnaatnEs
Jointly controlled entities (84.1) - - - - - - - - 30 8L11)
Profit/(loss) hefore income tax SRR/ (58) (956.0)  (2879) 2585 (302 (013 (6148 (1386) (34) (590)  (7763)  (2,709.0)
Income tax (expense)/credit (%) /88 549 - 45.6) - %95 - - (25) - 52 1115
Profit(loss) for the year REERN/ (BB (90L.1) (287.9) 2129 (302) (101.8) (514.8) (1386) (69 (59.0) (771.1)  (2597.5)
Depreciation E (16) (08) (04) - (1.0) (21.4) (333) (38) (66) 37 (726)
Amortisation ] (1405) 9.1) (44.2) (16) - (5.5) (46) - - (12 (121
Fair value adjustments on investment ~ REME A TESZE
properties - - - - (473.0) - - - - - (473.0)
Impairment losses HEEE (3250)  (451) (4942 (286) (1) (4443)  (1068) - - (6139)  (2259.0)
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5 Segment information (continued)

As at 31 December 2009 REBEAFTZR=1-R
Total assets EEgE
Total assets include: EESERE:
Interests in assoclated companies  HBAATZER
Interests in jointly controlled entites ~ FRASAT 2%
As at 31 December 2008 RZ2ENETZAZ1-B
Total assefs BELE
Total assets include: BESERE:

Interests in associated companies RBERR 2R
Interests in jointly controlled entiies ~ RALAF z#E%

A reconciliation of profit/(loss) for the year of reportable
segments to profit/(loss) for the year of the Group is

provided as follows:

5 2HER@
Properties under development
EESES
Property Hotel and Total
Shanghai and investment Alternative catering Other  reportable
Ihejiang ~ Shenyang Tianjin ~ Otherarea  and leasing ~ Infrastructure energy  Construction  services  operations  segments
NERE BER EES:
HERHIT 25 X EftR  RES 2R OBRER BE RRRE EtER H988
HKS Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HKS Millon ~ HKS Milion  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Millon ~ HK$ Milion  HKS Million ~ HKS Million  HKS Million
BEET BEAT RERT AEET AEEL BEET BEAT AEET REAT  BEET  AEEL
6,108.1 14208 28129 1328 51638 14498 2,140.0 1,817.0 695.3 543 21,7948
- - - - 3064 - 656.2 - 564.9 (66) 15209
1,856.2 - - - - = - - = (14) 18548
43246 13102 24070 1168 46455 1,460.1 1,564.4 1,1428 706.0 Q2 177696
- - - - 259.2 - 4161 - 564.0 62 12331
1,0339 - - - - - - - - 99 10240

Profit/(loss) for the year of reportable segments

Unallocated amounts:
Corporate expenses
Intra group elimination

Profit/(loss) for the year of the Group

A 2HHFFREN,(E18)
AOBLERHER
EMAX
SE AR H

AEEFREN,(BE)

AI2/A 2 FREN,(BER)BREEFREF,(BE)
HERWE

2009 2008
—ZETNF —EENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEATT BEET
1,866.5 (2,597.5)
(154.6) (100.9)
(9.7) (111.3)
1,702.2 (2,809.7)
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e BRRME

5 oIdER@E

5 Segment information (continued) Wil
Reportable segments’ assets are reconciled to total assets A 2RO EPEELEEEMABEERNT
as follows:
2009 2008
—ETNF —EENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BHEBIT BEETT
Total segment assets DEREEETE 21,794.8 17,769.6
Head office assets PR EREE 1,523.0 1,800.7
Intra group elimination SEREL (3,416.4) (2,600.8)
Derivative financial instrument PTHESBMIA 5.0 5.0
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESREE 27.2 23.8
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ZAFEEEZRIEREZ B EE 75.2 391.4
Other unallocated amounts HivRoBLe%E 33.8 315
Total assets per consolidated balance sheet FEEEBBERMTNEERSE 20,042.6 17,421.2
Analysis of revenue by category: EofEElD 2 WeamH AT -
2009 2008
ZZETNF ZET)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
Egi%ﬁ k:‘ Q%/}E-k/]_
Infrastructure and alternative energy EZNERER 122.6 137.0
Rental income U A 122.2 86.6
Contract revenue &k 325 36.7
Sales proceeds from properties held for sale HEFEEEMEFTSIIE 55.0
Catering services B RIE 35.1 20.5
Others Hih 10.6 13.9
378.0 294.7

Revenue from external customers in the Mainland China HE—
for the year ended 31 December 2009 are HK$336.9
million (2008: HK$245.4 million), and the total of
revenue from external customers from other areas is

HK$41.1 million (2008: HK$49.3 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2009, revenue of
approximately HK$53.6 million (2008: HK$62.4 million)
derived from a single external customer is attributable
to the alternative energy business and revenue of

/%7'13)

HE—_ZT

Ek=gav=

approximately HK$24.1 million (2008: HK$30.3 million)
derived from a single external customer is attributable to

the infrastructure business.
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Other income

Write back of provision for
— impairment losses on trade receivables
— management fee for vacant units in

properties (Note (a))

Gain on the completion of liquidation of
subsidiaries

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Gain on deemed disposal of equity interest
in an associated company

Property management fee income

Net exchange gain

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net gain arising from the loss and compensation
of a piece of land (Note (b))

Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss — net

Consultancy fee income

Dividend income

Others

Notes:

6 HiblgA

2009 2008
ZETNF —ZTTN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBIT BEBT
BRI T SIERE
— EWERRUREEE 1.3 1.5
—MREEEBMNERE
(MF3E(a)) 65.6 -
MR RNER MR 2 WS
24.3 -
L EMREA Rz WE 7.2 -
BRIELE M E A RRA R
& 5.7 -
YRS B 14.5 12.8
P& 5 Uy 55 58 12.8 -
HEWE - R R ERE 2.6 -
EiEk—lR it R ESHEMEL:
W FEE (M (b)) - 794.0
BRATETERRIEZEMEE
NEEWE—F5E - 515
RER B UL A - 24.8
B BMA - 26
Hit 9.8 12.9
143.8 900.1
5

(a)

The Group has considered the payment for management
fee in respect of some of its vacant units in its investment
property portfolio is fairly remote. As a result, a total of
HK$65.6 million was written back.

On 26 March 2008, a piece of land originally held by the
Group was exchanged for another piece of land owned by
local government authority. As a result, with reference to
the fair value of the new land, a gain of HK$794.0 million
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2008.

(b)

AEBRBAREIREMEAE 2B EEEMNNE
BENEERER  FEERES 65,600,000 -

RZZBZNF=ZA-+RA  AEEREFAEZ BT
M T B EEER 25— Bt o @it 2F
Mtz AFER  RBE-_TEN\F+-_A=+—H
1 E#7R794,000,000%8 7T 2 Was °
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e BRRME

7 Reversal of/(provision for) impairment losses 7 EEREESBEER (BE)

on assets

Reversal of/(provision for) impairment loss on
— prepaid land lease payments, net
— intangible assets
— goodwill
— properties, plant and equipment
— other receivables
— trade receivables
— other

8 Operating profit/(loss)

Operating profit/(loss) is arrived at after charging the

following items:

Employee benefit expenses
(including directors’ emoluments) (Note 11)

Employee share option benefits (Note 11)

Amortisation
— prepaid land lease payments (Note 17)
—intangible assets (Note 19)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
(Note 18)

Cost of inventories

Cost of properties sold

Direct operating expenses arising from investment
properties that generate rental income

Donations

Auditor’s remuneration — audit service

Net exchange losses

Operating lease payments

Research and development expenses

Write down of inventories

126 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2009

REEE @A ()
— BN LA EFOFE
—EBVEE
kS
—ME - W RRE
s LN
— AR
—Hfty

8 EERA(EE)
LT/ (B1B) BB THIER -

BERNFAX(BEEEHE)
(F&ELL)

B BB R A (FIRELL)

HiH
—Taf L E R (HREL7)
—EEE(MEL)

W% - Hes R REITE (ML)

FEARA
BEMERA
RIS M Z AR Y
BEEEEY

B

BBEIIE — B R
FE 52 515

EBEFE

MEkHAEER
T &R

2009 2008
T NF —EENEF
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBIT EF=-¥ m
465.2 (1,052.3)
(0.8) (479.0)

= (375.7)

= (341.5)

(9.6) (85.4)
(6.4) (1.1)

(45.4) -

403.0 (2,335.0)

2009 2008
—ZETNEF —ETN\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBIT BEBT
(157.8) (156.2)

(28.1) (69.0)

(64.6) (114.7)

(10.3) (14.2)

(76.4) (75.5)

(40.4) (54.5)

(56.1) -

(0.2) (11.6)
= (5.0)
(4.8) (5.6)
= (82.1)
(16.1) (17.8)
(0.3) (6.9)
4.2) (19.7)




9 Finance income and costs

9 MBWARBERMAE

2009 2008
—ETNF e AN
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBT

Interest expenses: MBERAX :
Bank loans wholly repayable within 5 years HRITEN - ERAFAEEMEE (86.5) (118.3)
Bank loans not wholly repayable within 5 years RITEN - BARAFREEMER (119.0) (137.4)
Other loans wholly repayable within 5 years H B BRAFTARIEE (3.8) (14.1)
Other loans not wholly repayable within 5 years HMER  BARAFAZIER (5.5) (6.4)
(214.8) (276.2)
Less: capitalised in construction-in-progress T ERIRERENMEE Y 31.3 39.0
Finance costs RhE AR (183.5) (237.2)
Finance income — interest income on bank deposits Bf %W A — $R1T7F 2 F B WA 11.1 63.2
Net finance costs BB KA (172.4) (174.0)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

10 Directors’ and senior management's emoluments 10 EERSREEEMS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEE<
The remuneration of every director for the year EREENHE_ZTNF+_A=1+—"HIEFE
ended 31 December 2009 is set out below: WS mT

Employer’s

Salary contribution

and other  Discretionary to pension
Fees benefits bonuses scheme Total

BRE

Name of FahH FElz
directors/ex-directors BEHEEES we A8 H) BIEIEAL  REMR 4BRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET TET TET
OEl Tjie Goan #2ER 100.0 - - - 100.0
LI Xueming AR 100.0 - - - 100.0
XU Zheng ®1E 100.0 - - - 100.0
OEl Kang, Eric == 175.0 9,280.0 2,600.0 24.0 12,079.0
WAN Man Yee R E 33.3 2,340.0 3,000.0 - 5,373.3
TANG Sau Wai, Tom Brz 100.0 1,848.0 1,165.0 12.0 3,125.0
YEN Teresa g 100.0 - - - 100.0
WAN Ming Sun FERLL 100.0 - - - 100.0
LIU Guolin [N 100.0 - - - 100.0
FAN Yan Hok, Philip BB 200.0 - - - 200.0
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico BEE 200.0 - - - 200.0
CHENG Yuk Wo B AN 200.0 - - - 200.0
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior Z&slia 200.0 - - - 200.0
TSANG Sai Chung, Kirk @ 4L 118.1 4,915.6 - 17.5 5,051.2
CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph @ [REJ%@ 118.1 4,217.0 - 16.6 4,351.7
1,944.5 22,600.6 6,765.0 70.1 31,380.2
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10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments 10 EERSHEEEMS @)
(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (a) E=M< @
The remuneration of every director for the year BREERBE_ZEENF+_A=+—HILEE
ended 31 December 2008 is set out below: ST :

Employer's

Salary contribution

and other  Discretionary to pension
Fees benefits bonuses scheme Total

Name of ek EREEHE
directors/ex-directors S HIESHA we HipaH BYSTE4L ZEEMR ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET FET FTET
OEl Tjie Goan TR 95.8 - - - 95.8
WANG Jun @ FE@ 25.0 - - - 25.0
LI Xueming ZEAgf 95.8 - - - 95.8
XU Zheng R1E 95.8 - - - 95.8
OEl Kang, Eric =i 95.8 8,325.0 - 12.0 8,432.8
CHEN Libo @ BRI 70.8 5,276.0 - 9.0 5,355.8
NG Chi Man, Michael @ R 414 2,588.0 - 6.0 2,635.4
TSANG Sai Chung, Kirk @ LA 95.8 3,090.0 - 12.0 3,197.8
TANG Sau Wai, Tom Bz 95.8 2,010.0 - 12.0 2,117.8
CHAN Kwok Fong, Joseph @ FREIF@ 95.8 2,340.8 - 12.0 2,448.6
CHAU Wing Hing © [EKEL® 316 1,276.2 - 45 1,312.3
SHI Jihua © HAEe 31.6 1,179.2 - 45 12153
WAN Ming Sun @ FEHIL© 915 - - - 915
YEN Teresa g 95.8 - - - 95.8
LIU Guolin 2B 95.8 - - - 95.8
FAN Yan Hok, Philip Bk 1936 - - - 1936
CHUNG Cho Yee, Mico BRE 1936 - - - 1936
CHENG Yuk Wo A 1936 - - - 1936
Albert Thomas DA ROSA, Junior Z&glig 193.6 - - - 193.6
1,928.5 26,085.2 - 72.0 28,085.7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRRME

10 Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Notes:

1. Mr. WAN Man Yee was appointed as an executive
director on 4 September 2009. The amount of
HK$2.3 million was paid to M Y Wan and Associates
Limited, a company solely and beneficially owned by
Mr. Wan, for the consultancy services provided.

2. Mr. Tsang Sai Chung, Kirk and Mr. Chan Kwok
Fong, Joseph resigned as executive directors with
effect from 4 September 2009.

3. Mr. WAN Ming Sun was appointed as a non-
executive director on 1 February 2008.

4. Mr. WANG Jun, Mr. NG Chi Man, Michael and Mr.
CHEN Libo resigned as executive directors with
effect from 17 April 2008, 15 June 2008 and 30
September 2008 respectively.

5. Mr. CHAU Wing Hing was appointed as an executive
director on 15 June 2008 and resigned with effect
from 9 October 2008.

6. Mr. SHI Jihua was appointed as an executive
director on 15 June 2008 and resigned with effect
from 9 October 2008.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the years 2009 and 2008
included all directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above.
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11 Employee bhenefit expenses

11 BEERAFEX

2009 2008

—ETNF —ETNEF

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEET BEBIT

Wages, salaries and other benefits IT% - #HekEMmET (156.1) (161.1)

Employee share option benefits & B BB i fE T (28.1) (69.0)

Pension costs — defined contribution plan (Note a) RK& A4S — E BT 2] (MizTa) (1.8) (0.6)
Write back of/(provision for) unused KEBFERHRD R (BEE)

annual leave accrual 0.1 (0.6)

(185.9) (231.3)

Capitalised in properties under development ERERTMERFTERN = 4.7

Capitalised in inventories ERFEFREITER = 1.4

Charged to income statement BRI (185.9) (225.2)

Notes: B3

(a)

(b)

The Group operates the MPF scheme under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is
a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately. The Group’s contribution to the employee
pension schemes in the PRC is at a percentage in
compliance with the requirements of respective municipal
governments.

Contributions totaling HK$0.2 million (2008: HK$0.2
million) were payable under the MPF scheme at 31
December 2009.

REBZREBRHERE S5 BED 2 R ERL A
BESFE - RRETVEBRIIZEZERMR - 8
B ERMB I ERATE 2 ERHREAREE -
RigBESHE  BREINEEBHERRESHABMAL
Z5% At EIERHER (B8 A 28/ A S LA20,000/8 7T
BLER - s RHFENTRERER - AEERTEIE
SRR ZHRTIRNTSEETBRREZBD T
fFH

& 200,000 7T (= FZF\F : 200,000/ 7T) Z kA
RSN _TTANF+ A=+ —Bxft-
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12

Br SRR BT RE

Income tax (expense)/credit

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the
Group has sufficient tax losses brought forward to
offset taxable profit for the year (2008: Nil). Mainland
China income tax has been provided on the estimated
assessable profits of subsidiaries operating in the
Mainland China at rates ranging from 20% to 25% (2008:
18% to 25%).

12 FEH (%) KR

A 7N 5 B B R SR I IR B 1R A SR S AR 4R JR B AR
BUg - WA ERE BN SRELBRE(ZTTNE
&) - PEAMAAEHRANZRES B AL LHE AR
ZEETERBUEH - N F20%E25% 2 HR(ZFT
N 18% Z25% ) EH st -

2009 2008
—ZETNF —EENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBIT BEBTT
Current income tax BNERFTIS AR
Mainland China income tax R B D FT 1S (1.1) (2.8)
Over provision in prior years AT S SRR 0.5 1.8
(0.6) (1.0)
Deferred income tax (Note 38) EIEFTS T (MI5E38)
(Charged)/credited to the income statement RiBaE (HBR), A (333.4) 1125
(333.4) 112.5
(334.0) 111.5

Note:

The share of income tax expense of associated companies
of HK$10.4 million (2008: share of income tax credit of
HK$7.8 million) and the share of income tax expense of jointly
controlled entities of HK$267.2 million (2008: share of income
tax credit of HK$18.5 million) are included in the consolidated
income statement as share of profits less losses of associated
companies and share of profits less losses of jointly controlled
entities respectively.
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12

13

Income tax (expense)/credit (continued)

The tax of the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits/(losses)
of the consolidated entities as follows:

12 Fr8Ri(XH) B

REBFEHATRF (B1R) 2 BIE - BRAMET
HEMERRAHOEER,/ (B518) 2 BHHIE - 25
o -

2009 2008
—EENEF —EENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BHEBTT
Profit/(loss) before income tax and share of s %RHIJ@%'/(EHT%)M&
results of associated companies and o NI DN
jointly controlled entities /N 1,181.1 (2,754.6)
Tax calculated at the domestic rates applicable BEBER 2 CER)) EE
to (profits)/losses in the respective countries FriE BN =51 & 2 Bi1R (281.7) 651.9
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes LIk =33 (69.4) (473.4)
Income not subject to tax BERBHA 58.0 29.4
Tax losses not recognised REER 7 THIBEE (41.4) (98.4)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses  (EABF FERERHIBEE = 0.2
Over provision in prior years VATE F S B RE R 0.5 1.8
Tax (expense)/credit BIE(ZH) e (334.0) 1115
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 23.8% IIHEF AR A23.8% (ZZETN\FE : 23.7%) °

(2008: 23.7%).

Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the
Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of HK$777.6 million, including reversal of
impairment losses on investment in and amounts due
from subsidiaries amounting to HK$803.9 million (2008:
loss attributable to equity holders of HK$809.0 million,
including dividend from a subsidiary of HK$200.0 million
and provision for impairment losses on investment in and
amounts due from subsidiaries amounting to HK$838.5
million).

13 AR RRRERSEARERER,(BE)

RAEIR R w5 A A& F777,600,00078 TR A
NEIMBREEE - RIENHEARRE REKHER
BIFIE R E 185 [@803,900,0008 T (T \4F : i%
HIER A A EIRE18809,000,000 7T - BIEHEA
Tﬂx 8.200,000,0007% 7T A K A B /88 2 B85 & K i Ust b
B R FOE R R 1B 1 #85838,500,00078 7T ) °
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e MBRRME

14 Earnings/(loss) per share

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by
dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

14 SREFN,(EE)
(a) E&

SREARF (FIR) TYRIFA D AR MRS
BAEER (BB RFRE T HBR 20
BELBGHE -

2009 2008
—ETNF —EENF
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders AARREEREE ABIGET,
of the Company (HK$ Million) (B8R)(ABAETT) 1,456.7 (2,646.0)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 2247 &3@ 0% 2 I F19 8%
in issue (Million) (B8R 9,143.1 8,944.6*
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREARRF(EE) (B
(HK cents per share) 15.9 (29.6)

Diluted

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by
adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares including the
share options and bonus warrants. A calculation
is made in order to determine the number of
shares that could have been acquired at fair value
(determined as the average market share price
of the Company’s shares during the year) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights
attached to outstanding share options and bonus
warrants. The number of shares calculated as
above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of
the share options and bonus warrants.
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14 Earnings/(loss) per share (continued) 14 BRER(EBE) @

(b) Diluted (continued) (b) #F@m)
2009 2008
—ETNF —ETNF
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders AARREEREE ABIGET],
of the Company (HK$ Million) (BER) (&%) 1,456.7 (2,646.0)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares &3 /T @Ak 2

in issue (Million) InREEEE(E8R) 9,143.1 8,944.6*
Adjustment for share options and B AR
bonus warrants (Million) A FRAEFEEAE(FED) 178.1 -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares ~ stEGREERRN, (BE) 2

for diluted earnings/(loss) per share (Million) EEAE IS E (B ER) 9,321.2 8,944.6
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share FEEERT]

(HK cents per share) (f518) (G REHSAL) 15.6 (29.6)
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 AEHECSENF T AT —HIEFEESR
December 2009 did not assume the exercise of BB AT W EBRITEAFE W ARITE 2 BRI
share options outstanding during the year since the ERRZITE BB REEETE o

exercise would have an anti-dilutive effect.

*  Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue * ZET)\FEETEBRZINETHSEEH T

for 2008 was adjusted for a bonus issue in 2009. NEBITARIEL T -

15 Dividend 15 BKE
2009 2008
—ZETNF —ETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT
No interim dividend (2008: Interim dividend R A~ o HARS B (_?f}\i :

of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share) was paid FREAAR B AR AR L 55M) - 121.6
The Board of Directors do not recommend the payment EEeMERMEE_SENFR_2ETN\F+ A

of a final dividend for the years ended 31 December =+ —HLEFERNRERE -

2009 and 2008.

On 10 September 2008, the Board of Directors declared RZZFEENFLA+A - %%%‘?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%(ﬂ%%ﬁ
an interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share )AFAERFHREFRLBARLSBL - HERER
in the form of scrip with an option to elect cash. It has K WM ABE-ZEENFT_A=T—HLFE
been paid and reflected as an appropriation of retained RERFZHHE -

earnings for the year ended 31 December 2008.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RRME

16 Investment properties 16 REYXE
Group
rEE
2009 2008
—ZETNF —EETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEHBT BEABTT
At 1 January w—A—H 2,827.4 2,922.2
Currency translation differences B R 35 160.8
Additions nNE 14.0 -
Finance lease payments capitalised MEMEERERE - 105.6
Transfer from construction in progress EEZIREEA - 111.8
Transfer from prepaid land lease payments Bt EifHER
[EYN 2,916.9 =
Transfer from properties under development BEREPEE A 264.5 =
Transfer to properties held for sale (Note) BHEEHERRZ
= (BRE) (167.4) =
Fair value adjustments, net N EFEFRE 1,085.4 (473.0)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 6,944.3 2,827.4
Note: Management changed its intention to sell the investment Mz - BEEERBEER  HEREMERARERIEZAR
properties and the change in use was evidenced by B  REMFEEARRARELEME KN TA
commencement of development. The deemed cost of ZEMERAEREER 2 ATE -
the properties held for sale transferred from investment
property is the fair value of the properties at the date of
change in use.
The 2009 valuations were based on an independent ZEZNFHETI AR FTEB LS BE%E o FTERM
assessment made by Knight Frank. The valuation ERMEH NGRS B mEN TS -
techniques adopted are described in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.
As at 31 December 2009, investment properties RZZEZENEFE+ZA=F+—H  FEABEE
in Mainland China of HK$1,898.1 million (2008: 1,898,100,000% 7t ( —Z & & )\ F : 1,772,700,000 /&
HK$1,772.7 million) were pledged as securities for the T ZIREME - BERASEMERR 2 HEMA (M
Group's borrowings (Note 37).The Group's interests in 37) c AEBNIEEME 2 iR HAREE KBS
investment properties at their carrying values and the s
lease terms are analysed as follows:
2009 2008
T NF —EETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBT
In Mainland China, held on: RPN EEE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years NF10E50F 2 FHE 6,944.3 2,827.4
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17 Prepaid land lease payments

The Group’s interest in leasehold land and land use
rights representing prepaid operating lease payments
and their net carrying values is analysed as follows:

At 1 January
Currency translation
differences
Additions
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Reclassification
Transfer from properties

under development upon

obtaining land use

right certificates
Transfer to intangible

assets (Note 19)

Transfer to properties held

for sale (Note 28)
Transfer to investment
properties

Reversal of/(provision for)
impairment loss

Disposals

Disposal of subsidiaries

Amortisation

— Capitalised in properties
under development

— Charged to income
statement (Note 8)

At 31 December

In Hong Kong, held on:
Leases of between 10
to 50 years

In Mainland China, held on:

Leases of over 50 years
Leases of between 10
to 50 years

—HA—H
BKHREER

IN=
YR H B8 2
EHOHE
1S+ fF A
EEReBRP
MEBA

BHEETERE
(P3E19)

BHEFHERZ L
W% (Ki7E28)

HHEREME

)m?r%

BEEEZ
Bm,(BE)

HE

HEME AT

iy

—ERERTP
MERENL

—EEBmRHR
(Pif5E8)

R+—-—A=+—8H

REBRA :
T F10E50F 2
HEH

R B EEE
HRiB50F 2 HEH]
NF10ZE505F 2

HEH

Certain bank borrowings are secured by the Group’s
prepaid land lease payments with carrying values of
HK$100.8 million (2008: HK$190.9 million) (Note 37).

17 AT HEER
AEBREN LB ER 2 ESEHEEL R LA
¥ BEBREFESTOT

Group
REE
2009 2009 2008 2008
—STNE  —FIANF  —TT)\F _TT)\4

HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ M H|on HK$ Million
AEET BEAET BE BEBT
5,969.7 2,259.8
4.2 243.4
0.9 1,408.1
- 2,909.8

- 1,220.3

= (239.3)

(65.6) -
(2,916.9) (2,982.5) - 981.0
494.0 (1,140.6)
= (573.0)
(16.4) -

(2.0) 4.1)
(64.6) (66.6) (114.7) (118.8)
3,403.3 5,969.7
78.8 80.7
1,266.8 1,077.0
2,057.7 4,812.0

3,403.3 5,969.7

7N & E BR M {8 100,800,000 8 T ( ZEZ N\ F :
190,900,000/ 7T ) < Tt + b0 & 5k 2 M ARG E T
RITRER(FIRE3T) ©
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e MBRRME

18 Property, plant and equipment 18 WP - #eS }32&1%

Group

N3]
Electric utility ~ Water utility QOther
Construction plant and plant and plant and

in progress equipment equipment equipment
YEER  BKER  ABER

TRIE i i =i g5 28
HK$ Million HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BEET BEBT BEAT BEAT BEET BEAT

Buildings Total

At 1 January 2008 R=BEN\$-A-H
Cost A 8204 6356 254.1 68.0 492 1,827.3
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  EHHTE RFE - 82 (36.1) (358) (5.8) (85.9)
Net book amount EmFE 8204 627.4 2180 322 434 1,7414
Year ended 31 December 2008 HE-ZENF{ZR
_ Zt-HLEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 8204 6274 2180 322 434 17414
Currency translation differences SHBREEE 576 36.7 116 41 34 1134
Additions NE 644.3 19 - 442 15 691.9
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAT 1423 - - 1773 102.7 4223
Transfer to investment properties BHZRENE (111.8) - - - - (111.8)
Transfer to intangible assefs BEHRREE (1,319.2) - - - - (1319.2)
Reclassification BB (67.4) - - 674 -
Cost adjustments WA (5.9 (14.3) - - - (20.2)
Disposals HE - - - (15) - (15)
Depreciation & - (32.6) (189) (21.4) (4.5) (77.4)
Impairment loss REFE - (80.0) - (165.1) (96.4) (341.5)
Closing net book amount ERERFE 160.3 539.1 210.7 69.8 1175 1,097.4
At 31 December 2008 R-BENE
TZA=t-H
Cost A 1603 660.9 269.0 288.0 204.2 1,602.4
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  2EHHTE RAE - (1218) (58.3) (2182) (106.7) (505.0)
Net book amount FEFE 160.3 539.1 210.7 69.8 1175 1,097.4
Year ended 31 December 2009 BZ_EENE
+ZA=t-HILEE
Opening net book amount FNEEFE 160.3 539.1 210.7 69.8 117.5 1,097.4
Currency translation differences EehEES 0.2 0.7 0.2 (2.3) (1.3) (2.5)
Additions NE 321.8 0.1 0.1 6.7 3.8 332.5
Transfer to properties held for sale EREBERERB - - - - 4.7) (%)
Disposals e - - - (0.7) 0.7 (1.4)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR - - - (0.2) - (0.2)
Depreciation & - (30.5) (19.1) (20.6) (1.3) (71.5)
Closing net book amount FRERFE 482.3 500.4 191.9 52.7 107.3 1,3436
At 31 December 2009 RZ22AF+=A=1-A
Cost B 482.3 661.9 269.5 288.2 222.5 1,9244
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  2:+17E R - (152.5) (71.6) (235.5) (115.2) (580.8)
Net book amount EHFE 482.3 509.4 191.9 52.7 107.3 1,343.6
Depreciation expenses for property, plant and equipment ME - BBEREEARERFAWEZTNERAX

1,100,000/ 7t (ZZ = )\ 4 : 1,900,000 7T ) & #
f”ﬁ#%% WENRECERTIRZERMEAREZ

of HK$1.1 million (2008: HK$1.9 million) have been

capitalised in construction in progress under property,
plant and equipment and properties under development
and included as part of the additions. Depreciation
expenses of HK$76.4 million (2008: HK$75.5 million)
have been charged in operating profit/(loss) (Note 8).

Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the
Group’s properties, plant and equipment with carrying
values of HK$538.1 million (2008: HK$612.1 million)
(Note 37).
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19 Intangible assets

At 1 January 2008
Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2008

Opening net book amount
Additions
Acquisition of subsidiaries

Transfer from construction-in-progress

Transfer from prepaid land
lease payments

Amortisation (Note 8)

Impairment losses (Note 7)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2008

Cost
Accumulated amortisation and
impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2009

Opening net book amount
Currency translation differences
Additions

Disposal of subsidiaries
Amortisation (Note 8)
Impairment losses (Note 7)

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2009
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book amount

R-ZEN\E-A—H
AR
S5T#H

FREFE

HE-_EENF
+ZR=+—-HILEE
FUEMFE

RE

B NEUNG
BREETIZEA
BREMLHEEREA

B (MEEs)
REBBRET)

FREmFE

R-ZENE
+=A=+-H

A

BB RRE

REFE

BZ-_ZEZANE
+ZR=+—-HLEE

FOEMFE
ERBMEES

RE

HERBAT

B (IHEE8)

REBBE ()

FRERFE

R=BBNF
tT=A=t-H

AR

Rt EE RoRE

RE#E

19 BREEE

Group
K&E

Other

Concession Biomass intangible
Goodwill  rights —tollroad  technology assets Total

BT — Hi
B WERE EWERM BEAE Fak
HK$ Million HKS$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million
BEAETL AEATL BEETL BEAETL BEET
6.3 336 - 23.7 63.6
_ - - 0.7) 0.7)
6.3 336 - 23.0 62.9
6.3 336 - 23.0 62.9
- - 315 0.2 317
403.2 - - 29.8 433.0
- 1,319.2 - - 1,319.2
- 2393 - - 239.3
- (4.3) (4.2) (5.7) (14.2)
(375.7) (444 .3) - (34.7) (854.7)
338 1,1435 27.3 126 1,217.2
409.5 1,592.1 315 53.0 2,086.1
(375.7) (448.6) (4.2) (40.4) (868.9)
338 1,1435 27.3 126 1,217.2
33.8 1,143.5 21.3 12.6 1,217.2
- 1.7 - - 1.7
- 8.5 - 0.1 8.6
= = (24.8) = (24.8)
= (5.5) (2.5) (2.3) (10.3)
- = - (0.8) (0.8)
33.8 1,148.2 - 9.6 1,191.6
409.5 1,603.1 - 53.1 2,065.7
(375.7) (454.9) = (43.5) (874.1)
33.8 1,148.2 - 9.6 1,191.6
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19

20

140 HKC (

BB HRARBTRE

Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units
identified according to country of operation and business
segment. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount of the business unit is determined
based on value-in-use calculations. The key assumptions
adopted for growth rates and discount rates used in
the value-in-use calculation is based on management
best estimates. The calculation uses pretax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 12-year period cash flow and
based on a discount rate with range from 5.75% to 9.8%
(2008: 5.75%) taking into account the risk level of the
business unit. Growth rates with range from 3% to 10%
(2008: 3%) are determined by considering both internal
and external factors. According to the calculation, no
impairment charge is required.

9 BIEEE @

EERERH

AERRSEEBREB D BATRERSEEAER
EEBReEAEN - UREARBENME - EFEN
Z A RESEREERAEENEmMERT - sTEFERE
ERERERNTBEIMNZ T ZBEDBEEEE &
EEETMEE - ATERMABARSRETER T AER
BA#Z+T —FVREEZRSREAEE - WKW
WENF575%E9.8%( —ZTZT/)\F : 5.75% )5t A¥ER
B ZBEBKT o« RENFIRELI0%(ZTT/N\F :
3% ) IRt RNERINTAZETE - RIBEMGE - BE
SHERERX

Properties under development 20 BEPYHE
Group
PN
2009 2008
—ETNEF ZEENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBTT
Properties under development comprise: BEPYESE
Construction costs and capitalised expenditure BEEKAREARRASL 269.1 620.2
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TEAS -t A0 & Rk 8E 1.9 4.1
271.0 624.3

The properties under development are all located in the
Mainland China. As a result of the adoption of HKAS
40 Amendment or the completion of construction work
during the year, certain properties included in properties
under development were reclassified as investment
properties and properties held for sale.

Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2009
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21

22

Investments in subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost
Provision for impairment losses

Amounts due from subsidiaries, net
Provision for impairment losses
Amount due to a subsidiary, net

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest

21

FEETRD
B ETR R R

LBl 8 1 R IR R B
RER B R
e —FEI B A

RHBLRZRE

2009 2008
B —EEN

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBT BEBT

RS 196.6 181.1
(32.5) (162.7)

164.1 184

10,578.5 10,127.0
(2.1) (675.8)
AIFRIEFEE - (96.4)
10,740.5 9,373.2

HBARME AR REER - B MBANKEK =

free, and not repayable within the next twelve months. BEANEE  BEERMEEEQATERS - HBRBETZ
Their carrying amounts approximate their fair values. The DABTTEEE o
balances are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on FTEWNB AR ZFFIBEHNELTIEIS6E -
pages 179 to 186.
Interests in associated companies 22 ABENTZER
2009 2008
—TEThF —ET)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT EE-:w
Group’s share of net assets REBREEEFE 865.7 597.6
Amounts due from associated companies, net FEURESE S N\ B T IB R %A 655.2 658.3
Provision for impairment losses BEBE BE = (22.8)
1,520.9 1,233.1

Amounts due from associated companies are unsecured,
interest free and not repayable within the next twelve
months except for amounts due from associated
companies of HK$90.6 million (2008: HK$90.6 million)
which bear interest at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate
(2008: Hong Kong dollar prime rate). The balances are
mainly denominated in Renminbi.

B 75%290,600,00078 7 (= ZFZF )\ % : 90,600,000/87T)
Z W 2 R R RIRERIBEETREENER(ZFTN
FOETRERNER)FEIN - RUEE QR RERIAL
BEM 2B RBARART —EARNERE - HHRET
BLABTTHEE -
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e RRMEE

22 AEBE QT ZEDS @
THHEERTERABRUATERAEEEEGTBR ' K
MAEEGHEELBENT(EIEAIELTRBCE
E - AfE - WaBEESmnT

22 Interests in associated companies (continued)
The following financial information, after making
adjustments to conform to the Group’s significant
accounting policies, represents the Group’s aggregate
share of assets, liabilities, revenue and results of
associated companies, all of which are unlisted, and is
summarised as below:

23

2009 2008

ZETNF —EENF

HK$ Million HK$ Million

A&BT BEAT

Assets BE 3,387.5 2,707.8
Liabilities affE (2,521.8) (2,110.2)
Net assets BEFE 865.7 597.6
Revenue Wt 61.6 56.3
Profit/(loss) before income tax Frissianasl,/ (5iE) 54.6 (93.3)
Income tax (expense)/credit Fsfi(Fx) R (10.4) 7.8
Profit/(loss) for the year RNEE N, (E518) 44.2 (85.5)

Details of principal associated companies are set out on

page 187.

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Group’s share of net assets
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities, net
Provision for impairment losses
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23 REEARIZHER
2009 2008
—EENF —ETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
A&EATT BEETT
NEEEGEEFE 1,796.4 1,018.4
YA &R R FIEFEE 63.1 10.9
EEE 2 B 4.7) (5.3)
1,854.8 1,024.0




23 Interests in jointly controlled entities (continued) 23 REE AR ZRELRm)

The following financial information, after making T ER TR AERUGAAEBAIB S K
adjustments to conform to the Group’s significant B EEA LA LAT S BE - BERLEMRN

accounting policies, represents the Group’s aggregate

share of assets, liabilities and results of the jointly D

controlled entities and is summarised as below:

2009 2008
—ZETNF —ETN\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBIT BEBTT

Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,208.7 1,103.9
Current assets mENEE 9.1 106.2
2,217.8 1,210.1

Liabilities aftE
Non-current liabilities MBI AE (286.0) (18.1)
Current liabilities mEAE (135.4) (173.6)
(421.4) (191.7)

Net assets BEFE 1,796.4 1,018.4

Profit/(loss) before income tax Frigfima A,/ (E5i8) 1,078.1 (99.6)

Income tax (expense)/credit Frefi (M), HBe (267.2) 18.5

Profit/(loss) for the year REEZHF, (FE) 810.9 (81.1)

Notes: BfRE -

(a) Balances with jointly controlled entities are unsecured, (a) HAEZERNAHCEHRUEER  RERBEARKRR+Z
interest free and not repayable within the next twelve BARER  BHEEABEEAQAFERE - AHRBEXE
months. Their carrying amounts approximate their NARBEE -
fair values. The balances are mainly denominated in
Renminbi.

(b) There are no material contingent liabilities relating to the (by WEEBAASEMhEEAREENERKAEBE M
Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entities and no HAEE AR BRMERAREE -
contingent liabilities within the respective entities.

(c) Details of the principal jointly controlled entity are set out () FEAERARZFHBHNEISSEH -
on page 188.

24 Derivative financial instrument 24 TTHEE@MTIA
Group
rEHE
2009 2008
—ZETNF —EETN\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEETT
Put option R0 B 5.0 5.0
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A SRR
24 Derivative financial instrument (continued) 4 FTEEMIEm
The balance represents a put option right to sell the HhEEHEANEBER — BB 2 A 8 Hong Kong
Group’s 45% interest in Hong Kong Construction Kam Construction Kam Lung L|m|ted A5% HE s < FRIE BARE -
Lung Limited, an associated company, and was fair BERZZETNGFR T N\FTA=+—RHELAFE
valued at 31 December 2009 and 2008. B BE o
25 Available-for-sale financial assets 25 OHEESREE
Group
REEE
2009 2008
—EENF —EE)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEATT BHEBTT
1 January —H—H 23.8 25.8
Currency translation differences M E = = 1.1
Additions NE - 5.6
Disposals HeE (0.3) -
Net gains/(losses) recognised in PR 2 W, (E18)
equity (Note 35) @%’E(W&%) 3.7 (8.7)
31 December +—A=+—H 27.2 23.8
Available-for-sale financial assets include At ESREERIE
the following: Y& -
Unlisted securities ELEMES
Equity securities — PRC AR A B — 22.2 18.7
Club debentures gHES 5.0 5.1
27.2 23.8
The net losses associated with available-for-sale financial HiftHESHEERME BB FETew R AEREH
assets are not considered a prolonged or significant SEHNFEEAET® - Bl RZEZENFE+A
decline in fair value. As a result, there was no impairment —t—HEfERI Rt EemEEELRERBBREE -
loss provision for the available-for-sale financial assets as
at 31 December 2008.
Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the A ESREEN T EHTE -
following currencies:
2009 2008
—EFTNF —ET)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEATT BEBTT
Hong Kong dollars BT 4.5 4.2
Renminbi AR 22.7 19.6
27.2 23.8
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26 Financial instruments by category 26 ZEREsZERTIA

Group
£H
Assets at fair
value through Derivative

Loans and profit financial Available-
receivables orloss instrument for-sale Total
BOTER
Rk EBRERIR s
JENR ZBE SRTA A[fEHE st

HK$ Milion  HK$ Millon ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million
AEAT  BEBRAT  ABAT  BEBART  BEATL

Assets as per consolidated halance sheet 4“HSFEEEEBRZEE

31 December 2008 R-ZENE+=-A=1—H
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 25) AJftHE4SREE (Hi3E25) - - - 2338 238
Financial assets at fair value through BATEEEZERIEZ

profit or loss (Note 29) TRBE(H:E29) - 3914 - - 391.4
Derivative financial instrument (Note 24) #7448 T A(KF24) - - 5.0 - 5.0
Amounts due from associated JEUE & A R FIE TR

companies, net (Note 22) (PH7E22) 658.3 - - - 658.3
Amounts due from jaintly controlled [EWAE RNBIFUAFE

entities, net (Note 23) (PH7E23) 109 - - - 109
Trade and other receivables (Note 30) FEMRBR 3 % E A MR (B7E30) 4438 - - - 4438
Restricted cash (Note 32) X HIR 2 (F332) 674.9 - - - 674.9
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 33) Be MRS EEM(HFE33) 1,836.9 - - - 1,836.9
Total FeR 3,624.8 391.4 50 23.8 4,045.0
31 December 2009 R-ZEENE+=-A=1—H
Available-for-sale financial assets (Note 25) At & & B & E (Ki3E25) = = = 21.2 21.2
Financial assets at fair value through BATEEERRIEZ

profit or loss (Note 29) SRBE(H:E29) - 75.2 = = 75.2
Derivative financial instrument (Note 24) #7448 T A (KF24) - = 5.0 = 5.0
Amounts due from associated JEUA & ARFIEFE

companies, net (Note 22) (BH7E22) 655.2 = = = 655.2
Amounts due from jointly controlled JEUE LA R FIAFE

entities, net (Note 23) (PHzE23) 63.1 - - = 63.1
Trade and other receivables (Note 30) FEMRBR T A MR (Br7E30) 382.4 - - - 3824
Restricted cash (Note 32) X HIR 2 (f3¥32) 309.0 - = = 309.0
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 33) Be kR eSEM(HIF33) 2,210.0 - - - 2,210.0
Total 4=t 3,619.7 75.2 5.0 21.2 3,727.1
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26 Financial instruments by category (continued) 26 RERE S ZERTIAEm
Group
58
Liabilities
at fair value  Other financial
through profit liabilities at
or loss amortised cost Total
BRAYE RHEEH
fEEmE RAGTE 2
Rz BfE EMEmAaE HEt
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
AEETT BEET BEATT
Liabilities as per consolidated HEEERERZAEE
balance sheet
31 December 2008 RZZBEZNFE+ZA=+—H
Other non-current payables HiIEmBhE R 237.9 61.4 299.3
Trade and other payables (Note 39) FEASTBR SN E M0 A 3R
(M45E39) - 1,154.6 1,154.6
Borrowings (Note 37) EFR(HI5E37) - 3,596.1 3,596.1
Total 45 237.9 4,812.1 5,050.0
31 December 2009 RZZEEZNE+_A=1+—H
Amount due to a shareholder (Note 36) [~ — % A% 38 7% 18 (K13136) - 362.1 362.1
Other non-current payables HAubIER B E =X 266.3 59.4 325.7
Trade and other payables (Note 39) FEASTBR SR R B FE < 3R
(Fft5E39) - 1,033.7 1,033.7
Borrowings (Note 37) fE s (F3E37) - 3,796.3 3,796.3
Total st 266.3 5,251.5 5,517.8
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26 Financial instruments by category (continued) 26 RERE S ZER T Eum

Company
AT
Assets at fair
Loansand  value through

receivables profit or loss Total
BAFE
JRE R SRRz BE HEt

HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT BEAT

Assets as per balance sheet EEEBERZEE
31 December 2008 RZZEZNF+A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries, BB EREK

net of provision (Note 21) MWE A a2z ZIE(MFE21) 9,451.2 - 9,451.2
Financial assets at fair value through  ZAF(ETIBERIIEY

profit or loss (Note 29) e E (KiiE29) - 63.5 63.5
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 33) 4 KIS ZE W (M3E33) 131.1 - 131.1
Total st 9,682.3 63.5 9,645.8
31 December 2009 RZZEZNF+-_A=+—H
Amounts due from subsidiaries, net of E IR EEEKHE AR 2

provision (Note 21) FIE(MIEE21) 10,576.4 - 10,576.4
Financial assets at fair value through  ZAF(ETIBERIIEY

profit or loss (Note 29) S BB E (PF13E29) = 62.5 62.5
Other receivables (Note 30) H At EUR (F5E30) 0.5 - 0.5
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 33) 84 RIRSZE W (MI3E33) 8.5 - 8.5
Total 45T 10,585.4 62.5 10,647.9
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26 Financial instruments by category (continued)

27

Liabilities as per balance sheet

31 December 2008

Other payables (Note 39)

Amount due to a subsidiary (Note 21)

Total

31 December 2009
Amount due to a shareholder (Note 36)
Other payables (Note 39)

Total

Inventories

Raw materials
Finished goods
Consumables and others

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Inventories amounting to HK$4.2 million
(2008: HK$19.7 million) were written down due to a fall

26 REHE T Z2EMIE @)

BERBRZAER
R-EZN\F+_-_HA=t+—H
HoA e A~ 51 (FFE39)

FE A —FRIP 8 2 R (T RE21)

st

=]

R=ZBAFT=A=+—A
B — E R HOA(H5E36)
S (1 3E39)

5t

27 78

FRFT#
BUpK an
HE MmN EAM

in selling prices and were included in “other and general

expenses”.
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Company

AT

Other financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
R HNAGTHE
2EMEMARE
HK$ Million
BEET

74.1
96.4

170.5

362.1
62.5

424.6

Group

REE
2009 2008
—ETNF f2$A¢
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEET

2.6 26.3
- 5.4
10.3 11.5

12.9 43.2

FEIRKABAERFEIIRIBREEIR - BE
4,200,000 T (ZEF
REBTERMMOBRL T A LR —RER] -

J\EF : 19,700,000 7T) 2 7 &



28

29

Properties held for sale

At 31 December 2009, properties held for sale that are
carried at net realisable value amounted to HK$491.4
million (2008: HK$9.1 million). A provision of HK$5.8
million (2008: HK$0.2 million) was charged to the
consolidated income statement.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Equity securities: RAES
— Listed in Hong Kong —H/BLEm
at market value A
— Unlisted —3k L™

Changes in fair values of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recorded in other income in the
consolidated income statement (Note 6).

The fair value of equity securities is based on the current
bid price quoted in the market at the balance sheet date.

28 FSHERBZWE

R-ZTAE+-_A=+—0  BEHERARZYER
AR AR 0 H4 % 45491,400,00008 (=T
J\E : 9,100,000 7T) ° ##55,800,000/ L( ZZFZ N\
% : 200,000/ 7T ) AR A 1B R IR ©

BAVTEHEBRRRIIGRZEHEE

Group Company
REE P\ N/NC]

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENF —TTNF —ETNF —ZTNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million

AEET A& BEATT BEET
0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

75.1 391.3 62.4 63.4

75.2 3914 62.5 63.5

BRATEGAEBRERIIGZ eREEZ A THEZS) -

AR EBERANEMKRA(HEES)

tﬁﬂ&ﬁ B2 A
UNEEc

NMEEDRERNGERATSMHRERE

BBERER)BRARN-ZZAFFR
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30 Trade and other receivables 30 FEURBRFX R H Ath FE UL X
Group Company
REE ViN/NE]
2009 2008 2009 2008
ZETNF —EENF —ETNF —EENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
AEBIT AEBIT A&ATT EE Y
Trade receivables FEULBRZX 75.1 72.7 - -
Less: provision for impairment & : FEUBR FORBE RS
of trade receivables (19.9) (13.3) - =
Trade receivables — net FEUEBR FUF R 55.2 59.4 = =
Bills receivable W EZIE 14.8 23.4 - -
Retention receivables FEWRE e 30.0 32.6 - -
Other receivables and Hith e MR a
deposits, net of provisions (B INBr#EHE) 169.2 185.4 0.5 =
Gross amounts due from BWEFAH
customers for contract TEFIEE%E
works (Note 31) (FF5E31) 85.1 1409 = L
Amounts due from related e NI
companies (Note ¢) (f7Ee) 28.1 2.1 - -
382.4 4438 0.5 -
Notes: iz :
(a) At 31 December 2009, retention receivables amounting to (@ MR-ZEZAE+-_A=1+—8 ERREBEZES
HK$30.0 million (2008: HK$32.6 million) were included 30,000,000/ 7t ( ZZZ )\ 4 : 32,600,000/870) * Bi%
in current other receivables depending on their expected FRIEHAUGR B I A E R BRI -

date of receipt.

(b) The ageing analysis of trade receivables at year end, net (b) REFHER  BIRBERBEERERESRZRESTAT
of provision for impairment, was as follows:

Group

REH
2009 2008
—TTNF —TEETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBIT BEATT
0 to less than 2 months TZEPR2EAA 13.6 469
2 to less than 6 months 2% L A6(E A 3.6 1.8
6 to less than 12 months 62 LR12ME A 21.3 2.8
12 months and more 1218 A KA E 16.7 7.9
55.2 59.4
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30 Trade and other receivables (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

(d)

(continued)

The Group’s credit terms for the contracting business
are negotiated with and entered into under normal
commercial terms with its trade customers. Various group
companies have different credit policies depending on the
requirements of their markets and the businesses which
they operate. Retention money receivables in respect of
contracting services are settled in accordance with the
terms of the respective contracts.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to
trade receivables, as the Group has a large number of
customers.

Amounts due from related companies are unsecured,
interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The
balances are denominated in Renminbi.

Depending on the line of business, trade receivables that
are less than 12 months past due are not considered
impaired. As at 31 December 2009, trade receivables of
HK$16.7 million (2008: HK$ 7.9 million) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent
customers for whom there is no recent history of default.
No other receivables were past due or impaired.

As at 31 December 2009, trade receivables of HK$14.3
million (2008: HK$13.3 million) aged over 12 months
were impaired and provided for. A total provision of
HK$19.9 million (2008: HK$13.3 million) was provided
for the trade receivables.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars I
Renminbi AR
US dollars 7T

30 FEUWBRFR R H i FEW R @)

fsE - (&)

(b)

(&

AEBREANEL 2 EE R TRE R GRE
HESEPEALTER] - EEERRZEERREHE
HMgHEREMEERBME - ARG ORE 2 ERE
BERBEENAHZGERESE -

HRAEEEZFRHEAD  MEMERLEEEET 2
[\

R —HEAaERRNEBERRZFIARERR - BN
WEEEERS o REUARKEHE

BEEBBEME - RN 12188 N2 2 YRR EER
B -RZTENF+_A=+—H BafHEEREZ
Ji& W B 1 4% 16,700,00058 7T (= &)\ 4 ¢ 7,900,00078
TT) e WERFEAEBAYEIRRALHEZBIEFE
B o Eoith WKL BB B HERAE -

R-TBTAFE+-_A=1+—0  EHBBI2EAZEK
BR 514,300,000 70 (ZZ = )\4F : 13,300,000/ 7T ) tH
IR B DA o FEURBR K ERHE 4 $£19,900,000/%
TL(=FE )\ : 13,300,000/ 7T) °

ANER B 2 FEMRBR R N H b FE MR 2 B T LA T 51 & # 5t
#:

2009 2008
—TTNF —EETNF
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEBIT BEAT
161.2 183.7
220.3 258.4

0.9 1.7
382.4 443.8
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e BRRME

30 Trade and other receivables (continued)
Notes: (continued)

30 FEUWRBR R I H fib FEUR R ()
Wt (&)

(f)  Movements on the provision for impairment of trade () FEWEZZHEREESHNT

receivables are as follows:

2009 2008
—TTNF —EENEF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT BEBT
At 1 January n—A—H 13.3 19.8
Currency translation differences BRI EER 0.4 1.1
Reclassification from provision for
other receivables BHMEWRBEET D IE 1.7 -
Provision for impairment loss REE R 6.4 1.1
Write back of provision for impairment loss R EE R (1.3) (1.5)
Trade receivables written off during the year FAMEE AT AR 2
as uncollectible FEUER R (0.6) (7.2)
At 31 December w+—-—A=+—8 19.9 13.3
(g) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date () RBEAHz&E=EERRALASERKRZER
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned & - K%ll?ﬁ&%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁuu °
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
31 Construction contracts in progress 31 EEIREEN
Group
REH
2009 2008
—ZThEF ZETN\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBIT BEBT
Contract costs incurred plus attributable profits BRI I E FER RS i F s
recognised less provision for foreseeable losses A8 R EiE s 3,032.3 3,000.3
Progress payments received and receivable B U FE UG S 3R (2,947.2) (2,904.0)
85.1 96.3

Representing:

Gross amounts due from customers for
contract works included in trade and
other receivables (Note 30)

Gross amounts due to customers for
contract works included in trade and
other payables (Note 39)
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T AEUER R R H b MR 2
JEWERF &4 TIRFIALREE
(Ff¥3E30) 85.1 140.9
FTAERBESR R HMEN K2
ERNEPE&HNIIRFIBREE
(HM$3E39) - (44.6)

85.1 96.3




32 Restricted cash 32 ZREESE

Group
REH
2009 2008
—ZTThEF —ZZT)N\4
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBIT BEBT
Restricted cash represents: SERFHIREIE
Deposits placed with banks FHRRERBITZIFHK
— for securing banking facilities granted to —AREBETWEER
certain buyers of properties of the Group ERIRITREE 4.7 6.9
— for securing performance bonds and —ETERERER G
guarantees in respect of alternative BAREE R IEIR
energy projects 35.6 48.1
— for securing certain bank loans —mEEETHRITER 196.0 292.2
Deposits placed with a bank TR —MRITZ TR
— in the court procedure of preservation —VEAETTHERERN
of property ERERF - 73.7
— for issuing performance guarantees to certain ——IEYEBEARET
third parties in respect of a property project FZHEHBYRE = 190.0
Escrow accounts relating to the pre-sale deposits  sEEBRBE F N —IEYZE
held for a property resettlement scheme MB=tE|2FEEE] S 72.7 64.0
309.0 674.9
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e RRMEE

33 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents B2 RIRELEEM
comprises the following: BREUATSEE

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFERE

Short-term bank deposits EHRIT IR

Less: Restricted cash B ZREIR S
(Note 32) (PFF#E32)
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY
(a)  Placed in banks in the PRC: @ RFEZRIFE
~ denominated in Renminbi —-UARBEE
— denominated in —UBTEE
Hong Kong dollars
~ denominated in US dollars —METEE
(b)  Placed in banks in (b) RMEARZRIFE:
Hong Kong:
- denominated in —DATEE
Hong Kong dollars
— denominated in US dollars —-NELLEE

HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2009

33 RERREEEY

Group Company
REE ZiN/NG|

2009 2008 2009 2008
—EENF T N\F —ETNF —EENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBTT BEAET BEBT BEET
1,645.6 1,032.1 8.5 33
873.4 1,479.7 - 127.8
2,519.0 2,511.8 8.5 131.1
(309.0) (674.9) = =
2,210.0 1,836.9 8.5 131.1

Group Company

rEE YN

2009 2008 2009 2008
“EINE “FINF “EINE “FT)\E
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBAT BEAT BEBAT BEAT
1,342.4 1,009.7 - -
589.7 7175 - -
25 20.1 - -
582.9 762.5 8.5 1311
1.5 20 - -
2,519.0 2,511.8 8.5 1311




33 RERREEBY @)
REERZEBREMEMT

33 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date
were as follows:

2009 2008
ZZETNF ZETNF
HK$ Us$ RMB HK$ US$ RMB
BT =TT ARK BTT ETT ANREE
Short-term bank deposits FHISRTTIEAR 0.01% - - 0.36% — 0.05%— 1.15% 0.36%—
0.97% 1.71% 2.05% 3.51%
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting REERBHmE zHEEERR A LA 2 He RIR

EERARMEIE ©

date is the carrying value of the cash and bank balances 174
stated above.

The short-term bank deposits of the Group and the REERARGRERARITFER 2RI HA A=A LA
Company have original maturities of three months or ™o
less.
34 Share capital 34 B
Number of Ordinary
Note shares shares
BisE A& & LiE
(Million) HK$ Million
(B8) BEABT
Authorised EE
At 1 January and 31 December 2008, RZZFEZENF—A—ABK
1 January and 31 December 2009 T+ A=+—HUKR=ZEZEAEF
—A—HBRk+=ZA=+—H 30,000.0 300.0
Issued and fully paid ERITRHZE
At 1 January 2008 R-ZEZENF—HF—H 8,215.1 82.2
Issue of scrip dividend AR BT El (a) 148.7 1.4
Repurchase during the year FERERE (b) (113.8) (1.1
Exercise of bonus warrants “314” ITIEAL AR ERE 314 ] (c) 0.3 -
Exercise of share options 1T{E R R AE (d) 4.5 _
At 31 December 2008 RZZEENF+_A=+—H 8,254.8 825
At 1 January 2009 R-ZEFEhE—-—H—H 8,254.8 82.5
Repurchase during the year FEREER (b) (5.1) (0.1)
Exercise of bonus warrants “314” ITIEAL AR HERET 314 (c) 0.4 0.1
Exercise of bonus warrants “407” TR AL AR HERET 407 | (e) 291.1 29
Issue of bonus shares BTHALRR (f) 854.5 8.5
At 31 December 2009 R-EBEENE+=-HA=1+—H 9,395.7 93.9
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e MBRRME

34 Share capital (continued) 34 B um)
Notes: BT -
(a) The Company offered to its shareholders a scrip dividend (a) ZAATMEREIRSURKREETE - i REART
alternative under which the shareholders could elect to HIAR S B R B E R ER S R EE0.01%8 T2 H AR LA
receive ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in lieu of cash RERSRE - WABERITL @R -

dividend during the following dividend declaration and
ordinary shares were issued accordingly:

All shares issued in 2008 rank pari passu in all respects NRE-BENFERTZCAAERNMES A HEEHIEAR
with the then existing shares. NEFREER -
Number of Issue price
new ordinary per ordinary
shares issued share Issue date
21T BRERk2
g maRE BITE FITEE
Interim dividend for the year HE=—ZTTN\F+_-A 148,692,266 HK$0.347 3 December 2008
ended 31 December 2008 =t+—HLFEZ —EENF+-A=H
FHARR B
(b) For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2009, (b) BEZZEZN\FR-ZETZNF+-_A=+—BLHF
the Company repurchased a total of 113,785,000 and E o ARRIREEZFTEE O E AR 54 $£113,785,000 &
5,115,000 of its own shares on the SEHK respectively, all 5,115,0000&0% 17 * 2 EFZEMRM O T - FFB0T ¢

of which have been cancelled as follows:—

Purchase price per share

Number of Total BRBHEBEE

shares repurchased purchase price Highest Lowest

Month/year F /A BB EE REEE &= =K

HK$ Million HK$ HK$

BEET BT BT

January 2008 —TT)N\F—A 61,266,000 104.9 1.87 1.52

March 2008 T N\F=HA 51,932,000 81.1 1.67 1.20

September 2008 —ZTTN\FNA 587,000 0.4 0.73 0.72
113,785,000 186.4

December 2009 ZEThF+ZA 4,115,000 2.6 0.63 0.62

December 2009 ZETNF+TZA 1,000,000 0.6 0.59 0.59
5,115,000 3.2
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34 Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(c)

(d)

On 30 November 2007, the Company issued 821,279,383
warrants (Warrant Code: 314) on the basis of one warrant
for every ten existing shares of the Company held by the
shareholders (“bonus warrants “314”). The holders of
bonus warrants “314” are entitled to subscribe at any
time during 30 November 2007 to 30 November 2009
for fully paid shares at a subscription price of HK$2.05
per share (subject to adjustment). 302,245 new ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were issued upon the exercise of
302,245 units of bonus warrants “314” for the year ended
31 December 2008.

On 22 May 2009, the subscription price of bonus warrants
“314" was adjusted to HK$1.96 per share as a result of a
new issue of bonus warrants, and the subscription price
was further adjusted to HK$1.95 per share in the event
of distribution in specie of the bonus warrants (Warrant
Code: 748) of Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited to the
shareholders of the Company on 10 June 2009. On 30
October 2009, the subscription price of bonus warrants
“314” was adjusted to HK$1.77 per share as a result of
the issue of bonus shares.

359,075 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were
issued upon the exercise of 359,075 units of bonus
warrants “314" for the period from 1 January 2009 to
30 November 2009 and the outstanding bonus warrants
“314" expired on 30 November 2009.

Share options are granted to employees, senior executives
or officers, managers, directors or consultants of any
members of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The exercise price must be at least the higher of

(i)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant;

(i)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of a share.

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date
on which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board
may specify at the time of grant. An offer of the grant of an
option shall remain open for acceptance for a period of 10
business days from the date of offer and a consideration
of HK$1 must be paid upon acceptance.

34 BRAR )
GEREC)

(c)

RZZE+F+—A=1+H ARAREBRRESHE10
RA RN AT 10 Rk iERE 2 B4 - $877821,279,383
DRIKED (RIMEZERSE - [314] 0 ([4IFIRREAEE
[314]]) - AFMRBAEZE314 B EABER _TTLF
+ A=Z+BHE-_ZTTAF+— A=+ BRI MAER

AR E SRR 2.0573 70 (A] TR ) REBAZRRG -
HE-ZZN\FE+_A=1+—HILFE - 302,245 &F
F& T {E0.0178 7T 2 31 & B I 1A 302,245 17 41 FI 52 PR #E 75
[314 TR BT -

:?%ﬂiﬁﬂ*+*ﬁ ﬂﬂ%%%%BhH%ﬁ@
I?ﬁ%ﬂﬂmk%‘ BEFGR1I6HET - RIBE
f77ﬂ¢Aﬁ+Eﬁ$ AR D IREERTAEIR (12
) B IR A RIALN R A i 78 (RS RS (U5R « 748) B —
FREZERIBETL - —TTZAFTA=TH » A7

REAERE314 |RBERBITARBEZERLT7ET

MoTTAF-A-BE-TEAST-A=TALE
fid - 359,075/ & AR EIE0.01 8 7T 2 #1 & 1@ Ik 7 359,075
(ATFIRIR AR 314 VAT 81T - MR (T EALT
WRHEE 314 ER_FEAF+— A=+ AR -

AARMAEEETEAKEARSREERZES -
BRITRAEBRTIEAES - 12 ERRERROER

-
TREAERIBUATESE
(i)  BREL A ERR TS A RERAFIKRHE

(i) BHOEEXREHASNR
BRMATIFIHRMHE : K&

B2 A EBIAERAR

(i) BRHEI(E -

BREANEL AR I0FREFES AR R L
BRZEBHBREATR - RERBZBRETERER
Hiist HEE X AMEAREE A RER  ZAKEXM]
BITHRE -

EBERER)BRARN-ZZAFFR
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34 Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)
(d)  (continued)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as
follows:

34 BA&m
ST (4

@ &)

&)

HARTTE 2 BIRERE R AT REZS T

2009 2008
—EENF —TTN\FE
Average exercise Average exercise
price in HK Number of price in HK Number of
dollars per share options  dollars per share options
FR¥H ARG
BITITEE fElk S B BITITR(E RS
At 1 January n—HA—H 1.593 320,900,000 1.553 165,700,000
Granted [Esgunt - - 1.656 214,900,000
Exercised 21768 - - 1.420 (4,500,000)
Lapsed before the issue of BITHIIR AT R
bonus shares 1.554 (90,000,000) 1.732 (55,200,000)
Issue of bonus shares BITAIRR - 23,090,000 - =
Lapsed after the issue of BITHIRR 1B K3
bonus shares 1.421 (18,150,000) - -
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 1.465 235,840,000 1.593 320,900,000
Outstanding share options at 31 December 2009 and THERZTZENF+A=+—HHERTEZ
2008 are as follows: ,ﬁgﬂﬂgﬁuT :
Exercise Outstanding at Outstanding at
price 31 December 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period per share 2009 2008
ZTTNF RZZTENEF
tZA=+—-R +=ZA=t+—H
i) =R 171 A 17188 HARITIE W ARTTEE
(HK$)
(B7x)
15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 14 December 2016 1.291 18,067,500 28,025,000
ZETRETA+RAE ZERAFTATRAEZ-RETATHEA
15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 14 December 2016 1.291 34,127,500 50,225,000
ZEERFTATRE R N\F+-ATABE-Z—RE+-ATHNA
15 December 2006 15 December 2009 to 14 December 2016 1.291 22,275,000 34,750,000
ZEERFTZATREA ZEENFTZATRBEZZ—RF+-A+HMA
3 July 2007 15 December 2007 to 2 July 2017 2.091 5,500,000 5,000,000
“ZTT+F+A=H “ZTHFT - A+RABEZT—tF+tAZH
3 July 2007 15 December 2008 to 2 July 2017 2.091 2,750,000 2,500,000
e s = “EEN\FF+-A+ABE-ZT—tF+tA=H
3 July 2007 15 December 2009 to 2 July 2017 2.091 2,750,000 2,500,000
—ETLFEA=H —EENF+-_A+ABE-_Z—tFtEA=H
1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 31 January 2018 1.505 30,074,000 39,580,000
—ZZ)\5-_A—-H —EENF-A-HEZE-\F-A=1—H
1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 31 January 2018 1.505 45,111,000 59,370,000
—TT)\F=ZRA—H —ZT-ZF-R-BEZZT-/\F—A=+—H
1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 31 January 2018 1.505 75,185,000 98,950,000
ZEEN\F=ZA—H —E——F-_f-HE-ZT—\F—A=1+—H
Total 485t 235,840,000 320,900,000
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34 Share capital (continued)
Notes: (continued)

34 BRAR )
B - <£;>

(e) On 22 May 2009, the Company issued 825,481,451 (e) MIEZAFHEA-+-H AQAZRKREFEHAEIOK
warrants (Warrant Code: 407) on the basis of one warrant AR AT B 1D AR 2 2% - 3£17825,481,451
for every ten existing shares of the Company held by the DRRRED (RIREZBRGE - 407 » [ 41 FI| 32 I #E &
shareholders (“bonus warrants “407”). The holders of [407]]) o AIFRAEFEI407 I EABHR-_ZZTNF
bonus warrants “407” are entitled to subscribe at any time AA-t+=-—AE_FZ——FHA=-1+—H Eﬁfaﬁ{?cﬂﬁ—rfaﬁ
during 22 May 2009 to 21 May 2011 for fully paid shares AR ESRAR1D0.407% 7T (7] THE) RIB AR D
at a subscription price of HK$0.40 per share (subject to
adjustment).

On 30 October 2009, the subscription price of bonus —ETNFTAZTH  AFREREE407 [ REERA
warrants “407” was adjusted to HK$0.36 per share as a BTAI R M A EFHR0.36/8 7T °

result of issue of the bonus shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, 291,091,328 HEZTTNF+-ZA=+—HIEFE » 291,091 328J]x
new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued upon GRS EEO.OLE T ¥ EJHXE/\291 091 328{‘211“

the exercise of 291,091,328 units of bonus warrants HEE[407 | EFTER T R-ETNFE+_A= +—
“407". As at 31 December 2009, 534,390,123 units of B - 1448534,390, 1231\ZI$'J RIGAERE 407 JIMARITIE ©
bonus warrants “407” remained outstanding.

(f)  On 30 October 2009, the Company approved the issue ) RZZETAE+TA=1TH ARAEBEZEFHEIORE
of 854,514,642 bonus shares on the basis of 1 bonus B ATER 1 ARALAR 2 B - 8597854,514,6420R A1 % -
share for every 10 ordinary shares held. The bonus shares AP ERITREDIVESLR - IRFTE A m %17 B IR B IR
are issued and credited as fully paid upon issue and rank ZEREHED - ARBTEBBARABABBERRNE
pari passu in all respects with the existing shares with THESEENMEZ VA -
effect from the date of issue. The issue of bonus shares
is funded by way of capitalisation of certain amounts
standing to the credit of the Company’s contributed
surplus account.

35 Reserves 35 f#fE
Group £E
Capital Employee Available- Retained
Share reduction Contributed ~~ share-based Eamings/
premium e surplus — compensation Exchange (Accumulated
(Note a) resel 055es) Total
iy
ia)
HKS Millon
BEATL
Balance at 1 January 2008 RZFENE-A-BEH 103119 504.1 146 1474 - 459 5220 17 1675.2 133128
Fair value losses on available-for-sale AItHESHEEZ
financial assets AHEEE - - - - - - - 8.7 - 87)

Currency translation differences ~ EHEEEE - - - - - - 562.8 - - 562.8

Employee share option benefits EEBRERH - - - - - 69.0 - - - 69.0

Issue of scrip dividend MRRE3E 50.1 - - = = - - - - 50.1

Exercise of bonus warrants TR FARES 06 - - - - - - - _ 06

Exercise of share options i 64 - - = = = - - - 64

2007 final dividend FRARE - - - - = = - - (283.7) (283.7)

2008 interim dividend S N\FRHRE - - - - = = - - (121.6) (121.6)

Repurchase of shares BERA (185.3) - - - - - - - - (1853)

Loss for the year TEEEBR - = = = - - - - (2,646.0) (2,646.0)

Balance at 31 December 2008 RZEENF

+-A=+-R&H% 10,1837 594.1 146 1474 - 1149 1,084.8 (7.0) (1,376.1) 10,7564

Retained by: TIRE :

Company and subsidiaries RAFRHBAR 10,183.7 594.1 146 1474 - 1149 946.5 (7.0) (1,317.0) 10,677.2

Associated companies N - - - - - - 181 - 219 400

Jointly controlled entities B8R - - - - - - 1202 - (81.0) 39.2

101837 5041 146 1474 - 1149 10848 70 03761 107564
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35 Reserves (continued) 35 fRfEum
Group 58
Capital Capital Employee Available- Retained
Share reduction  redemption Contributed ~ share-based for-sale Eamings/
premium reserve reserve surplus  compensation Exchange  investments  (Accumulated
(Note a) (Note ) (Note b)  Capital reserve (Note d) reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
RVEE REHIFNGEE AABERE BARE HRHZAE e REEH/

(i) (HizEc) (Mixp)  AAGHE (M) EMeHE  EXGR  RAGR  (Z8ER) g
HKS Milion  HKSMilion — HKSMilion  HKSMilion — HKSMilon  HKSMilion  HKSMilion  HK§Milion  HKS Milion  HKS Milion
BEET  BEET  BEET  BEET BB BEAT  BEET  BEERT  EEER BEAR

Balance at 1 January 2009 WZZSNE-A-BLsH 10,183.7 594.1 146 1414 - 1149 1,084.8 (1.0) (1,376.1) 10,756.4
Fair value gains on available-for-sale It HESRER Y
financial assefs NYEYE = - - - - - - 31 - 37
Currency translation differences EHpE s - - - - - - (8.0) - - (8.0)
Employee share option benefits EEERERR - - - - - 2.1 - - - 2.1
Transfer between reserves EREE (124.8) - - - 1248 - - - - -
Issue of bonus shares B - - - - (85) - - - - (85)
Exercise of bonus warrants FHEARIARR R 114.1 - - - - - - - = 114.1
Repurchase of shares El ) @31 - - - - - - - - (3.0
Release of reserves upon the lapse  EETRIEL MBS AER
of share options 1] 25 - - - - (496) - - 411 -
Release of reserves upon HERERHBARE
disposal and liquidation BIRER
of subsidiaries - - - - - - (3.9 - - (3.9)
Release of reserve upon disposal HEMHHELRERR
of available-for-sale financial assets B EE - - - - - - - 0.1 - 0.1
Profit for the year ERRF - - - - - - - - 1,456.7 1,456.7
Balance at 31 December 2009 R-EEAE+-R
=T-REH 10,1724 594.1 146 1414 1163 934 10729 (3.2) 121.1 12,335.6
Retained by: FHRE -
Company and subsidiaries ARARHBAR 10,1724 504.1 14.6 1474 1163 934 936.9 (3.2) (668.3) 11,4036
Associated companies YN = = - - - - 168 - 66.1 829
Jointly controlled entities AERA - - - - - - 119.2 - 1299 849.1
10,1724 594.1 146 1474 1163 934 10729 (3.2) 121.1 12,335.6
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35 Reserves (continued)

Company

Balance at 1 January 2008

Employee share option benefits
Issue of scrip dividend

Exercise of bonus warrants
Exercise of share options

2007 final dividend

2008 interim dividend
Repurchase of shares

Loss for the year

Balance at 31 December 2008

Balance at 1 January 2009

Employee share option benefits
Transfer between reserves

Release of reserves upon the lapse

of share options
Exercise of bonus warrants
Distribution of bonus warrants
issued by the listed subsidiary
of the Company
Issue of bonus shares
Repurchase of shares
Profit for the year

Balance at 31 December 2009

RZZZ\F-H—H
&
EEBRERR
IR B 5
TIRAL MR AR R
TiERE AR
ZETHERERE
ZZT)\ERERS
BERG
rEEBE

R-FTNF
—R—R#&#

(B B RBRAE =R
FfERER
RS
FRER
THEALR R
DIRADR LA
RRE(TZALR
AR

BITAR

)

REREH

R

&=
<

FNE
A

TZA=t—B#&&

35 f#Ew@m
NG
Employee Retained
Contributed share-based earnings/
Share premium surplus  compensation  (Accumulated
(Note a) (Note d) reserve losses) Total
B
i aE ‘ Y fEE REBEF
(FizFa) (Pi¥7Ea) e (ZFHEE) oz
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
10,3119 - 38.2 334.6 10,684.7
- - 69.0 - 69.0
50.1 - - - 50.1
0.6 - - - 0.6
6.4 - - - 6.4
- - - (283.7) (283.7)
- - - (121.6) (121.6)
(185.3) - - - (185.3)
- - - (809.0) (809.0)
10,1837 - 107.2 (879.7) 94112
10,183.7 - 107.2 (879.7) 9,411.2
- - 28.1 - 28.1
(124.8) 124.8 - - -
25 - (41.9) 394 -
114.1 - - - 114.1
= (25.9) = = (25.9)
= (8.5) = = (8.5)
3.1 = = = (3.1)
- - - 1717.6 171.6
10,172.4 90.4 93.4 (62.7) 10,293.5
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161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBRRME

35 Reserves (continued)
Company (continued)

Notes:

(a)  The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

(b)  The application of the capital redemption reserve account
is governed by section 49H of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

(c) On 30 September 2005, by virtue of special resolutions
of the Company with the sanction of an order of the High
Court of the Hong Kong SAR, the nominal value of all the
issued and paid up capital was reduced from HK$1.00 to
HK$0.01 each, thereby reducing the issued and paid up
capital of the Company by HK$2,305.1 million and such
amount was transferred to the Capital Reduction Reserve
Account.

(d) By a special resolution passed on 10 June 2009, the
share premium account was reduced by HK$124.8 million
and the reduced amount was credited to the contributed
surplus account.

36 Amount due to a shareholder
The amount due to a shareholder is unsecured, interest
bearing at the Hong Kong dollar prime rate plus 2.0%
per annum and repayable on demand. The balance is
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
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35 @B
AT ()

36

P

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BB ERZ BERXBRE-NN\—REDEEITAM

BEE -

ERBORBRZAEAZ BB RRIGHFEAHGME
o

RIZZERFAA=TH  REBEEEBEFRSSERE
SHEZARRRRIRER - IEE BT RBREARZ
HERFRL00ETHECOLE T - Eitt - RARIE
17 R BB R AR 4 2,305,100,000/8 7T - RS REE RS
BRAHR R

FRR_ZBZEAFRATRBEZEIRER  BRAR
BARE R 4>124,800,0008 7T * MERD 2 @ HEEREE

FEfS — BB RFKE
e —ABRRFEREIER KB TREENE M
2.0%5t B RIEBRIEIE o HHLUBTTAHE -



37 Borrowings — Group 37 & —

2009 2008
—EENF —EENF
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEET BEBT
Non-current IERE
Bank borrowings SRITER 2,775.2 2,613.2
Other loans HEMER 88.3 107.3
Finance lease liabilities mMEHEEE 82.4 91.5
Loans from minority shareholders LHRREEFR 384.2 385.1
3,330.1 3,197.1
Current B
Bank borrowings RITER 382.1 316.4
Other loans HEMER 74.9 73.1
Finance lease liabilities FEMHEAR 9.2 9.5
466.2 399.0
Total borrowings B 3,796.3 3,596.1
Bank borrowings are secured by the investment RITERBAEEZREDNE - i‘ﬁﬁiiﬂﬁﬁfiﬁx )
properties, prepaid land lease payments, properties, ¥ BBREE - WELABRKA - BFEE - ARER
plant and equipment, toll fee income, intangible assets, MARHRTF SR VER R (FIsE16 ~ 17 ~ 18 ~ 19K%32) ©
corporate guarantee and pledged deposits of the Group
(Notes 16, 17, 18, 19 and 32).
(a) The maturity of bank borrowings and other loans at (a) SBITEREEMEFNEFE A CFEBHANT
the balance sheet date is as follows:
Secured bank borrowings Unsecured other loans Total
BEMRITER EIREEMEN am
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
—sepE | —TI\F | SEBAE —TT/\F —BBAE —TI)\F
HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HKS Million — HK$ Million ~ HKS Million
BEBTL BEAT BEBIL BEAT BEBT BEATL
Within one year —FR 382.1 3164 14.9 73.1 457.0 389.5
In the second year F-F 37115 275.5 19.2 191 390.7 294.6
In the third to fifth year FFRERF 768.3 946.9 51.3 575 819.6 1,004.4
After the fifth year hE% 1,635.4 1,390.8 17.8 30.7 1,653.2 1,421.5
3,157.3 2,929.6 163.2 180.4 3,320.5 3,110.0
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37 Borrowings — Group (continued)

(b) The Group has finance lease liabilities at the

(c)

(d)

balance sheet date as follows:

Gross finance lease liabilities —
minimum lease payments

Within one year

In the second year

In the third to fifth year

After the fifth year

Future finance charges on finance leases

Present value of finance lease liabilities

The present value of finance lease liabilities
is as follows:

Within one year

In the second year

In the third to fifth year

After the fifth year

The loans from minority shareholders are
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet

date were as follows:

Bank borrowings RITER
Other loans HEHER
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37 B —FB @)

i

B AEEZREBEERENT

ey g:*
N WA FF

(b)

MEREEERRE -
—FR
FE=FEERF
AEF%
BMERE 2 KRB EER
BEREEBCRE

MEMERBEZREWT

—FR
o5 —
E=FEFNF
RER®

(c)

(d)

=K

2009 2008

= T
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEATT BEAETT

BB

10.0 9.7

10.3 10.0

32.7 31.7

79.3 90.3

132.3 141.7
(40.7) (40.7)

91.6 101.0

9.2 9.5

9.0 9.2

25.6 26.3

47.8 56.0

91.6 101.0

BALBBRR 2 ERREER 2R REEE

REHE A2 BERFRMT -

vem o
ER

2009 2008
—EENF —ETNF
HKS$ RMB HK$ RMB
BT AR BT AR
0.8% 5.31%-6.53% 4.0% 594%-8.61%

- 2.55%-24.0% -

2.82%-24.0%




37 Borrowings — Group (continued)

37 BER—FEBE®@m

(e) The carrying amounts of the borrowings are (e) BRZEMEMBELR TIEBE

denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars
Renminbi

The Group has the following undrawn
borrowing facilities:

Floating rate
— expiring within one year

BIT
AR

AEBEETIARBREREE :

I
— R4 OB

2009 2008
—EFNE  —TT\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEST  AEET
135.7 138.8
3,660.6 3,457.3
3,796.3 3,596.1
= 339.7

EBERER)BRARN-ZZAFFR
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38 Deferred income tax liahilities

The major deferred income tax liabilities recognised and

movements are as follows:

38 ELEMBHAE

EERCEEERE

At 1 January 2008 RZZEENF—H—

Currency translation BRME =T
differences

Acquisition of subsidiaries Ug BB A &)

Credited to income statement A BRI
(Note 12) (FFaE12)

At 31 December 2008 RZTTNEF

+=—A=+—H
At 1 January 2009 RZEZNF—A
Currency translation BRME =T

differences

Adoption of HKAS 40 RNE B GER
Amendment F40%R1E uTZlK
Charged/(credited) to income Bz EXIE
statement (Note 12) (Gt A) (FitEE12)
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZTNF
+=ZA=+—H

EFS B EREESIT

Group
EE
Fair value Adjustments
adjustments on prepaid
on investment land lease
properties payments Other Total
TER T
REWE MER
N ERAE N EFE i FE
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAET BEHBIT BEAT BEAET
136.7 294.8 - 431.5
24.6 24.4 0.2 49.2
- 401.5 7.2 408.7
(99.8) (9.2) (3.5) (112.5)
61.5 7115 39 776.9
61.5 711.5 3.9 776.9
(0.7) 0.6 - (0.1)
353.3 (353.3) = =
261.5 724 (0.5) 3334
675.6 431.2 3.4 1,110.2

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefits through the future taxable profits is
probable. The Group did not recognise deferred income
tax assets of HK$234.4 million (2008: HK$193.2 million)
in respect of tax losses of HK$1,194.6 million (2008:
HK$1,006.5 million) to carry forward against future
taxable income. These tax losses have no expiry dates
except for the tax losses of HK$480.0 million (2008:
HK$318.5 million) which will expire at various dates up
to and including 2014 (2008: 2013).
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39 Trade and other payables

39 EMRRIRH AR

Group Company
REE PIN/NE|
2009 2008 2009 2008
—ZETNEF —ETN\F T NF —ET)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEATT BEAT EEcw
Trade payables FERTBRRR 40.6 55.6 - -
Retention payables FERHREB AR 27.9 30.4 - -
Other payables and accruals — E{th B A K fEEH & B 965.2 1,024.0 62.5 74.1
Gross amounts due to ERNEFPEHITIENRIEA
customers for contract @EE(MEE31)
works (Note 31) - 44.6 - -
1,033.7 1,154.6 62.5 74.1

(a) At 31 December 2009, retention payables for
contracts in progress amounting to HK$33.2
million (2008: HK$35.7 million) were included in
non-current payables and current other payables,
depending on their expected date of payment.

(b) The ageing analysis of trade payables at year end
was as follows:

(@ R-TEEAF+-_A=1+—H8 EEIERY
2 FE IR R B8 33,200,000 T (Z 2T\ F ¢
35,700,000 7T) E A RIRFRHNKA - IR
TREN T SR e EAth R ED BT K o

(b) MNEHER - BNRIZERITAT

Group

REE
2009 2008
—TENF —ETN\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million

=R Yow BEBTT

0 to less than 2 months Z5 LR 2(E A 8.6 10.3
2 to less than 6 months 22 L6(E A 0.6 0.6
6 to less than 12 months 6= L1218 A 0.5 5.1
12 months and more 1218 A KA 30.9 39.6
40.6 55.6
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39 Trade and other payables (continued)
(c) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and
other payables are denominated in the following

currencies:
Hong Kong dollars BIT
Renminbi AREE

(d) The change of fair value amounting to HK$28.8
million for financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss has been recognised as part of the
reversal of impairment losses on prepaid land lease
payments (2008: provision for impairment loss on
prepaid land lease payments of HK$88.3 million).
As of 31 December 2009, the net carrying amount is
HK$266.3 million (2008: HK$237.9 million).
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39 FEFERFR N H A ES R @)

(c)

(d)

AEBERENERREMENRZEEERATE
%5I1E

2009 2008
=g | —TTNg
HK$ Million HK$ Million

EEBE = BEET
186.3 172.8
8474 981.8

1,033.7 1,154.6

BAFEERRRIGEZSRABZATEEZS
28,800,000 L (ZTT)\F « BN LA ER
# 1#88,300,0007% 7T ) E HER A TE M L1 & 5
BEEREZ %9 R _EEAFE+_A=1+—
B - BREH(E/5266,300,0008 T ( — 2T )\ 4F :
237,900,000/ 7T ) °



40 Commitments — Group
(a) Capital commitments

Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but REEBEREERREELEZERNAZNT

not yet incurred is as follows:

(b)

()

(ii)

Capital commitments undertaken
by the Group
(a) Property, plant and equipment
— Contracted but not provided for
(b) Property development projects
— Contracted but not provided for
(c) Capital contribution to joint venture
projects in alternative energy
— Authorised but not contracted for

Capital commitments undertaken
by the jointly controlled entities

Property development projects

Contracted but not provided for — the
Group’s share

Commitments under operating leases

The aggregate future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect

of land and buildings is as follows:

No later than 1 year
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

40 EE-KEF
(a) BAEIE

() KEEHZEXAE

(a) 3 - W2 MR

— BRIMEREE
(b) MEFEIEA

— BRIAEAREE
() MERERAEZLEBEIE

— EERBERFTH

(i) BENFZERFE

E S
ERTAEBERUARE R
BRI 1ER R

Group

REHE
2009 2008

SEBHE | BT\

HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEBT BEBTT
417.8 7523
357.9 382.7
- 243.0
775.7 1,378.0
141.6 74.2

(b) RELEHE 2HAE

—&FR
—FERF
HBEhF

REABELHNET 2 A HBEEEHE 2 RE
REBSEENT

2009 2008
“ETAE T
HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEAT  OEET

10.1 11.2

30.6 325

51.6 58.2

92.3 101.9

BBERER)BRARN-ZZAFFR
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BB HRARBTRE

Commitments — Group (continued)

(c) Future minimum rental receivable
The future aggregate minimum rental receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases is as

40 FEE-SB @)

(c) RREREEKES
BETITHECLREY XRRERKES B
mF -

follows:

41

2009 2008

TN e AN

HK$ Million HK$ Million

BEET BEBTT

No later than 1 year —FR 76.8 93.4
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years —FERF 115.2 180.5
Later than 5 years BidAF 22.0 31.7
214.0 305.6

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The lease runs for an initial
period of one to ten years, with an option to renew
the lease when all terms are renegotiated. Lease
payments are usually increased annually to reflect
market rentals. None of these leases include
contingent rentals.

Contingent liabilities — Group
The Group’s investment property located in Shenzhen,
the PRC is subject to housing facility fund pursuant

AEBERBELLEHEOBRENELE - BONE
AP-—E+F YREAREEBEAIHARESR
ERSAERFOAENRRE He—REBFLE
MR TISES - BOW T EERAES

41 HAREE

*ETJ%E@*)ULE¢+*H —BERAZCRIIE B RE
EEMFERGE)  ARERTERIZ—BEERE

to <FYIEEHEEEREMEEIZIEM]> adopted on MEXBRREEAAREERAES -CHERESE
1 November 1994. Contingent liabilities of RMB75.8 BAFMGSEEEREATEHEEECIABEAAR

million (equivalent to approximately HK$86.1 million)
(2008: RMB75.8 million (equivalent to approximately
to HK$86.0 million)) arising in this respect have
been assessed by management with reference to the
legal opinion previously obtained. Management have
requested relief from the relevant local government
authorities on the grounds that certain amounts of
maintenance costs were already spent for the purposes as
specified under the requirement of housing facility fund,
hence no further provision for the fund is considered
necessary.
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75,800,000 7T ( 4948 & #286,100,000/8 7T ) (ZEZE
N - AR # 75,800,000 7T ()48 & # 86,000,000 %
7T)) - ANERBEELAAREERESRERMIETE
B NETREXNASHE - BRECD M E BT
BERER22NR  RtERAHAHESEE IR
o



42 Related party transactions
Other than the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the material
related party transactions have been entered into during

42 BEALRS
BRIt SRR M A0 R 2 X 5 ARSI - FRET
MZEXBEEALRSIT

the year:
2009 2008
—BEAE  —TEF
Note HK$ Million HK$ Million
P 5T BEET BEBT
Income from supply of water to Jinhai REAMSE S SHRE
Paper Pulping Industrial Company BRARMHAKZ YA
Limited (a) 24.1 30.3
Consultancy fee paid BENEEE (b) (5.2) -
Interest expense paid on ERRRERFEMAXZ
shareholders’ loans
— Creator Holdings Limited —ElEEB AR AR (c) & (d) (2.1) (2.7)
— Genesis Capital Group Limited —ERIEBE AR AT (e) = (5.3)
(2.1) (8.0)

Notes:

(@) Yangpu Water Supply Company Limited, a subsidiary of
which 65% equity interest held by the Group, entered into
a water supply agreement and a supplemental agreement
with Jinhai Paper Pulping Industrial Company Limited,
a company indirectly controlled by the Oei family, for a
period of 3 years commencing from 1 January 2009.
Income from Jinhai was conducted on terms as set out in
the agreement and the supplemental agreement governing
this transaction.

B

(a) AKEIFHESRRAERZMBRRFBIKERERE
AABRBERRGREZENZ AR BHSRAXERA
AR KR MR RS =T TAE AR
RE=F - KERBZPATDREBEE WAL 5 2
KB FE e 2 (R BUETT ©

BBERER)BRARN-ZZAFFR
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42 Related party transactions (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

On 2 March 2009, the Group entered into a consultancy
services agreement with a company controlled by an
Executive Director of the Company, who was appointed
to hold that office on 4 September 2009, pursuant to
which a monthly fee paid by the Group for the provision of
consultancy services rendered.

On 8 November 2009, the Company entered into a
revolving loan agreement with Creator Holdings Limited
(“Creator”) (a company owned as to 50% by Mr. Oei
Kong, Eric), under which the Company might borrow up to
HK$800.0 million for a period of 36 months from the date
of the agreement. The terms of the loan and outstanding
balance are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Hong Kong Construction (Hong Kong) Limited (“HKC
(HK)"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into various loan agreements with Creator under
which HKC (HK) might borrow up to HK$800.0 million
or its equivalent in other currency from Creator during
a period of 36 months from the date of the agreement.
The loan was unsecured and had no fixed repayment
terms. The interest was paid on terms as set out in the
agreement. There was no outstanding loan balance as
at 31 December 2008 and 2009 and the various loan
agreements will be expired on 30 June 2010.

On 8 October 2007, the Company entered into a revolving
loan agreement with Genesis Capital Group Limited, one
of the substantial shareholders which the Company might
borrow up to HK$1,000.0 million for a period of 36 months
from the date of the agreement. The loan was unsecured
and had no fixed terms of repayment. The interest was
paid on terms as set out in the agreement. There was no
outstanding loan balance as at 31 December 2008 and
2009. The revolving loan agreement will be expired on 7
October 2010.
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42 BEALTRZ @)
B © (48)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

—ETNF=ZAZRA > AEEEARF-BRTER(H
RZZETAFN A BESEMEEZRG) ZH 2 2 7]
A1 BRI R ek - UL AKE B ATRRHE TR
REZTAEER -

RZZEZAF+—ANA  ARARHRAZEREER QA
(T8I:Z 1) (R ARB0% BERER AR E )AL ERE
ihEE - I AR BRI BN B B AT 3618 A 2
fE 18 A5 =800,000,000/8 7T * B Z &R M A EIEAE
REVINAR B M TSR MTRES6

ARAZ2ENBLARAIEERR(BEE) IRBRAA
(BRI RABET L ZBEERME - BHEEL
TRA R % A B AL AT 3618 A B A mAIEE A RS
800,000,000/ Lk Kt & ¥ 2 F5E - ZEERAEIER
Ro S0 B ETE BT o MBS TR L 19 8 PR BGTRSAY -
RIZBZNFRZZZAFT -A=+—H  LEHKR

BEERLAS MISBEERBBZER-_ZT—ZTF-A
=+8Em -

R-ZTLFE+ANR  AAFRTERRZ 24
SEARARTTERERGE - Bt ARET
B K A MR AT 361 A R M 2 A E A B
1,000,000, 00087 * 3% B3k A 41 I SR EL R 83
# o FIB DRBLBEFBERLN - R-FRNER
“ETAGT-AS A TREREESRES -
HERSR BRI - T —TE+ A LAER -



42 Related party transactions (continued)

()

(g)

42 BEALTRZ @)

Notes: (continued) FfaE - (88)
Key management compensation H ZEEEEREHE
2009 2008
—TTNF ZZT)N\F
HK$ Million HK$ Million
BEAT BEET
Directors’ fees EE k0 1.9 1.9
Salary and other benefits e REAMEN 29.4 26.1
Employer’s contribution to pension scheme RIRETEIZ BEER 0.1 0.1
Share option benefits BAERF 5.8 16.1
37.2 44.2
On 21 May 2009, the Group’s non-wholly owned (@) R-ETNFRAZT—8 AEBEFZEWNBARE
subsidiary entered into an agreement to dispose of its S 0 AIE45% A ER LA (B 23,100,000/ T H &
55% shareholding interest in a biomass energy project to HRAEYERERIE B 255% 5 - 325 i A EERE
the other 45% shareholder at a consideration of HK$23.1 HEHELT o
million. The transaction was conducted on an arm-length
basis.
On 7 September 2009, the Group disposed of its entire (h) —EBEENFALAEE  AEBEUBRSREHDARE

(h)

equity interest in Yangpu Jingang Real Estate Company
Limited to Jinhai Paper Pulping Industrial Company
Limited, a company indirectly controlled by the Oei family,
at the cash consideration of approximately RMB28.3
million (equivalent to approximately HK$32.1 million).
The consideration was determined after arm’s length
negotiations between the parties mainly with reference to
the market value of the Land.

28300 ,0007T (X988 732,100,000/ 7T ) ) F & X &K Tk

BERZES 2 ARIEEEBRAXERQARHEERTR
EEEFXERAR 2 EHMBARER - RENETHST

TEZEZ LM HELAFHERREE -

BBERER)BRARN-ZZAFFR
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43 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit/(loss) to net

cash (used in)/generated from operations

Profit/(loss) before income tax
Finance income

Depreciation and amortisation
Employee share option benefits

Net gain arising from the loss and compensation

of a piece of land
Fair value adjustments on investment properties
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment losses on
assets (Note 7)
Write back of provision for
— impairment losses on trade receivables

— management fee for vacant units in properties

Gain on completion of liquidation of subsidiaries

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Gain on deemed disposal of certain equity
interest in an associated company

Net exchange (gain)/losses

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Provision for impairment loss on properties
held for sale

Write down of inventories

Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, net

Dividend income

Finance costs

Share of profits less losses of associated
companies

Share of profits less losses of jointly controlled
entities

Operating loss before working capital changes

Increase in properties under development

Increase in prepaid land lease payments

Decrease in properties held for sale

Decrease in other non-current receivables

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Decrease in trade and other receivables

(Decrease)/increase in other non-current
payables and trade and other payables

Increase in minority interest

Cash (used in)/generated from operations
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43 ZERERERME

(a) R&HRF,(BR)EKEXK (A FE

R FHE YR

2009 2008
—TTHE —ETNE
HK$ Million HK$ Million
A&BT BEBTT
FTSFiaT=F,/ (E18) 2,036.2 (2,921.2)
BIIS AR A (11.1) (63.2)
Pree K sy 151.3 204.4
BB BRERT 28.1 69.0
Bl tiEIEREEEEY
Gyt - (794.0)
AN TERE (1,085.4) 473.0
BEREREZ (BE), HE
(M$3E7) (403.0) 2,335.0
BRI TS IB RS
—EWEFURESE (1.3) (1.5)
—EEEBMNEEE (65.6) -
MR RNEE TR 2 WES (24.3) -
HE B A RS (7.2) -
BIEHEE THEQAFTRA
M (5.7) -
P (Yees ) S1EF 58 (12.8) 82.1
HEYE - B RERE (2.6) (0.1)
HERMEHESRE E Y EE
0.1 -
{ESHE ik 2 MEREEEEE
5.8 0.2
FEMR 4.2 19.7
BRATFERBRERIEZSREE
ZAFEEER (W) FE 0.9 (51.5)
f& B - (2.6)
BB R 183.5 237.2
FE(REE &R BIHE A BUE R
(44.2) 85.5
FEMRA LR EHEFBUEE
(810.9) 81.1
LEESEHAICEER (64.0) (246.9)
B R RN (80.1) (406.6)
FE K £ 1 R & TR hn (0.9) (41.1)
TESHERBR ZMER D 52.3 -
HAbIEREN REU TR - 37.0
BERL,(350) 26.1 (51.3)
JE LA BR TR R LAt MR R 70.1 472.2
H A IETRE RS FUA K RS BRFR
H AR CRL), /A0 (126.7) 350.6
D BRAR R AR I AN 2.2 19
BEEA) /BRE (121.0) 115.8




43 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement

(continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries

(c)

Net assets disposed:
Intangible assets
Prepaid land lease payments
Properties under development
Property, plant and equipment
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Minority interest

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Consideration

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration
Receivable

Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of disposal of
subsidiaries

Cash consideration
Cash and cash equivalents disposed

43 ZEBRERERMT @)

(b) HEMBLQF

PR EEEFE
BVEE
BN EER
BRTME
M - e R E
R RRSEEY
FEA R EA R 3R
DERR

& BN Az M

RE

PNIVES o
Rer(E
L EN

2009
=EBFNF
HK$ Million

BEBT

24.8
16.4
156.3
0.2
4.1
(0.8)
(12.7)

47.3
7.2

54.5

34.4
20.1

54.5

(c) FALENBRAZRERRSEE/YR

REDAT

ReE
PR ERE LIRS EEY

2009
—EENF
HK$ Million

BEET

34.4
(4.1)

30.3

BBERER)BRARN-ZZAFFR
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43 Notes to consolidated cash flow statement 43 ZEREREXRMZT @)
(continued)

(d) Acquisition of subsidiaries d) WEKEBQTR

2008
—EENF
HK$ Million
BEBT

Net assets acquired: P & =5 E
Property, plant and equipment YIZE - R R 280.0
Construction in progress fEETRE 142.3
Properties under development BRBPYE 333
Prepaid land lease payments FEM A ER 2,909.8
Intangible assets EREE 29.8
Inventories FE 3.2
Other receivables EAb UK 10.1
Goodwill kS 140.3
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 634.0
Trade and other payables FEAT BRI E b A 3k (105.0)
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFFS LB & (1.4)
Bank borrowings and other loans IRITIER R EMER (415.5)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIARE (408.7)
Shareholders’ loan BRER (1,078.7)
Other loans EAMER (625.9)
Minority interest DERR R R (64.1)
1,483.5
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEE 2 ' 262.9
Minority interest DHIRRE R (455.0)
Consideration RIE 1,291.4

Satisfied by: ATREEREZAT
Cash consideration BERE 2,370.1
Shareholders’ loan BRER (1,078.7)
1,291.4

(e) Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash (e) BUWEBHBARZEESRRAESEEBYZR
equivalents in respect of acquisition of RO
subsidiaries

2008

ZEENF

HK$ Million

BEAT

Cash consideration RERE (2,370.1)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired TR e MRS EY 634.0

(1,736.1)
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44 Events after the reporting period

(a)

(b)

On 22 March 2010, the Board proposed to make
a bonus issue of new shares of HK$0.01 each
to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company a date
which is tentatively set to be on 12 May 2010 (the
“Record Date”) on the basis of 1 bonus share for
every 10 ordinary shares to be held. The bonus
shares will be issued and credited as fully paid
upon issue and will rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing shares with effect from the date
of issue. The bonus issue will be funded by way
of capitalisation of certain amount standing to
the credit of the Company’s contributed surplus
account and is conditional upon the approval of the
shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company to be convened, and the granting by The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited of the listing
of, and permission to deal in, the new shares to be
issued pursuant thereto.

On 22 March 2010, the Board also proposed to
make a bonus issue of warrants to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on the Record Date on the basis
of 1 bonus warrant for every 10 ordinary shares
to be held. The subscription price of HK$0.50 is
determined at a discount of approximately 27%
to the average closing price of the ordinary shares
of the Company for 5 consecutive trading days
immediately prior to 22 March 2010.

There are no significant financial effects to the
Company upon the grant of such bonus warrants.

44 ZHRBEREE

(a)

(b)

RZZE—TF=A-+=H EFEEEMNNY
ER-T—EFRA+-A(Z&%BHNZBET
ZFIARRRPER A M BERBEITEROOLETLZ
AL - EEREHA IO E BIRERE IRAAR -
ALRHS T 31T RN BITR SRR - XASERT
HEZRTEAZRBARNFERFES - BITA
BAEBEBBRRARBARBREANE TERSEE
ez TABE - WAFRRRARAGERZ
BRRBFRE EHAERTEBERXSMER AR
AR TRTZHROD EMEEERR - 5E
1FE -

RZZE—TF=A-+=H EFENEEAR
ALk B EA R DI AR B R A 1 2 BOR B ATAL AR

PeteE - EERTHA OB E BRI L AIRR
PRHERE - RIBBO.S0E TR AR R EERNE

E_E-TE=-R_t+_HAEBEAR SR T
BT EITRL27 % MEE

RE LA BALN R EFE -
e -

HARBLEEKR
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44 Events after the reporting period (continued)

(c) Pursuant to the announcement dated 22 March
2010 of Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited
(“HKE"), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, new bonus shares (“HKE bonus shares”)
and new bonus warrants (“HKE bonus warrants”),
subject to satisfaction of certain conditions, are
proposed to be issued. The Company is entitled to
57,259,829 HKE bonus shares and 57,259,829
HKE bonus warrants. The Board proposed to reduce
certain amount in its share premium account and
transfer the reduced amount to the credit of its
contributed surplus account for distribution to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on the Record Date on
the basis of 1 HKE bonus share for approximately
every 165 ordinary shares to be held on the Record
Date and 1 HKE bonus warrant for approximately
every 165 ordinary shares to be held on the Record
Date.

There is no significant financial impact to the Group
arising from the distribution.

(d) On 22 March 2010, the Board also proposed to
distribute up to a maximum of 65,418,566 existing
ordinary shares of HKE (“HKE shares”) to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on the Record Date
on the basis of 1 HKE share for approximately every
144 ordinary shares to be held on the Record Date.
On the basis of 572,598,298 HKE shares indirectly
held by the Company as at the date of this report,
upon the completion of this distribution and without
taking into account any fractional HKE shares
not distributed to the qualifying shareholders, the
Company will hold 507,179,732 ordinary shares of
HKE, representing 65.56% of the existing issued
share capital of HKE.

There is no significant financial impact to the Group
arising from the distribution.

45 Comparative figures
Certain comparative figures as set out in the consolidated
financial statements and the related notes thereto have
been reclassified to conform with the current year’s
presentations which was changed largely due to the
adoption of new accounting standards.
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44 Z2FHHBEEE @)

(c)

(d)

REARBEE2EMBRAEEHERGER)E
RaB([FEHER)AMR_T—FF=H
“t B2 FERETIRFER  ZRET
AR ([ BB FREIRALAR | ) K ¥ A1) 38 ik #E 78
(TEBERANRBAER ) - NABHEER
57,259,829 X & 78 ¥ 8L IR AL AR [2 57,259,82917 &
BHEERANRIER - EETgEHEERD G
ERFIRETE2E  UHAAORSRELEE
BABRBRKRER - UHEDIRTRECEE R
ARRBRREM IR - BESNCHABER
B #1656/ ERIREE IR BB IR - AR
RECE: B B A A 16580 E AR 1 BB
BERAL MR A HERE -

BN IREASEY BEAMBEE -

RZZE—TF=A_+_H EFENEIMAN
THBAMEIARABRREMZBRY KK
65,418,566k & B # LRI A BB ([ BB HTHE
R 1) - BEERN G B BERHEH144E 8
BREEIRBBIEREND - EARBNAREH
HARE 55 572,598,298 BB 8L R A 19 A N5t
ETREEBRRRSY KEMZHEEHELRRN
ZEET - RRBRDIREAFB507,179,732%
FEFERERE - HERBFEHMERAACH
1T’ A"65.56% ©

BN IRHASEY EEANBHZE

45 LEEEF
REAPTBRERGAMBRREEM TR E T
BRFEEY - UFAEFEZE2HR5R - BT EHR
RN G SR BRAEE L 2RTAEED -



PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
TEMBAT BEQEREERT

TR EERA/EAKRERE_STNF+_H :-1-— EI
EFEEER/FEEFEREATE 2 TENBR

BRARAEDAHN -

Listed below are the principal subsidiaries, associated
companies and jointly controlled entities which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affect the result and/or net assets
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009.

1 Principal subsidiaries 1 FEMEAT
Place of Issued Group’s
incorporation/ share capital/ effective
operation and Paid up equity
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities registered capital interest
RRlA
LEME KR BEIRE/ rEEZ
Ay g kil TEXRK ENEMER  ERRAER

(@)  Investment holding

REER

China Harvest Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/ PRC Investment holding HK$1,000,000

PITEEBRAR" i,/ REER 1,000,000/ 7T

Dorboy Investment Limited* Hong Kong/ PRC Investment holding HK$1,000

BEREBR AN BA/ REER 1,0007C

Eden Investment Group Limited+* British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding US$1

FARERBEER AR ERRLEE/TE REER IE

HKC (China) Management Company PRC Wholly foreign-owned Provision of management US$6,000,000
Limited* enterprise services in the PRC 6,000,000 7T

BRERFR(PE)EEBRAR REMNEBERE A BRI R

HKC Guilin Expressway Company Limited* Hong Kong/ PRC Investment holding HK$1 100%

BERRFEMNSRRBERA &5/ H REAER BT

HKC Infrastructure (Holdings) Limited**  British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding US$1 100%

BARR AR (R BRA R RERUHS/ REER I

HKC (Nanxun) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/ PRC Investment holding HK$2 100%

AR (AR BMBERERAR  &B/4 REER 28T

HKC Property Investments (China) British Virgin Islands/PRC Investment holding US$1 100%
Limited+# HERLRB,/ T REZR IE

BARRMERE (RE)ARAR

HKC Qingdao Investments Limited* Hong Kong/ PRC Investment holding HK$1 100%

BERFFBREABRAR B8,/ HE REER 15T

HKC Shenyang Heping Investments Hong Kong/ PRC Investment holding HK$1 100%
Limited* B/ F RERR AT

BERRERNTREFRAR
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
TEWBAT  BEATRAEAT

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

(@

Name

A

Investment holding (continued)

REER(H)

HKC Shenyang Hunan Investments
Limited*
BRERERERREARAAN

HKC (Yangpu) Water Supply Limited+
ERERCFBBKERAR

HKE (Chongging) Holdings Limited*#

HKE (Danjinghe) Wind Power Limited*
ERTRR(BET)EEERAR

Hong Kong Construction
(Interior Contracting) Limited+*

BRER(KETR)ERAA!

Hong Kong Construction Tianjin Tuan
Po Hu Investment Limited*

BERRRZERHRABR AR

Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited+©
BERER)BRAFNC

Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited#
BEIER(ER)BR A

Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi)
Wind Power Limited*

BAMER (W TR EEER AR

Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi Il)

Wind Power Limited*
A HAeR(NF a8 RlsE
BRAR

180 HKC (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2009

Place of
incorporation/
operation and
kind of legal entity
Al Vg
% =it EE RoEfE

Hong Kong/PRC
B/ H

Hong Kong/PRC
B/ H

British Virgin Islands/PRC
RERLHS/

Hong Kong/PRC
BB,/ H

Hong Kong/ PRC

BB/ H

Hong Kong/ PRC
B/ T

Cayman Islands/PRC
REHSs,/H

British Virgin Islands/PRC
RERTEE,/H

Hong Kong/ PRC

BB/ T

Hong Kong/ PRC
BA/

FEMB QR @)

Principal activities

TEYS
FEXH

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

REEK

Investment holding

REEK

Investment holding

REER
Investment holding

REEKR

Investment holding

REEKR

Investment holding

REEKR

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

REEK

Investment holding
REER

Issued

share capital/
Paid up
registered capital

BETRE/
EMEMER

HK$1
1ET

HK$10,000
10,000%7T

US$1
IE

HK$4
4BTT

HK$10,000
10,0007

HK$1
LB

HK$7,725,922.09
7,725,922.09% T

US$1
e

HK$2
2BT

HK$1,000
1,000% 7T

Group’s
effective
equity
interest

KEEZ
ERRAER

100%

100%

100%

93.53%

100%

100%

74.11%

100%

100%

74.11%



1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

(a)

(b)

Name

2T

Investment holding (continued)
RELZR(E)

lvy Garden Investments Limited+#

Karbony Investment Limited*

Noble Quest Enterprise Limited*

Sinoriver International Limited**

BIERER R A

The Legation Quarter Limited*
MARELLEERERAR

Property investment

NREE

Hong Kong Construction (China)
Engineering Company Limited**

BERR(PE)TRERAR

Karbony Real Estate Development
(Shenzhen) Company Limited*#
iEEERE(RINBRAR

Place of
incorporation/
operation and
kind of legal entity
RaiiAg

British Virgin Islands/PRC
RBRENEE/TE

Hong Kong/ PRC
i/ HE

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
RERTEE/ BB

British Virgin Islands/PRC
ERRLEHE/TH

Hong Kong/ PRC
B/ HE

PRC
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

PENNEEELR

PRC
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

TESNEEELR

FEME AT @)

Principal activities

IBRH

Investment holding
REAER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

REEK

Investment holding

REEK

Investment holding
REER

Investment in an apartment
and shopping mall of South
Ocean Centre, Shenzhen,
the PRC

BETERYFEER L
EEEURES

Investment in offices and
shopping mall of Shun
Hing Square, Shenzhen,
the PRC

REFERIIERESH
RAERES

Issued

share capital/
Paid up
registered capital

BRTRE/
ERMEMER

US$1
IE

HK$10,000,000
10,000,0007% 7T

Us$1
IES
Us$1

e

HK$82,105,263
82,105,263/ 7T

US$85,500,000
85,500,000 7

US$155,000,000
155,000,000 7T

Group’s
effective
equity
interest

AEEZ

BRI S

100%

100%

100%

100%

70.9%

100%

100%

BBERER)BRARN-ZZAFFR



PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Igﬁﬁ%@a N Eﬁﬁ**/'\j&/\x*,—\j

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Name

A

(b)  Property investment (continued)
WERE(H)

Shenzhen Jing-Guang Development
Company Limited**
A REERERAAH

Sky Universe Limited*

RIABEE LR ERBERRA

(c)  Property development

VEEE:

Huzhou Nanxun International Building
Market Center Company Limited+*

R R ERE AR AR

Shanghai Guangtian Real Estate
Development Company Limited**

LEERFEREBRAR
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Place of
incorporation/
operation and
kind of legal entity
Ealinaye
BEmE AR

= [3E ¥
BREER

PRC
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

TESNEBELR

British Virgin Islands/PRC
RERLES/TE

PRC
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

TESNEEELR

PRC
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

PENEEELR

PRC
Limited liability company

PEBREERT

FEMB QR @)

Principal activities

TEYS
FEXH

Investment in offices,
apartments and shopping
mall of Jing Guang Centre,
Shenzhen, the PRC

REPEARIRERLE
WRE  FEBMRES

Property holding of 9/F .,

Tower 1 South Seas Centre,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon,

Hong Kong
RAUNEBNERNDE

2z PR tie): o)

Investment in property for
restaurants and retails in
Beijing, the PRC

RETEILRYEEEE
REE

Development and operation
of a construction materials
and ornaments centre
in Huzhou, the PRC

REEANER R 2E
BERREMESL

Real estate development in
Hongkou District in
Shanghai, the PRC

RFE BT NE
RERE

Issued

share capital/
Paid up
registered capital

BETRE/
EfNEMER

HK$230,000,000
230,000,000 7T

US$1
IE

US$10,660,000
10,660,000 7T

US$48,000,000
48,000,000 7T

RMB900,000,000
AR%
900,000,0007T

Group’s
effective
equity
interest

AEEZ

e 5

80%

100%

70.9%

100%

60%



1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

(c)

Name

2T

Property development (continued)

MERE ()

Tianjin Jingang Real Estate Investment
Company Limited+*

REMEEEFREBRAA

Tianjin Renai Properties Development
Company Limited+*

RAEMCEEXERBRAR

Tianjin Ruigang Enterprise Management
Company Limited+*

REmmELXERARAR

BEEX(ER)BRAR

BEEXR(ER)BRAR

BERR(BER)EXBRAR

BERR(IF)DEERARR A

Place of
incorporation/

operation and
kind of legal entity
Sk,

T

PRC
Limited liability company
FEAEREEAR

PRC
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

TESEEELR

PRC
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

TESNEEELR

PRC
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

TESNEEELR

PRC
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

TESEEELR

PRC
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

TESNEEELR

PRC
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

TESEEELR

FEMNE Q@)

B

Principal activities

IBRH

Real estate development in
Nankai District in Tianjin,
the PRC

R RETERE
HERME

Real estate development in
Tuanbo Lake of Jinhai
County in Tianjin, the PRC

R B RETR S5
B RREEE

Real estate development in
Tianjin, the PRC
RABREREFHE

Real estate development at
Nanjing North Road in
Heping District
in Shenyang, the PRC

R EES TR
HRbEREEE

Real estate development
at Ningbo Road in Heping
District in Shenyang,
the PRC

R EEGHAFER
ERERERE

Real estate development in
Qingdao, the PRC
R EERERENE

Real estate development in
Jiangmen, the PRC
R BUTPIR S EHE

Issued

share capital/
Paid up
registered capital

BETRA/
ERMEMER

RMB500,000,000
AR
500,000,0007C

HK$304,200,000
304,200,000 7T

HK$690,000,000
690,000,000 7T

HK$500,000,000
500,000,000/ 7

HK$928,000,000
928,000,000 7T

RMB200,000,000
N
200,000,0007C

RMB1,050,000
Nt
1,050,0007C

Group’s
effective
equity
interest

AEE7

BRI S

75%**

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

BBERER)BRARN-ZZAFFR
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Igﬁﬁ%ﬂa N Eﬁﬁ*"‘/'\j&/\x*,—\j

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Name

A

(d) Infrastructure and alternative energy

ERRERER

Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) Company
Limited*+#

SMHENEEHMT)BRRAH

Chongging Huangiu Petrochemical
Company Limited+*
EERIRALERRA

HKC (Guilin) Expressway Company
Limited*#

EMERREARERAF

Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling) Company
Limited*#

EERNRE(BR)ERAR
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Place of
incorporation/
operation and
kind of legal entity
A,/
B RAE

= [3E ¥
BREER

PRC
Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

FETIHGELR

PRC
Limited liability company
FEAREEAT

PRC
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

TENEEELR

PRC
Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

FETINGELR

FEMB QR @)

Principal activities

TEYS
TEXH

Wind power project
in Heilongjiang,
the PRC

RAERETEZ
BANBEER

Investment in ethanol energy
business in Chongging, the
PRC

RHBIEERE B
RER

Operation of a toll road
in Guilin, the PRC
on a Build-Operate-
Transfer contract
EFELf%&fE&
ARELEZTE
EMmWE

Wind power project
in Heilongjiang,
the PRC

RAEREETEZ
BANBEER

Issued

share capital/
Paid up
registered capital

BEIRE/
EfNEMER

HK$100,000,000
100,000,000 7T

RMB180,470,000
AR%
180,470,0007T

RMB543,900,000
ARE
543,900,0007T

HK$150,100,000
150,100,000/ 7T

Group’s
effective
equity
interest

REB Y
ERRAER

86%

70.65%

100%

86.68%



1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

(d)

Name

A

Infrastructure and alternative energy
(continued)

ERRERER(E)

Yangpu Water Supply Company Limited+#
FRBKEREERR

BRI T IERAE AR A A

BREATBEIRI T T IR A AR A A+

Place of
incorporation/
operation and
kind of legal entity
EailizAvg
R B R

=5 [
ERER

PRC
Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

FETINGELE

PRC
Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

PERSRELE

PRC
Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

FETSHRELE

FEMEB QT @)

Principal activities

TEXHG

Operation and maintenance
of raw water supply
facilities and water supply
services in Yangpu
Economic Development
Zone

RERREREREER
RERKBIERIEA R
KRR

Wind power project
in Siziwang Qi,
Inner Mongolia,
the PRC
RABEANE S NF L
BH%EER

Wind power project
in Siziwang Qi,
Inner Mongolia,
the PRC
RABEAE LML
EpEE !

Issued

share capital/
Paid up
registered capital

ERTRA/
fApreaiiy g

RMB181,285,714
ARE
181,285,7147C

RMB166,480,000
ARE
166,480,0007C

RMB8,824,056
A8 8240567

Group’s
effective
equity
interest

TEEZ
-GN 5

65%

100%

74.11%

BBERER)BRARN-ZZAFFR
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

FTEWBAR  BELARARAELT

1 Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Name

£
(e)  Construction/property services

Hong Kong Construction (Hong Kong)
Limited
BARR(ER)IRARAA

Hong Kong Construction (China)
Engineering Company Limited+*

BERR(E)TRERAR

Shenzhen Kumagai Property Management
Company Limited**
R EANEEBERAR
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Place of
incorporation/
operation and
kind of legal entity
ks,
R B xR

= [3E ¥
ERgEn

Hong Kong
EE

PRC
Wholly foreign-owned
enterprise

PENEEELR

PRC
Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

PERSRELE

FEMB QR @)

Principal activities

TEXH

Provision of construction
service

RftERRY

Provision of construction
service

RtERR

Provision of property
management service

REMEEERS

Issued

share capital/
Paid up
registered capital

BEITRA/
EffHBEAR

HK$150,000,000
150,000,000 7T

US$85,500,000
85,500,000 7T

HK$60,000,000
60,000,000 7T

Group’s
effective
equity
interest

AEEZ
-GN 5

100%

100%

100%



2 Principal associated companies

(a)

(b)

(c)

Name

21

Property
L/ES

Hong Kong Construction SMC Development
Limited+#
EERRARERARA T

Hong Kong Construction (Investment) Limited+#

BRRR(EX)ERAR

Hotel management and operation
EEEERESE

Hong Kong Construction Kam Lung Limited+#*

Alternative energy
BHREER

CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Company
Limited+#
e AZ(HBR R NEEFRAR

CECIC HKC Wind Power Company Limited+#
e AR N E (RIL) BRARH

Linyi National Environmental New Energy
Company Limited+#

BT IRFTBER AR AR

CECIC HKE Wind Power Company Limited+#
FEfRE B ER B E (RIL) BR AR

2 EEBREQT

Issued share capital/
registered capital
BEB1TRA,
EERIIE= N

HK$10,000,000
10,000,000/ 7T

HK$10,000
10,000/ 7T

HK$100,000
100,000 7T

RMB589,620,000
AR
589,620,0007T

RMB545,640,000
AR
545,640,0007T

RMB100,000,000
ARM
100,000,0007T
RMB323,260,000
ARM
323,260,0007T

Place of incorporation/ Group’s effective

operation equity interest
EaiiB AV REEZ
H B BERRAER
Hong Kong/ PRC 40%
B8,/

Hong Kong 20%
BB

Hong Kong/PRC 45%
&%,/

PRC 40%
a3

PRC 37.41%
a3

PRC 40%
i

PRC 22.23%
i

BBERER)BRARN-_ZZAFFHR 187



PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
FERBAF B AT RELNT

3 Principal jointly controlled entities 3

Form of business

TERENT

Place of establishment/

Name structure/Kind of legal entity  operation
EBEERER
HiE EEEREL B/ 45 i 2

Property development

MERRE

Shanghai Jingang North Bund Real Estate  Sino-foreign equity joint PRC
Company Limited+# venture Fh

FEBIINEERBR AR hINE B RE

Notes: BT

Unofficial English transliterations or translation for identification
purposes only

+ Interest held by subsidiaries
# Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers

® Hong Kong Energy (Holdings) Limited is listed on the
SEHK of which the stock code is 987.

**  The companies are considered as wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group from the accounting perspective,
as the 25% shareholders of such companies are not
entitled to receive any future dividends and sharing of
residual interest.
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FFERE X PRk B E (A

+  EZANEARRAE

Group’s effective
equity interest
REEZ

B AR

25%

#  WIFMBESR BRI EBHER

0 EEMERGER)BRARMNERZMET - RHKER

987

R ZE R EZ25% MR SRR E AT R RS R A
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T F B EREE

Consolidated income
statement
Revenue

Profit/(loss) before income
tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit/(loss) for the year
Minority interest

Profit/(loss) attributable to
equity holders of the
Company

Dividends

Consolidated balance sheet
Net current assets
Non-current assets
Non-current liabilities

Net assets including minority
interests

Share capital
Reserves
Minority interest

Total equity

Earnings/(loss) per share*
— basic
— diluted
Dividend per share
— attributable to the year
Return on total equity

Note:

Return on total equity represents profit/loss for the year expressed as
a percentage of the closing total equity for the year concerned.

# The balances of previous years have been adjusted for bonus #

issue in 2009

FriSBiARM,~
(E518)
PSR (), 1%

RESHT /()
DB

AR RIBERE R
HEAEERN,
(E18)

RS

ReREARSE
MEBE B
FRBEE
FRBEE

BEFA(BE
DR R )

B
Y
B S

e

FREF,(EBE)
— &R
—#F

SRS
—FERI

R s AR ER O 3R R

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
“BENE | —TT)\F -—TTLHF —TITAE _—TERF
HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HK$ Million  HK$ Million

BEAT < aEtt  BEST  ABET AR
378 295 706 396 248

2,036 (2921) 945 574 340

(334) 111 (95) 4 20

1,702 (2,810) 850 578 360

(246) 164 (15) 1 8

1,456 (2,646) 835 579 368

= 122 827 419 116
1,608 1,833 5,938 787 137
16,562 14,022 10,450 5177 3,344
(4,766) (4,273) (3,003) (2,124) (1,359)
13,404 11,582 13,385 3,840 2,122
94 83 82 37 23
12,336 10,756 13,313 3,867 2,071
974 743 (10) (64) 28
13,404 11,582 13,385 3,840 2,122

2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
—EENE | —TT)\& -—TTLHF "TIAE _—TTEF

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

o o 7T 7T 7T

0.16 (0.30) 0.14 0.20 0.14

0.16 (0.30) 0.14 0.20 0.14

- - 0.135 0.1 0.05
12.7% (24.3%) 6.4% 15.1% 16.9%
P

MR s BRI E S AFREREN, BERNERFEF RIS
BEZEDLL

BAEFEZEHRER - TTNFETARMELFR

BBERER)BRARN-ZZAFFR
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES (as at the date of the annual report)
TEVE—BRWEREREH)

Investment Properties REWE

Location Existing use Term of lease
& B Al A& HEH
The shopping mall, all car parking spaces and Commercial/Residential Medium
an apartment units [CEY4E=s AR HER

South Ocean Centre
Dongmen Road Central,
Shenzhen, the PRC
BYIES - FEEE%
R—{EF=E8h

A BRI

RPI B

[EZis1azl

The shopping mall, all car parking spaces Commercial/Office Medium
and 1/F, 2/F and 58/F offices EEYE VNS R Hf
Shun Hing Square, Di Wang Commercial Centre

No. 5002 Shennan Road East,

Luohu, Shenzhen, the PRC

BYES - ERE%

R1g - 2B 68N E

BRI 2808

AR SR BE 500255

= HL RIS RO

The shopping mall, all car parking spaces, various Commercial/Office/Residential Medium
apartment units and offices R BAEEE FRHR
Jingguang Centre

Yanhe Road North,

Luohu, Shenzhen, the PRC

BYES - FrEEES -

ZEETEC R NE

A DR Y28

Naaliblniz

RINRES
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Investment Properties (continued)

Location

Hb 2L

Various units for restaurants and retails
No. 23 Qianmen

Dong Dajie

Dongcheng

Beijing, the PRC
ZEERBRRTENEMN
LR
SRR AP R AT 2358

The construction materials and ornaments mall, Zone C
Nanxun Economic Development District

Huzhou City

Zhejiang Province, the PRC
BERFAEM BRI

H BT M

B ERERCE

Properties Under Development

(a)

For sale purpose

Location

2

A parcel of land along the eastern shore
of Tuanbo Lake, Jinhai County,
Tianjin, the PRC

frrREXETE S EEDRNRES
HE—EL

A parcel of land located south of
Hongai South Road, Nankai District,
Tianjin, the PRC

i LR 2T i A e L A B e )
LB

Three parcels of land located at
Ningbo Road, Heping District,
Shenyang, the PRC

fr e R M AT RE R
A=t N !

A parcel of land located at north of
Hong Kong-Macau Pier,
Jiangmen, Guangdong Province,
the PRC

B ER A LI R
2 TRt

Intended use Shareholding

e

gy FiE
Residential 100%
x

Commercial and 75%
financial, service
apartments and
mixed apartments

BEeEE
BERAER
EEHAE

Residential and retail

TERTE

100%

Residential and 100%
commercial

EEAEE

REVZE @)

Existing use
ER:0paEE7s

Commercial

[EES

Commercial

[EES

HEPYE
(a) FHEERR

Stage of Expected year

completion of completion

Y BEERED

Planning stage  2013-2015

REER

Constructionin 2013
progress

EEIR

Planning stage  2011-2014

REER

Planning stage 2013

RERE

Term of lease
FHEEf

Medium

T H

Medium
AR

Site area GFA
(sq.m.)

804,000.0 834,000.0 834,000.0
53,6572 150,000.0 112,500.0
67,3054 270,000.0 270,000.0
94,555.0 189,000.0 189,000.0

1,405,500.0

BBERER)BRARN-ZZAFFR
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES (as at the date of the annual report)

FEYE-—BRGUAEHRAH)

Properties Under Development (continued)

(b) For investment purpose

Location

E

A parcel of land located in the north side  Office, hotel and

of the International Passenger
Transportation Terminal of
Hongkou District, Shanghali,
the PRC

fus B AT AR ZE LI
BT

A parcel of land located at No.4
Sichuan North Road,
Hongkou District, Shanghai,
the PRC

B g N E )L B4
2Bt

A parcel of land located at
Nanjing North Road, Heping District,
Shenyang, the PRC

firp P EEGTALEE R
s R

Properties Held For Sale

Location

HoEh

Zone B, Nanxun Economic
Development District,
Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province,
the PRC

BT R MINT RS
KEmREERBE
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BREPYE @)
(b) ERERZR

Stage of Expected year Site area GFA
Intended use Shareholding  completion of completion (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
WHRER BEERR
KERE RiE ERER BEEREH (FAK) (FAK)
25%  Constructionin 2014 56,591.5 250,000.0
retail progress
WAE - BERTE ERIE
Office and 60% Planningstage 2014 26,820.0 147,000.0
commercial REEE
WAEREE
Office and 100%  Constructionin 2014 7,105.0 97,000.0
commercial progress
WRAERES IR
BHEHERBR 2
Share- Site area GFA
Intended use holding (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
HWAEEE BEHAEE
T JcHE (F77K) (F77K)
Commercial 100% 82,291.0 106,000.0
[SES

Attributable
GFA
(sq.m.)
EIiEER
BmE

(T
(FhXK)

62,500.0

88,200.0

97,000.0

247,700.0

Attributable
GFA
(sgq.m.)
JE(GIEmE
BEE
(FI75)

106,000.0
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